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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 1K-contains, and other periodic and current repqntsss releases and other public stockholder coriwation:
of BankFinancial Corporation may contain, forwdodking statements within the meaning of Sectiok 2f the Securities Exchange Acl
1934, as amended, which involve significant riskd ancertainties. Forwairdoking statements may include statements relatngur future
plans, strategies and expectations, as well agubuire revenues, expenses, earnings, losses, falgerformance, financial condition, as
quality metrics and future prospects. Forward lagkstatements are generally identifiable by usehef words “believe,” “may,” “will,”
“should,” “could,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,™anticipate,” “project,” “plan,” or similar expressions. Forward looking statemeart
frequently based on assumptions that may or maymnaderialize, and are subject to numerous uncéigaithat could cause actual result
differ materially from those anticipated in thevi@ard looking statements. We intend all forwéwdking statements to be covered by the
harbor provisions for forwartboking statements contained in the Private Saesrititigation Reform Act of 1995, and are incluglithis
statement for the purpose of invoking these safledigrovisions.

Factors that could cause actual results to diffatemially from the results anticipated or projectad which could materially and adver:
affect our operating results, financial conditianfature prospects include, but are not limited (ipless than anticipated loan growth du
intense competition for high quality loans and ésagarticularly in terms of pricing and credit endriting, or a dearth of borrowers who r
our underwriting standards; (ii) the impact of memg and competitorspricing initiatives on loan and deposit product) (nterest rat
movements and their impact on the economy, custdeleavior and our net interest margin; (iv) advesenomic conditions in general ant
the Chicago metropolitan area in particular thatl@¢aesult in increased delinquencies in our loartfplio or a decline in the value of ¢
investment securities and the collateral for oanky (v) declines in real estate values that adlxeimpact the value of our loan collate
Other Real Estate Owned ("OREQ"), asset dispositan the level of borrower equity in their investits; (vi) borrowers that experience le
or financial difficulties that we do not currentfgresee; (vii) results of supervisory monitoring éxaminations by regulatory authorit
including the possibility that a regulatory auttyigould, among other things, require us to ineeeasr allowance for loan losses or adver
change our loan classifications, writewn assets, reduce credit concentrations or maisfecific capital levels; (viii) changes, disngpis o
illiquidity in national or global financial marketgix) the credit risks of lending activities, incling risks that could cause changes in the
and direction of loan delinquencies and chasffe-or changes in estimates relating to the coatpmrt of our allowance for loan losses;
monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S. Governmémtluding policies of the U.S. Treasury and thed&ral Reserve Board; (xi) fact
affecting our ability to access deposits or cafééctive funding, and the impact of competitoni€ipg initiatives on our deposit products; (
the impact of new legislation or regulatory changesluding the Dodd-rank Act and Basel Ill, on our products, servicgserations ar
operating expenses; (xiii) higher federal depastrance premiums; (xiv) higher than expected maxthinfrastructure and compliance cc
(xv) changes in accounting principles, policiesgmidelines; and (xvi) our failure to achieve exgectynergies and cost savings f
acquisitions.

These risks and uncertainties, as well as the Réitors set forth in Item 1A below, should be cdestd in evaluating forwaroking
statements and undue reliance should not be platsdch statements. Forward looking statementksp@g as of the date they are made.
do not undertake any obligation to update any fouM@oking statement in the future, or to reflect aimstances and events that occur afte
date on which the forward-looking statement wasenad

BankFinancial Corporation

BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporaticzadiquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Companyiecame the owner of all of 1
issued and outstanding capital stock of BankFir@nE&i.S.B. (the “Bank™on June 23, 2005, when we consummated a plan efcsion an
reorganization that the Bank and its predecessttirttp companies, BankFinancial MHC, Inc. and Bamldricial Corporation, a fede
corporation, adopted on August 25, 2004. BankFirm@orporation, the Maryland corporation, was arigad in 2004 to facilitate the mutual-
to-stock conversion and to become the holding compar the Bank upon its completion.

As part of the mutual-tstock conversion, BankFinancial Corporation, theWénd corporation, sold 24,466,250 shares of comstock in .
subscription offering for $10.00 per share. Theasafe corporate existences of BankFinancial MHCBexkFinancial Corporation, the fede
corporation, ceased upon the completion of the alttistock conversion. For a further discussiothef mutual-tostock conversion, see ¢
Prospectus as filed on April 29, 2005 with the Sities and Exchange Commission (“SE@Uirsuant to Rule 424(b)(3) of the Rules
Regulations of the Securities Act of 1933 (File Nngm333-119217).
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We manage our operations as one unit, and thu®tdioave separate operating segments. Our chieatipgrdecisiormakers use consolidal
results to make operating and strategic decisions.

BankFinancial, F.S.B.

The Bank is a full-service, communityiented federal savings bank principally engagethe business of commercial, family and pers
banking. The Bank offers our customers a broadeaidoan, deposit, and other financial products services through 19 fulervice Illinois
based banking offices located in Cook, DuPage, laaceWill Counties, and through our Internet Bragnetvw.bankfinancial.com The Bank'
Hyde Park East branch was closed effective Jaria2914, reducing the total number of full-serni@nking offices to 19 as of that date.

The Banks primary business is making loans and acceptipgsits. The Bank also offers our customers a waoéffinancial products ar
services that are related or ancillary to loansaapbsits, including cash management, funds tres)dfél payment and other online and mo
banking transactions, automated teller machinds,deposit boxes, trust services, wealth manageraadtgeneral insurance agency services.

The Banks primary lending area consists of the countiesravlo@r branch offices are located, and contigu@usties in the State of Illino
We derive the most significant portion of our rewes from these geographic areas. We also engageliirfamily lending activities in select
metropolitan areas outside our primary lending a@me@ engage in certain types of commercial lending leasing activities on a nationw
basis.

We originate deposits predominantly from the anghsre our branch offices are located. We rely onfaworable locations, customer serv
competitive pricing, our Internet Branch and refatieposit services such as cash management totatrd retain these deposits. While
accept certificates of deposit in excess of theeRadDeposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIQIgposit insurance limits, we generally do
solicit such deposits because they are more diffiouretain than core deposits and at times areerostly than wholesale deposits.

Lending Activities

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmearid business loans (muléimily, nonresidential real estate, commercial,starction an
land loans, and commercial leases), which reprede$it.001 billion , or 84.6% , of our gross loamtfodio of $1.183 billion atDecember 3:
2014 . At December 31, 2014 , $480.3 million , 6r64o , of our loan portfolio consisted of multi-fdynmortgage loans; $234.5 millionor
19.8% , of our loan portfolio consisted of nonresitial real estate loans; $66.9 million , or 5.7&6 our loan portfolio consisted of commer
loans; $217.1 million , or 18.4% , of our loan polib consisted of commercial leases; and $1.9iomll, or 0.2%, of our loan portfoli
consisted of construction and land loans. $18018ami, or 15.2% , of our loan portfolio consistefl one-tofour family residential mortgas
loans (of which $48.3 million , or 4.1% , were Igao investors in non-owner occupied sinfgetily homes), including home equity loans
lines of credit.

Deposit Activities

Our deposit accounts consist principally of saviagsounts, NOW accounts, checking accounts, morakehaccounts, certificates of depc
and IRAs and other retirement accounts. We proeim@mercial checking accounts and related servioek as cash management. We
provide low€ost checking account services. We rely on ourrihe locations, customer service, competitiveipgcour Internet Branch a
related deposit services such as cash managemattatct and retain deposit accounts.

At December 31, 2014 , our deposits totaled $112l@n . Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.@fllion and noninteresbearing demar
deposits totaled $130.7 million , which includedd$®00 in internal checking accounts such as Bashiers checks and money orde
Savings, money market and NOW account depositieth®848.1 million , and certificates of deposiiated $232.9 million , of whic$161.(
million had maturities of one year or less.

Related Products and Services

The Bank provides trust and financial planning E@mw through our Trust Department. The Bani/ealth Management Group provi
investment, financial planning and other wealth agment services through arrangements with a pairt broker-dealer. The Bar’
wholly-owned subsidiary, Financial Assurance Sesjdnc. (“Financial Assurance$ells property and casualty insurance and otherams:
products on an agency basis. During the year ebdegmber 31, 2014 , Financial Assurance recordest foss of $23,008ue to an increa
in commercial property and casualty insurance saéesonnel only partially offset by increased conuia insurance premium revenues.
December 31, 2014 , Financial Assurance had twitifne employees. The Bank’s other whobiyrned subsidiary, BF Asset Recov
Corporation, holds title to and sells certain Bank-
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owned real estate acquired through foreclosurecatidction actions, and recorded a net loss of I for the year endedecember 3:
2014 .

Website and Stockholder Information

The website for the Company and the Bank is wwwkbaancial.com. Information on this website doeg nonstitute part of this Annt
Report on Form 10-K.

The Company makes available, free of charge, ilsuahReport on Form 10-K, its Quarterly ReportsFamm 109, its Current Reports
Form 8K and amendments to such reports filed or furnispesuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Seagiftxchange Act of 1934,
amended (“Exchange Act"as soon as reasonably practicable after such fareniled with or furnished to the SEC. Copiestafse documer
are available to stockholders at the website ferGompany and the Bank, www.bankfinancial.conmder Investor Relations, and through
EDGAR database on the SEC’s website, www.sec.gov

Competition

We face significant competition in originating l@aand attracting deposits. The Chicago Metropol&asa and some of the other area
which we operate have a high concentration of firninstitutions, many of which are significantlgrger institutions that have gre:¢
financial resources than we have, and many of whighour competitors to varying degrees. Our coitipetfor loans and leases cor
principally from commercial banks, savings bankfrigage banking companies, the U.S. Governmentlitcumions, leasing compani
insurance companies, real estate conduits and otivepanies that provide financial services to besses and individuals. Our most di
competition for deposits has historically come froommercial banks, savings banks and credit unidfe.face additional competition -
deposits from online financial institutions and repository competitors such as the mutual fundstrglusecurities and brokerage firms
insurance companies.

We seek to meet this competition by emphasizinggraalized service and efficient decisioaking tailored to individual needs. In additiorg
from time to time reward longtanding relationships with preferred rates anthseon deposit products based on existing and pctsg
lending business. We do not rely on any individgabup or entity for a material portion of our lgaor our deposits.

Employees

At December 31, 2014 , we had 243 full-time empé&syand 47 patime employees. The employees are not representesl dollective
bargaining unit and we consider our working relasiaip with our employees to be good.

Supervision and Regulation
General

As a federally chartered savings bank, the Bam&gsilated and supervised primarily by the Officehaf Comptroller of the Currency (“OCL”
The Bank is also subject to regulation by the FXiGnore limited circumstances because the Baeposits are insured by the FDIC. -
regulatory and supervisory structure establishesmaprehensive framework of activities in which aaficial institution may engage, an
intended primarily for the protection of the FD#Cdeposit insurance fund, depositors and the bgnéystem. Under this system of fed
regulation, financial institutions are periodicatlyamined to ensure that they satisfy applicalaed#rds with respect to their capital adeqt
assets, management, earnings, liquidity and seitgito market interest rates. The OCC examinesBhek and prepares reports for
consideration of its Board of Directors on any iifeed deficiencies. After completing an examinatioghe OCC issues a report of examine
and assigns a rating (known as an institusdBAMELS rating). Under federal law and regulatioas institution may not disclose the cont
of its reports of examination or its CAMELS ratingsthe public.

The Bank is a member of, and owns stock in, theefeddHome Loan Bank of Chicago (“FHLBChich is one of the 12 regional banks in
Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank also islaegd by the Board of Governors of the FederabResSystem (“FRB"with regard t
reserves it must maintain against deposits, diddeand other matters. The Bask’elationship with its depositors and borrowersoai
regulated in some respects by both federal and ktats, especially in matters concerning the owniprsf deposit accounts, and the form
content of the Bank’s consumer loan documents.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and ConsumereRtimn Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”)which was signed by the President on July 21, :
provided for the transfer of the authority for réaging and supervising federal savings banks froen@ffice of Thrift Supervision (“OTS"}the
Bank’s previous regulator, to the OCC. The Ddtdnk Act also provided for the transfer of auttyfor regulating and supervising savi
and loan holding companies and their non-depos#absidiaries from the OTS to the FRB. The trasséecurred on July 21, 2011. The Dodd
Frank Act also created a new federal agency, thes@uer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPBA%, an independent bureau within the |
system, to conduct rule-making, supervision, and
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enforcement of federal consumer financial protectand fair lending laws and regulations. The CFRB kexamination and primg
enforcement authority in connection with these laamsl regulations for depository institutions wititall assets of more than $10 billi
Depository institutions with $10 billion or less fatal assets, such as the Bank, continue to bmieed for compliance with these laws
regulations by their primary federal regulatorg] amain subject to their enforcement authority.

The DoddFrank Act also broadened the base for FDIC assedsner deposit insurance and permanently increfiseanaximum amount
deposit insurance to $250,000 per depositor. ThddBaank Act increased shareholder influence over doaf directors by requirit
companies to give shareholders a non-binding vetexecutive compensation and so-called “golden gbartg” payments. The legislati
directed the FRB to promulgate rules prohibitingessive compensation paid to company executivgsrdiess of whether the compan
publicly traded. The Dodérank Act also provided for originators of certaiecuritized loans to retain a percentage of tHefdstransferre
credits, directed the FRB to regulate pricing oft@ia debit card interchange fees, repealed réisin&E on paying interest on commer
checking accounts and contained a number of refoetated to mortgage originations.

There can be no assurance that laws, rules andatems, and regulatory policies will not changetire future, and change could m
compliance more difficult or expensive or otherwégdversely affect our business, financial condijti@sults of operations or prospects. .
change in these laws or regulations, or in regafapmlicy, whether by the OCC, the FDIC, the FRBe {CFPB or Congress, could ha\
material adverse impact on the Company, the Badklzaeir respective operations. The following sumyrafrlaws and regulations applicable
the Bank and Company is not intended to be exhauatid is qualified in its entirety by referencefte actual laws and regulations involved.

Federal Banking Regulation

Business ActivitiesAs a federal savings bank, the Bank derives itslitepand investment powers from the Home Ownéman Act, a
amended, and the regulations, pronouncements dagee of the OCC. Under these laws and regulatibesBank may invest in mortge
loans secured by residential and nonresidentidlestate, commercial business and consumer loansijrc types of securities and certain ¢
loans and assets. Specifically, the Bank may caitgininvest in, sell, or purchase unlimited loangh® security of residential real estate, w
loans on nonresidential real estate generally ntdyon a combined basis, exceed 400% of the Batdtal capital. In addition, secured
unsecured commercial loans and certain types ofrantial personal property leases may not exceed @0%e Banks assets; howewv
amounts in excess of 10% of assets may only befosexinall business loans. Further, the Bank maner@ly invest up to 35% of its asset
consumer loans, corporate debt securities and coocmh@aper on a combined basis, and up to thetgred its capital or 5% of its asset:
unsecured construction loans. The Bank may invesbul0% of its assets in tangible personal prgpdor rental or sale. Certain leases
tangible personal property are not aggregated wittnmercial or consumer loans for the purposes oéroeéning compliance with tl
limitations set forth for those investment categsriThe Bank also may establish subsidiaries tlet emgage in activities not otherw
permissible for the Bank directly, including reatate investment and insurance agency activitiegiokation of the lending and investm
limitations may be subject to the same enforcemetthanisms of the primary federal regulator asrotiodations of a law or regulation.

Capital RequirementsFederal regulations require federal savings bamkadet three minimum capital standards: a ratitanfible capital t
adjusted total assets of 1.5%; a ratio of Tierdrg} capital to adjusted total assets of 4.0% (8f4rfstitutions receiving the highest rating
the CAMELS rating system); and a ratio of totalitato total riskadjusted assets of 8.0%. The prompt correctiv@madciandards discuss
below, in effect, establish a minimum 2% tangibpital standard. The OCC is also authorized tobésta individual minimum capit
requirements for federal savings banks in excesisesoAbove minimum capital standards.

The riskbased capital standard for federal savings bartjgnes the maintenance of Tier 1, or core capdtad] total capital (which is defined
core capital and supplementary capital) to riskglved assets of at least 4% and 8%, respectivelgetermining the amount of riskeightec
assets, all assets, including certain off-balarees assets, are multiplied by a niskight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned by the cé
regulations based on the risks inherent in the offasset. Core capital is defined as common stdkins’ equity (including retained earning
certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock rtated surplus and minority interests in equitgaunts of consolidated subsidiaries,
intangibles other than certain mortgage servicights and credit card relationships. The componehssipplementary capital currently incl
cumulative perpetual preferred stock, long-termfggred stock, mandatory convertible securities,osdimated debt and intermediatr
preferred stock, allowance for loan and lease bapeto a maximum of 1.25% of riskeighted assets and up to 45% of net unrealizetsga
available-forsale equity securities with readily determinable fizarket values. Overall, the amount of supplemgntapital included as part
total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capitaldifionally, a savings bank that retains credik iiis connection with an asset sale ma
required to maintain additional regulatory capittatause of the recourse back to the savings bank.
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At December 31, 2014 , the Bank’s capital exceedeabplicable regulatory requirements and the Baak considered well capitalized.

Final Capital Regulations.In July 2013, the FDIC and the other federal baggutatory agencies issued a final rule that willise thei
leverage and risk-based capital requirements amdnthod for calculating riskeighted assets to make them consistent with agretsnthe
were reached by the Basel Committee on Banking 18igi@n and certain provisions of the DoBidank Act. Among other things, the r
establishes a new common equity Tier 1 minimumtahpéquirement (4.5% of riskeeighted assets), adopts a uniform minimum Tieagdite
to adjusted total assets of 4%, increases the mimirfiier 1 capital to risk-based assets requirer(fenn 4% to 6% of riskweighted asset
and assigns a higher risk weight (150%) to expastirat are more than 90 days past due or are caconral status and to certain comme
real estate facilities that finance the acquisijtidevelopment or construction of real property. Tihal rule also requires unrealized gains
losses on certain “available-for-sale” securitielings to be included for purposes of calculatiegulatory capital requirements unless a on
time opt-in or opt-out is exercised. The rule lsn& banking organizatios’capital distributions and certain discretionaonis payments
executive officers if the banking organization does hold a “capital conservation buffesbnsisting of 2.5% of common equity Tier 1 caj
to risk-weighted assets in addition to the amowtessary to meet its minimum ribsed capital requirements. The final rule alsdémgent:
the Dodd-Frank Acs directive to apply to savings and loan holdinpanies consolidated capital requirements thaharéess stringent th.
those applicable to their subsidiary institutiofike final rule was effective January 1, 2015. Tbapital conservation buffemtill be phased i
from January 1, 2016 to January 1, 2019, when tHecépital conservation buffer will be effectivé.the final rule had been effective
December 31, 2014, the capital levels of the Bartkthe Company would have been in compliance wstheiquirements.

The Company and the Bank each have adopted Regufaépital Plans that require the Bank to maintaifier 1 leverage ratio of at least
and a total riskbased capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimuipitairatios set forth in the Regulatory Capitahd will be increased a
other minimum capital requirements will be estdids if and as necessary. In accordance with thaulRtegy Capital Plans, neither -
Company nor the Bank will pursue any acquisitiongoswth opportunity, declare any dividend or cortdaigy stock repurchase that wc
cause the Bank's total rislased capital ratio and/or its Tier 1 leverageorttifall below the established minimum capitaldisv In addition, i
accordance with its Regulatory Capital Plan, thenGany will continue to maintain its ability to seras a source of financial strength to
Bank by holding at least $5.0 million of cash quid assets for that purpose.

Loans-to-One-Borrower.A federal savings bank generally may not make a lmaextend credit to a single or related groufafrowers il
excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplusadditional amount may be loaned, equal to 10%nihpaired capital and surplus, if

loan is secured by readily marketable collaterdlictv generally does not include real estate. ADetember 31, 2014 the Bank was

compliance with the loans-to-one-borrower limitago

Qualified Thrift Lender Test.As a federal savings bank, the Bank is subject qoalified thrift lender (“QTL")test. Under the QTL test, 1
Bank must maintain at least 65% of its “portfoligsats” in “qualified thrift investments” in at leasine months of the most recent d@ntt
period. “Portfolio assetsjenerally means the total assets of a savingsutisti, less the sum of specified liquid asset$soup0% of total asse
goodwill and other intangible assets, and the vafymoperty used in the conduct of the federalrsgasrbank’s business.

“Qualified thrift investments’include various types of loans made for residemtrad housing purposes, investments related to thogmse:
including certain mortgagkacked and related securities, and loans for patstamily, household and certain other purposesoug limit o
20% of portfolio assets. “Qualified thrift investmts” also include 100% of an institutiantredit card loans, education loans and smalhies:
loans. The Bank also may satisfy the QTL test bglifying as a “domestic building and loan assooidtias defined in the Internal Revel
Code of 1986. At December 31, 2014he Bank satisfied the QTL test. A federal sasifigink that fails the QTL test must operate u
specified restrictions, including limits on growtiranching, new investment and dividends. As alre$uhe DoddFrank Act, noncomplian
with the QTL test is subject to regulatory enforestnaction as a violation of law.

Capital Distributions.The regulations of the OCC govern capital distiiimg by a federal savings bank, which include adistdends, stoc
repurchases and other transactions charged tmskitution’s capital account. A federal savings bank mustdileapplication for approval o
capital distribution if:

» the total capital distributions for the appli@balendar year exceed the sum of the institusioiet income for that year to date plus
federal savings bank’s retained net income foiptieeeding two years;

» the institution would not be at least adequatepjtetized following the distributiol

» the distribution would violate any applicablatste, regulation, agreement or O@@posed condition; «
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« the institution is not eligible for expedited trnesmnt of its filings

At December 31, 2014the Bank would have been required to file an igppibn with the OCC for approval of a capital distition to the
Company only if the proposed capital distributitogether with Bank’s total capital distributions the 2014, exceeded the sum of the Bank
net income for 2014 plus the Bask'etained net income for the preceding two yeatisether or not an application to the OCC is reql
every federal savings bank that is a subsidiara ¢iblding company must file a notice with the FRBeast 30 days before the boarc
directors declares a dividend or approves a cagigsdibution. If the dividend or other capital tlibution does not require prior OCC appro
the OCC must concurrently be provided with an infational copy of the notice given to the FRB.

The FRB may disapprove a notice or application if:

» the federal savings bank would be undercapitaliabowing the distributior
» the proposed capital distribution raises safetysomddness concerns

» the capital distribution would violate a prohibiticontained in any statute, regulation or agree!

Liquidity. A federal savings bank is required to maintainficgant amount of liquid assets to ensure its safd sound operation.

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Lawall federal savings banks have a responsibilityamtie Community Reinvestment ,
(“CRA") and related federal regulations to help meke credit needs of their communities, includitogv- and moderateincome
neighborhoods. In connection with its examinatiba éederal savings bank, the OCC is required tduate and rate the federal savings bank
record of compliance with the CRA. In addition, tEgual Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair HousiAgt prohibit lenders froi
discriminating in their lending practices basedtlom characteristics specified in those statutefedéral savings bank’failure to comply wit
the provisions of the CRA could, at a minimum, keguregulatory restrictions on its activities. &lfailure to comply with the Equal Cre
Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act could s enforcement actions by the OCC, as well éeofederal regulatory agencies anc
Department of Justice. The Bank's CRA performanas been rated as “Outstandingye highest possible rating, in all of the sevenAl
Performance Evaluations that have been conduated 4i999.

Privacy StandardsFinancial institutions are subject to regulatiompliementing the privacy protection provisions of tiramm-LeactBliley
Act. These regulations require the Bank to discliaseprivacy policy, including identifying with whmo it shares fionpublic person
information” to customers at the time of establishing the custoralationship and annually thereafter. In additithe Bank is required
provide its customers with the ability to “opt-owf or consent to having the Bank share their nohpudersonal information with unaffiliat:
third parties before it can disclose such inforomtisubject to certain exceptions. The implemenatf these regulations did not hav
material adverse effect on the Bank. The Gramm-h&iitey Act also allows each state to enact legishatthat is more protective
consumers’ personal information.

The OCC and other federal banking agencies havetedoguidelines establishing standards for safetjugrcustomer information
implement certain provisions of the Gramm-LeacHeBli Act. The guidelines describe the agenciegpectations for the creati
implementation and maintenance of an informatiocuggy program, which would include administratitechnical and physical safegue
appropriate to the size and complexity of a finahiistitution and the nature and scope of itsvéiets. The standards set forth in the guidel
are intended to ensure the security and confidégt@ customer records and information, to prétagainst any anticipated threats or haz
to the security or integrity of such records, angiotect against unauthorized access to or useaif records or other information that c«
result in substantial harm or inconvenience to @mtomer. The Bank has implemented these guidelmessuch implementation has not h
material adverse effect on our operations.

Transactions with Related PartiesA federal savings bank’s authority to engage imgextions with its “affiliates”is limited by OC(
regulations and by Sections 23A and 23B of the F@deeserve Act and its implementing regulationgation W. The term “affiliatesfor
these purposes generally means any company thatololr is under common control with an insurecatory institution, althoug
subsidiaries of federal savings banks are genenaliyonsidered affiliates for the purposes of iBast23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve
The Company is an affiliate of the Bank. In gendrainsactions with affiliates must be on termg #ra as favorable to the federal savings
as comparable transactions with raffiliates. In addition, certain types of thesensactions are restricted to an aggregate percewofate
federal savings ban&’capital. Collateral in specified amounts mustallgibe provided by affiliates in order to receieans from the feder
savings bank. Federal regulations also prohibédefal savings bank from lending to any of itsliatés that are engaged in activities tha
not permissible for bank holding companies, andhfpurchasing the securities of any affiliate, ottam a subsidiary.

The Banks authority to extend credit to its directors, exee officers and 10% stockholders, as well asritities controlled by such persc
is currently governed by the requirements of Sest®2(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act aagliRition O
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of the Federal Reserve Board. Among other thinigsse provisions require that extensions of credinsiders be made on terms that
substantially the same as, and follow credit undiéing procedures that are not less stringent tktzwse prevailing for comparable transact
with unaffiliated persons and that do not involversmnthan the normal risk of repayment or presemerotinfavorable features, and not ext
certain limitations on the amount of credit extethde such persons, individually and in the aggregatich limits are based, in part, on
amount of the Bank’s capital. In addition, extensi@f credit in excess of certain limits must reeghe prior approval of the BarskBoard ¢
Directors.

Enforcement.The OCC has primary enforcement responsibility dederal savings banks, and this includes the aityhto bring enforceme
action against the Bank and all “institution-afftied parties,including stockholders, attorneys, appraisers amwbantants who knowingly
recklessly participate in wrongful action likely bave an adverse effect on an insured institufimmmal enforcement action may range f
the issuance of a capital directive or cease amsistderder to the removal of officers and/or dicest receivership, conservatorship or
termination of deposit insurance. Civil monetaryg@iéies cover a wide range of violations and asj@nd range up to $25,000 per day, ui
a finding of reckless disregard is made, in whielsec penalties may be as high as $1 million per @hg. FDIC also has the authority
recommend to the OCC that an enforcement actidaken with respect to a particular savings insttutlf action is not taken by the OCC,
FDIC has authority to take action under specifiedurnstances.

Standards for Safety and Soundne:Federal law requires each federal banking agengydscribe certain standards for all insured depry
institutions. These standards relate to, amongr dltiegs, internal controls, information systemsl audit systems, loan documentation, ¢
underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, assewgn, compensation and other operational and maishg#andards as the agency de
appropriate. The federal banking agencies adoptertagency Guidelines Prescribing Standards foet$afind Soundness to implement
safety and soundness standards required undemafdder The guidelines set forth the safety andchsoess standards that the federal bar
agencies use to identify and address problemsatéd depository institutions before capital becomgaired. The guidelines address inte
controls and information systems, internal audgtems, credit underwriting, loan documentationernest rate risk exposure, asset gro
compensation, fees and benefits. If the appropféateral banking agency determines that an ingfiilfhils to meet any standard prescribe
the guidelines, the agency may require the ingtituo submit to the agency an acceptable plach@ése compliance with the standard.

Prompt Corrective Action Regulation. Under the Federal Prompt Corrective Action stattiie, OCC is required to take supervisory act
against undercapitalized savings institutions uritdgurisdiction, the severity of which depend®nghe institutiors level of capital. The fin
capital rule adopted in July 2013 revised the procoprective action categories to incorporate thased minimum capital requirements of
rule when it became effective. See “-Final CagRagulations.”

A savings institution that has total risk-baseditzhpf less than 8%, a leverage ratio that is thas 4%, a Tier 1 riskased capital ratio that
less than 6%, or a common equity Tier 1 ratio sklthan 4.5% is considered to be undercapitalizeshvings institution that has total risk-
based capital less than 6%, a Tier 1 hslsed capital ratio of less than 4%, a leverade tiadt is less than 3%, or a common equity Tieatilo
of less than 3% is considered to be “significantiglercapitalized.A savings institution that has a tangible capibah$sets ratio equal to or |
than 2% is deemed to be “critically undercapitalize

Generally, the banking regulator is required tocappa receiver or conservator for a federal savibgnk that is “critically undercapitalized.”
The regulations also provide that a capital restmmgplan must be filed with the OCC within 45 dafshe date a bank receives notice that
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalizedr “critically undercapitalized.’A parent holding company for the institution invetmus
guarantee performance under the capital restorgteomup to the lesser of the institutisréapital deficiency when deemed undercapitaliz
5% of the institutiors assets. In addition, numerous mandatory supeyéagions become immediately applicable to theefabsavings ban
including, but not limited to, restrictions on grihwinvestment activities, capital distributiongdaaffiliate transactions. The OCC may also
any one of a number of discretionary supervisotyoas against undercapitalized federal savings daimcluding the issuance of a caf
directive and individual minimum capital requirentand the replacement of senior executive offieasdirectors.

At December 31, 2014 , the Bank met the criteriebfing considered “well-capitalized”.

Interest on DepositsFederal laws and regulations previously prohibidegository institutions from paying interest on eoarcial checkin
accounts. The Dodd-Frank Act authorized the payrogimterest on commercial checking accounts, éffecluly 21, 2011.

Insurance of Deposit AccountsThe Banks deposits are insured up to applicable limitsHgy@eposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. Unde
FDIC's risk-based assessment system, insured institutions ssignad to one of four risk categories based orersigpry evaluation
regulatory capital levels and certain other factaiigh less risky institutions paying lower assesats.
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An institution’s assessment rate depends upon the category th wiscassigned, subject to certain adjustmenégifipd by the FDIC. TF
FDIC may adjust the scale uniformly, except thatadgustment may deviate by more than two basistpdiom the base scale without no
and comment. No institution may pay a dividend i§iin default of the federal deposit insurancgeasment.

Prior to the Dodd-Frank Act, assessment rates hfrgen seven to 77.5 basis points of assessablesidspThe Dodd-rank Act required tf
FDIC to revise its procedures to base its assedsnupon total assets less tangible equity instéah @eposits. The FDIC issued a final r
effective April 1, 2011, that implemented that chanThe FDIC also revised the assessment schedldleestain of the possible adjustment
that the range of assessments is now 2.5 basitsfoid5 basis points of total assets less tangitplaty.

The DoddFrank Act increased the minimum target Deposit fasoe Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimated insurepodis to 1.35% ¢
estimated insured deposits. The FDIC must seekti@ae the 1.35% ratio by September 30, 2020. éwsinstitutions with assets of $10 bill
or more are supposed to fund the increase. The Boaltk Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratiostead leaving the ratio to -
discretion of the FDIC. The FDIC recently exercigleal discretion by establishing a long-range feati of 2%.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance ass®s. A significant increase in insurance premiwosld be likely have an adverse ef
on the operating expenses and results of operatibiise Bank. The Bank cannot predict what its iasge assessment rates will be in
future.

An insured institutiors deposit insurance may be terminated by the FIpidhua finding that the institution has engagedrisafe or unsout
practices, is in an unsafe or unsound conditionaictinue operations or has violated any applicéle regulation, rule, order or regulat
condition imposed in writing. The management of Bamk does not know of any practice, condition iotation that might lead to terminati
of deposit insurance.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the Finan€iagoration (“FICO”)is authorized to impose and collect, with the appr@f the FDIC
assessments for anticipated payments, issuance aagdtcustodial fees on bonds issued by the FICeir980% to recapitalize the forrr
Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporationb®hes issued by the FICO are due to mature in #@bngh 2019.

Prohibitions Against Tying Arrangement. Federal savings banks are prohibited, subject mesexceptions, from extending credit tc
offering any other service, or fixing or varyingethonsideration for such extension of credit oviser on the condition that the customer ok
some additional service from the institution oraffiliates or not obtain services of a competibthe institution.

Federal Home Loan Bank Systerithe Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Eystem, which consists of 12 regional Federal F
Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System gesva central credit facility primarily for membiestitutions. As a member of t
FHLBC, the Bank is required to acquire and holdretaf capital stock in the FHLBC in specified amisu As of December 31, 2014he
Bank was in compliance with this requirement.

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act regdinancial institutions to develop programs toedétind report monegundering an
terrorist activities, as well as suspicious adtxgt The USA PATRIOT Act also gives the federal ggmament powers to address terrorist thi
through enhanced domestic security measures, eggdandrveillance powers, increased information sigamnd broadened antione)
laundering requirements. The federal banking agsnare required to take into consideration thecg¥feness of controls designed to con
moneylaundering activities in determining whether to mgy@ a merger or other acquisition application afi@mber institution. Accordingly,
we engage in a merger or other acquisition, outrotsidesigned to combat money laundering woulddigsidered as part of the applica
process. In addition, nocempliance with these laws and regulations coutdltén fines, penalties and other enforcement nreas We hay
developed policies, procedures and systems destgrammply with these laws and regulations.

Federal Reserve System

The FRB'’s regulations require federal savings battksnaintain noninteresarning reserves against their transaction accpsotsh a
negotiable order of withdrawal and regular checlaegounts. At December 31, 2014he Bank was in compliance with the FRB's res
requirements. The balances maintained to meetaberve requirements imposed by the FRB may be tssdtisfy liquidity requiremen
imposed by the federal regulation.
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Holding Company Regulation

The Company is a unitary savings and loan holdomgmany and is subject to regulation and supervisiothe FRB. The FRB has enforcen
authority over the Company and its nsavings institution subsidiaries. Among other tkinthis authority permits the FRB to restric
prohibit activities that are determined to be & tisthe Bank. The Dod8rank Act provided for the transfer of the authofdr supervising ar
regulating savings and loan holding companies hait hondepository subsidiaries from the OTS to the FRBe fransfer occurred on July
2011.

The Company's activities are limited to the adtdgtpermissible for financial holding companiesfar multiple savings and loan holdi
companies. A financial holding company may engageadtivities that are financial in nature, incluglinnderwriting equity securities &
insurance, incidental to financial activities omg@ementary to a financial activity. The Do#fdank Act specifies that a savings and
holding company may only engage in financial hajdoompany activities if it meets the qualitativétenia necessary for a bank hold
company to engage in such activities. A multipleirsgs and loan holding company is generally limitedactivities permissible for ba
holding companies under Section 4(c) (8) of thekBHbIding Company Act, subject to the prior approehithe FRB, and certain additiol
activities authorized by FRB regulations.

Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holdinggany, directly or indirectly, or through one ormeubsidiaries, from acquiring contro
another savings institution or holding company ¢oérwithout prior written approval of the FRB.dlso prohibits the acquisition or retent
of, with specified exceptions, more than 5% of ¢lgity securities of a company engaged in actwvitiet are not closely related to bankin
financial in nature or acquiring or retaining camtof an institution that is not federally insured.evaluating applications by holding compa
to acquire savings institutions, the FRB must abaisthe financial and managerial resources anaduyitospects of the savings institution,
effect of the acquisition on the risk to the inswoa fund, the convenience and needs of the comynané competitive factors.

Capital. Savings and loan holding companies have not hestltyibeen subject to specific regulatory capitajuirements. The Doddrank Act
however, required the FRB to promulgate consolilatapital requirements for depository institutioolding companies that are no |
stringent, both quantitatively and in terms of cam@nts of capital, than those applicable to thais&liary depository institutions. Instrume
such as cumulative preferred stock and tpseferred securities, which are currently incluéallthin Tier 1 capital by bank holding compal
within certain limits, would no longer be includebhs Tier 1 capital, subject to certain grandfatigerThe previously discussed final r
regarding regulatory capital requirements impleraeéheé Dodd-rank Act as to savings and loan holding compar@emsolidated regulata
capital requirements identical to those applicabl¢he subsidiary depository institutions applystvings and loan holding companies &
January 1, 2015. As is the case with institutidnesrtselves, the capital conservation buffer wilpbased in between 2016 and 2019.

Source of Strength DoctrineThe “source of strength doctringéquires bank holding companies to provide findnaissistance to the
subsidiary depository institutions in the event siisidiary depository institution experiences fficial distress. The DodBrank Act extenc
the source of strength doctrine to savings and lhadding companies. The FRB has issued regulatieqairing that all bank holding compar
and savings and loan holding companies serve asiraes of strength to their subsidiary depositorstitations by providing capital, liquidi
and other support in times of financial distress.

The FRB has issued a policy statement regardingdyenent of dividends by bank holding companies ithhas made applicable to savi
and loan holding companies as well. In general piblecy provides that dividends should be paid omly of current earnings and only if
prospective rate of earnings retention by the Imgildiompany appears consistent with the organiZatioapital needs, asset quality and ov
financial condition. Regulatory guidance provides ffrior regulatory review of capital distributioimscertain circumstances such as wher:
companys net income for the past four quarters, net atiéivds previously paid over that period, is insufint to fully fund the dividend or t
company’s overall rate of earnings retention ioimsistent with the compars/capital needs and overall financial conditione Eility of ¢
holding company to pay dividends may be restriéted subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. @ megulatory policies could affect -
ability of the Company to pay dividends or otheewngage in capital distributions.

Change in Control Regulations

Under the Change in Bank Control Act, no person a@yuire control of a savings and loan holding canypsuch as the Company unless
FRB has been given 60 daywior written notice and has not issued a noticajgiproving the proposed acquisition, taking intnsigeratiol
certain factors, including the financial and man@geesources of the acquiror and the competiiffects of the acquisition. Control, as defi
under federal law, means ownership, control ofading irrevocable proxies representing more th&% 2f any class of voting stock, con
in any manner of the election of a majority of t@mpanys directors, or a determination by the regulatat the acquiror has the powe
direct, or directly or indirectly to exercise a tamfling influence over, the management or poliadghe institution. Acquisition of more th
10% of any class of a savings
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and loan holding comparg/’voting stock constitutes a rebuttable presumptibcontrol under the regulations under certairturinstance
including where, as is the case with the Compdrg/jdsuer has registered securities under Secaf the Exchange Act.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbane®xley Act of 2002 was enacted in response to putdiccerns regarding corporate accountability inneation with certai
accounting scandals. The stated goals of the Saesliaxley Act are to increase corporate responsibitityprovide for enhanced penalties
accounting and auditing improprieties at publialgded companies, and to protect investors by inipgothe accuracy and reliability
corporate disclosures pursuant to the securiti@s.l@he SarbaneSxley Act generally applies to all companies thiat 6ér are required to fi
periodic reports with the SEC, under the Exchange A

The Sarbane®xley Act includes specific additional disclosueguirements, requires the SEC and national sessirékchanges to ad
extensive additional disclosure, corporate govestaand other related rules, and mandates furthdiest of certain issues by the SEC.

Federal Securities Laws

The Companys common stock is registered with the SEC underBkehange Act. The Company is subject to the infdirom, prox
solicitation, insider trading restrictions and athequirements of the Exchange Act.

ITEM1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities is subject to rigkserent in our business and the industry in whighoperate. Before making an investn
decision, you should carefully consider the riskd ancertainties described below and all otherrinfdion included in this report. The ri
described below may adversely affect our businfé@sancial condition and operating results. In aidditto these risks and the other risks
uncertainties described in Item 1, “Business-FodMasoking Statements,” and Item Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fina
Condition and Results of Operationgiere may be additional risks and uncertaintie$ déina not currently known to us or that we currg
deem to be immaterial that could materially andeasiely affect our business, financial conditioroperating results. The value or market
of our securities could decline due to any of thidemtified or other risks. Past financial perfomoa may not be a reliable indicator of fui
performance, and historical trends should not leel tis anticipate results or trends in future pesiod

Our future growth and success will depend on our ality to compete effectively in a highly competitive environment

We face substantial competition in all phases af @perations from a variety of different compettoOur future growth and success
depend on our ability to compete effectively insttiighly competitive environment. To date, our cefitive strategies have focused
attracting deposits in our local markets, and gngwour loan and lease portfolio by emphasizing i$igeloan products in which we ha
significant experience and expertise, identifyimgl daargeting markets in which we believe we caeatifely compete with larger institutic
and other competitors, and offering highly compeditpricing to commercial borrowers with low riskofiles. We compete for loans, lea:
deposits and other financial services with othenmmercial banks, thrifts, credit unions, brokeragedes, mutual funds, insurance compa
real estate conduits, mortgage brokers and spssihfinance companies. Many of our competitorsrgifeducts and services that we do
offer, and many have substantially greater ressuaral lending limits, name recognition and markesence that benefit them in attrac
business. In addition, larger competitors may e &bprice loans, leases and deposits more aggegsthan we do, and because of their la
capital bases, their underwriting practices for fgndoans may be subject to less regulatory seyuthan they would be for smaller bar
Newer competitors may be more aggressive in prithags, leases and deposits in order to increase rtfarket share. Some of the finan
institutions and financial services organizatiorithwhich we compete are not subject to the extensegulations imposed on federal sav
banks and their holding companies. As a resultsegheonbank competitors have certain advantages wveén accessing funding and
providing various financial services.

Numerous factors could adversely impact future loamgrowth and thus our future profitability

Our future profitability will depend in substantjadrt on our ability to achieve loan and lease gnawder intensely competitive conditions
manner consistent with our underwriting standarus lBusiness plan objectives. Our ability to achiienare loan and lease growth will dep
on a number of factors, including our ability tdesfloan and lease products at prices and withufeatthat are comparable or superior to t
offered by our competitors and attractive to pasdritorrowers. Because our business plan targets guality loans and leases in spe:
markets and product categories, our underwritingdsirds and our lending requirements relating bateoal eligibility, residual equity, glob
debt service coverage, loan covenants, loan steietnd financial reporting tend to be on the coredre side of the market. This can mal
difficult for us to compete with institutions
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that have comparable loan pricing but more leniemtling requirements. Our loan pricing is also iotpd in a significant way by the financ
strength of the borrower, the guarantor and thiawmhl. This enables us to compete effectivelyhighly qualified borrowers, but it can plz
us at a competitive disadvantage with respect toolae@rs who present acceptable credit risks buhatdiighly qualified. Our ability to achie
future loan and lease growth will also be affedbydfactors that are not exclusively within our aohtsuch as the level of loan payoffs
regulatory concentrations of credit limits. Thesal ather factors could weaken our competitive pasjtwhich could adversely affect ¢
growth and profitability. This, in turn, could hasematerial adverse effect on our business, firdueoindition, and results of operations.

Historically low interest rates could continue to aversely affect our net interest income and profithility

Our consolidated operating results are largely deeet on our net interest income. Net interestrimeds the difference between interest ea
on loans and investments and interest expenseratton deposits and other borrowings. Our net ésteincome is impacted by change
market rates of interest, changes in credit spreddsiges in the shape of the yield curve, thedsteate sensitivity of our assets and liabilj
prepayments on our loans and investments, and ithefrour funding sources and assets, among olttiegs.

In recent years it has been the policy of the Badir@overnors of the Federal Reserve System totaiaiinterest rates at historically low lev
through its targeted federal funds rate and thetage of securities. As a result, the interessratenew loans we have originated and mat
loans that we have renewed and the yields on sie=uwe have purchased during this period have begistorically low levels. Our ability
offset this by lowering the interest rates thatpag on deposits is severely limited because inteadss on deposits are already at historic |
Accordingly, our net interest income (the differenmetween interest income earned on assets amésnexpense paid on liabilities) n
decrease, which may have an adverse effect onrofitgpility.

Changes in market interest rates could adversely &#ct our financial condition and results of operatbns

Our financial condition and results of operations significantly affected by changes in marketiies¢ rates because our assets, primarily |
and our liabilities, primarily deposits, are momgtan nature. Our results of operations depend tsultiglly on our net interest income, whic
the difference between the interest income thagave on our interest-earning assets and the in&xpsnse that we pay on our interessring
liabilities. Market interest rates are affectedrbginy factors beyond our control, including inflatigecession, unemployment, money suj
domestic and international events, and changdseitJnited States and other financial markets. @tiinterest income is affected not only
the level and direction of interest rates, but &gdhe shape of the yield curve and relationsbgtsveen interest sensitive instruments anc
driver rates, including credit risk spreads, andhalance sheet growth, customer loan and depaditn@ences and the timing of changes in t
variables which themselves are impacted by chaimgesrket interest rates. As a result, changesarket interest rates can significantly af
our net interest income as well as the fair maviedtiation of our assets and liabilities, particlylaf they occur more quickly or to a gree
extent than anticipated.

While we take measures intended to manage the frisks changes in market interest rates, we canotral or accurately predict change:
market rates of interest or be sure that our ptiveneasures are adequate. If the interest raties qn deposits and other interest be:
liabilities increase at a faster rate than therestrates received on loans and other interestrepassets, our net interest income, and ther
earnings, could be adversely affected. We wouwd @&cur a higher cost of funds to retain our dépas a rising interest rate environme
While the higher payment amounts we would receineadjustable rate loans in a rising interest ragrenment may increase our intel
income, some borrowers may be unable to afforchigber payment amounts, and this could result Imgher rate of default. Rising inter
rates also may reduce the demand for loans andathe of fixed-rate investment securities.

Repayment of our commercial and commercial real eate loans typically depends on the cash flows ofdhborrower. If a borrower's
cash flows weaken or become uncertain, the loan maneed to be classified, the collateral securing tHean may decline in value and w
may need to increase our loan loss reserves or reda charge off

We underwrite our commercial and commercial reghtesloans primarily based on the historical andeeked cash flows of the borrow
Although we consider collateral in the underwritimgpcess, it is a secondary consideration thatrgéimeelates to the risk of loss in the ey
of a borrower default. We conform to OCC's publitgidance for assigning rigktings to loans, which emphasizes the strengtthe
borrower's cash flow. Specifically, the OCC's la@k-rating guidance provides that the primary ddesation in assigning riskatings tc
commercial and commercial real estate loans istieagth of the primary source of repayment, wilisctiefined as a sustainable source of
under the borrower's control that is reserved,ieitlyl or implicitly, to cover the debt obligatiomhe OCC's loan riskating guidance typical
does not consider secondary repayment sourcesthatitrength of the primary repayment source weskand collateral values typically
not have a significant impact on a loan's
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risk ratings until a loan is classified. Conseqlyert a borrower's cash flows weaken or becomeeutain, the loan may need to be classi
whether or not the loan is performing or fully sesti In addition, real estate appraisers typicplace significant weight on the cash flc
generated by income-producing real estate andeliebility of the cash flows in performing valuat® Thus, economic or borrowspecific
conditions that cause a decline in a borrower's lass could cause our loan classifications taéase and the appraised value of the coll
securing our loans to decline, and require usdeeise our loan loss reserves or record charge offs

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficiernto cover actual loan losses, our earnings would lzelversely impacted

In the event that our loan customers do not repay toans according to their terms, and the oalldtsecuring the repayment of these loa
insufficient to cover any remaining loan balaneeluding expenses of collecting the loan and mampagind liquidating the collateral, we ca
experience significant loan losses or increasepoavision for loan losses or both, which could havenaterial adverse effect on our opere
results. At December 31, 2014 , our allowance @anl losses was $12.0 million , which represent®olof total loans and 98.2%f
nonperforming loans as of that date. In determirtimg amount of our allowance for loan losses, wg o@ our loan quality reviews, ¢
experience and our evaluation of economic conditi@mong other factors. In addition, we make variestimates and assumptions abou
collectability of our loan portfolio, including thereditworthiness of our borrowers and the valudhef real estate and other assets, if
serving as collateral for the repayment of our ¥affe also make judgments concerning our legatipasiand the priority of our interests
contested legal or bankruptcy proceedings, andregst we may lack sufficient information to establiadequate specific reserves for I
involved in such proceedings. We base these egtimassumptions and judgments on information tleatewnsider reliable, but if an estimi
assumption or judgment that we make ultimately psoto be incorrect, additional provisions to odovahnce for loan losses may becc
necessary. In addition, as an integral part ofrthepervisory and/or examination process, the O€fbgically reviews the methodology
and the sufficiency of the allowance for loan lessehe OCC has the authority to require us to neizegadditions to the allowance baser
their inclusion, exclusion or modification of rigkctors or differences in judgments of informatiamailable to them at the time of tt
examination.

A substantial portion of our loan portfolio is secued by real estate. Deterioration in the real esta& markets could lead to highe
provisions for loan losses, which could have a matal negative effect on our financial condition andresults of operations

A substantial portion of our loan portfolio is seedl by real estate. At December 31, 2014 , our fmatfolio included $480.3 million in multi-
family mortgage loans, or 40.6% of total loans, 483million in nonresidential real estate loans18r8% of total loans and $180.3 milliam
one-to four family residential real estate loans]1®.2% of total loans (which includes $48.3 millim non-owner occupied orte-four family
residential real estate loans, or 4.@f4otal loans). Adverse conditions in the reabtsmarkets, particularly in the Chicago area, ¢caluse L
to experience higher levels of charge-offs, loaassifications and provisions for loan losses onreaf estate loans and wridewns on ot
other real estate owned, as well as additionalutsfand increased charge-offs, provisions for lloases and loan classifications.

Repayment of our lease loans is typically dependemin the cash flows of the lessee, which may be ueglictable, and the collatere
securing these loans may fluctuate in value

We lend money to small and m&ized independent leasing companies to financeld¢bé portion of leases. A lease loan arises whielasn(
company discounts the equipment rental revenuarat@ved to the leasing company by a lessee. Ose leans entail many of the same t
of risks as our commercial loans. Lease loans gdlgeare nonrecourse to the leasing company, and, consequenttyrecourse is limited
the lessee and the leased equipment. As with coaimhépans secured by equipment, the equipmentreerour lease loans may deprec
over time, may be difficult to appraise and mayfliate in value. We rely on the lesseebntinuing financial stability, rather than thedue o
the leased equipment, for the repayment of allireduamounts under lease loans. In the event efautt on a lease loan, the proceeds fror
sale of the leased equipment may not be suffidierdatisfy the outstanding unpaid amounts undertdéhms of the loan. AtDecember 3:
2014 , our lease loans totaled $217.1 million1&#a% of our total loan portfolio.

Our loan portfolio includes loans to healthcare preiders, and the repayment of these loans is largelyependent upon the receipt ¢
governmental reimbursements

At December 31, 2014we had $43.9 million of loans and unused committh¢o a variety of healthcare providers, primaliihes of cred
secured by healthcare receivables. The repaymettiese lines of credit is largely dependent on liberower's receipt of payments
reimbursements under Medicaid, Medicare and in scaises private insurance contracts for the sertieashave provided. The ability of 1
borrowers to service loans we have made to them leagdversely impacted by the financial healthhef state or federal payors, man
which have experienced budgetary stress, to makdbovesements for the services
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provided. The failure of one or more state or fatlpayors to make reimbursements owed to the agrsraf these facilities, or a significi
delay in the making of such reimbursements, codiceesely affect the ability of the operators ofsdacilities to repay their obligations to
In addition, changes to national health care paheplving private health insurance policies magoahffect the business prospects and fina
condition or operations of commercial loan custsrard commercial lessees involved in health cdeted: businesses.

Since our business is concentrated in the Chicagod#topolitan Area, local economic, market and compdive conditions can adversely
affect our business

Although we make certain types of loans and letsésrrowers located in other states, our lendimdjdeposit gathering activities are
concentrated primarily in the Chicago Metropolitarea. Our success can be affected by the geneyabetc conditions of this area and
surrounding areas. In addition, many of the loansur loan portfolio are secured by real estatatletin the Chicago Metropolitan Area.
Negative conditions in the real estate markets @hetateral for a mortgage loan is located couldeasely affect the borrower's ability

repay the loan and the value of the collateral seguhe loan. Real estate values are affected d&yynother factors beyond our control,
including real estate supply and demand, the impfctortgage foreclosures and short sales, changgmneral or regional economic
conditions and unemployment rates, interest rgi@gernmental rules or policies and natural disastlne value of real estate located in many
segments of the Chicago Metropolitan Area has la@encontinues to be adversely impacted by manlyesfe factors, and this has in the past
had, and may in the future have, a negative impactur loan growth, our ability to collect certddmns according to their terms and market
other real estate loans at appraised values, anesuits of operations.

The Bank is required to maintain a significant perentage of its total assets in residential mortgageans and investments secured |
residential mortgage loans, which restricts our ality to diversify our loan portfolio

A federal savings bank or thrift differs from a cmercial bank in that it is required to maintairestst 65% of its total assets iqualified thrifi
investmentswhich generally include loans and investmentsttierpurchase, refinance, construction, improvenmantepair of residential re
estate, as well as home equity loans, educatiamslead small business loans. To maintain our fédandngs bank charter we have to |
“qualified thrift lender” or “QTL"in nine out of each 12 immediately preceding monttne QTL requirement limits the extent to which ea
grow our commercial loan portfolio, and as a resfilthe DoddFrank Act, failing the QTL test can result in arfenement action. Howewvt
multi-family mortgage loans as well as certain loans exateeding $2 million (including a group of loansdoe borrower) that are i
commercial, corporate, business, or agriculturappses are included in our qualified thrift investits. Because of the QTL requirement
may be limited in our ability to continue to gromracommercial loan and lease portfolio.

The residential loans in our loan portfolio are sesitive to regional and local economic conditions

We originate fixed and adjustable rate loans secbyeone- to foufamily residential real estate. Our general peacts to sell a majority
our newly originated fixed-rate residential realaés loans and to hold in portfolio a limited numio¢ adjustableate residential real est
loans. Our portfolio also includes home equity sired credit and fixedate second mortgage loans. Residential real dstading is sensitive
regional and local economic conditions that sigaifitly impact the ability of borrowers to meet theian payment obligations, making |
levels difficult to predict. Residential loans witigh combined loan-tealue ratios generally are more sensitive to daddimproperty value
than those with lower combined loanstalue ratios and therefore may experience a high@dence of default and severity of losses
addition, if the borrowers sell their homes, therbwers may be unable to repay their loans in fialin the sale proceeds. As a result, t
loans may experience higher rates of delinquendigfgults and losses, which could in turn adveraéfigct our financial condition and resi
of operations.

Proposed and final regulations could restrict our d&ility to originate and sell residential loans

The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has isauetdie designed to clarify for lenders how thep eaoid legal liability under the Dodd-
Frank Act, which would hold lenders accountable émsuring a borrower’s ability to repay a mortgajeans that meet thisqtialifiec
mortgage” definition will be presumed to have coieglwith the new ability-tadepay standard. Under the Consumer Financial Rioh
Bureau’s rule, a “qualified mortgage” loan must nohtain certain specified features, including:

e excessive up-front points and fees (those exnge¥s of the total loan amount, less “bona fidecdunt pointsfor prime loans’
* interestenly payment:

* negativeamortization; an

» terms longer than 30 yee
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Also, to qualify as a “qualified mortgage,” a boser’s total monthly debt-tincome ratio may not exceed 43%. Lenders must\asify anc
document the income and financial resources relpeh to qualify the borrower for the loan and undée the loan based on a fully amortiz
payment schedule and maximum interest rate duhieditst five years, taking into account all apphte taxes, insurance and assessment:
Consumer Financial Protection Bureswule on qualified mortgages could limit our apilor desire to make certain types of loans or $o
certain borrowers, or could make it more expenaiveé/or time consuming to make these loans, whiakddonit our growth or profitability.

In addition, the Dodd~rank Act requires the regulatory agencies to isegelations that require securitizers of loansetain not less than £
of the credit risk for any asset that is not a ‘ldigal residential mortgage.The regulatory agencies have issued a proposedaiiteplemer
this requirement. The Dodd-Frank Act provides tiat definition of “qualified residential mortgageén be no broader than the definitio
“qualified mortgage’issued by the Consumer Financial Protection Bufeapurposes of its regulations. Although the finak with respect
the retention of credit risk has not yet been idstiee final rule could have a significant effeatthe secondary market for loans and the 1
of loans we originate, and this could restrict ability to make these types of loans.

New or changing tax, accounting, and regulatory rids and interpretations could have a significant imgct on our strategic initiatives,
results of operations, cash flows, and financial cawlition

The banking services industry is extensively regaleand the degree of regulation is increasing tduthe DoddFrank Act and regulato
initiatives precipitated by the Dod#ank Act and the economic downturn and the remylilisruptions that certain financial marl
experienced. These regulations, along with theeatiyr existing tax, accounting, securities, insegrand monetary laws, regulations, rt
standards, policies and interpretations, contmlnttethods by which financial institutions and thHeitding companies conduct business, en
in strategic and tax planning and implement stiatégtiatives, and govern financial reporting agidclosures. These laws, regulations,
standards, policies and interpretations are cotigtavolving and may change significantly over time

We are subject to security and operational risks riating to our use of technology

We depend on the secure processing, storage amgiission of confidential and other informationour data processing systems, compt
networks and communications systems. Although Wwe taumerous protective measures and otherwise eodéa protect and maintain 1
privacy and security of confidential data, thes&tems may be vulnerable to unauthorized accesgyutemviruses or other malicious code,
other events that could have a security impaadné or more of such events were to occur, thisntiatéy could jeopardize confidential a
other information processed and stored in, andsimétted through, our systems or otherwise causgrimtions or malfunctions in our or «
customers' operations. We may be required to expagrdficant additional resources to modify our teaiive measures or to investigate
remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures, aadnay be subject to litigation and financial losted are not fully covered by our insurai
Security breaches in our Internet banking actisitieuld expose us to possible liability and detst@mers from using our systems. We rel
standard internet security systems to provide #uairsty and authentication necessary to effectrgsetansmission of data. These precau
may not fully protect our systems from compromisedreaches of our security measures that couldtresdamage to our reputation and
business. Although we perform most data proceshingtions internally, we outsource certain servieeghird parties. If our third pat
providers encounter operational difficulties or @y breaches, it could affect our ability to adatply process and account for custc
transactions, which could significantly affect dwsiness operations.

Our operations rely on numerous external vendors

We rely on numerous external vendors to providevitis products and services necessary to maintairday-today operations. According
our operations are exposed to risk that these wenddl not perform in accordance with the conteattarrangements under service |
agreements. The failure of an external vendor tiopa in accordance with the contracted arrangementler service level agreements bec
of changes in the vendor's organizational structiimancial condition, support for existing prodsi@nd services or strategic focus or for
other reason, could be disruptive to our operatiatgch in turn could have a material negative iotgan our financial condition and result:
operations. We also could be adversely affectaeaextent such an agreement is not renewed bhitlieparty vendor or is renewed on te
less favorable to us.

Our business and operations could be significantlympacted if we or our third party vendors suffer failure or disruptions of information
processing systems, systems failures or securitydaches
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We have become increasingly dependent on commignsaidata processing and other information teamobkystems to manage and con
our business and support our day-to-day bankinggsiment, and trust activities, some of which amvided through thirgzarties. If we or ot
third party vendors encounter difficulties or be@the source of an attack on or breach of theiratjpmal systems, data or infrastructure,

we have difficulty communicating with any such thparty system, our business and operations caufdrs Any failure or disruption to o
systems, or those of a third party vendor, coulgdde our transaction processing, service delivargtomer relationship management,

processing, financial reporting or risk managem@dithough we take ongoing monitoring, detectiond garevention measures and perf
penetration testing and periodic risk assessmentscomputer systems, software and networks argetbd our third party vendors may be
become vulnerable to unauthorized access, lossestruttion of data (including confidential cliemtfarmation), account takeove
unavailability of service, computer viruses, deroélservice attacks, malicious social engineeringtier malicious code, or cybattack:
beyond what we can reasonably anticipate and sueht® could result in material loss. If any of durancial, accounting or other d
processing systems fail or have other significdmrtsomings, we could be materially adversely affdc Security breaches in our on
banking systems could also have an adverse effeciuo reputation and could subject us to possilleility. Additionally, we could suffe
disruptions to our systems or damage to our netwdr&structure from events that are wholly or fzdlgt beyond our control, such as electr
or telecommunications outages, natural disasteidespread health emergencies or pandemics, or ®weeising from local or larger sc
political events, including terrorist acts. Theende no assurance that our policies, procedutprective measures designed to preve
limit the effect of a failure, interruption or seity breach, or the policies, procedures and ptateeneasures of our third party vendors, wil
effective. If significant failure, interruption arecurity breaches do occur in our processing systanthose of our third party providers,
could suffer damage to our reputation, a loss sfamer business, additional regulatory scrutinyexgosure to civil litigation, additional co
and possible financial liability. In addition, obusiness is highly dependent on our ability to pss¢ record and monitor, on a continuous k
a large number of transactions. To do so, we apemtent on our employees and therefore, the patdnti operational risk exposure ex
throughout our organization, including losses ré&sglfrom human error. We could be materially adety affected if one or more of ¢
employees cause a significant operational breakdmwailure. If we fail to maintain adequate infragture, systems, controls and perso
relative to our size and products and services, adnility to effectively operate our business may itmpaired and our business could
adversely affected.

We continually encounter technological change, anthay have fewer resources than many of our competite to continue to invest ir
technological improvements

The financial services industry is undergoing ratgichnological changes, with frequent introductiosiew technologyriven products ar
services. The effective use of technology increa#ésiency and enables financial institutions &itbr serve customers and to reduce costs
future success will depend, in part, upon our gbib address the needs of our customers by usttgnblogy to provide products and serv
that will satisfy customer demands for convenieasewell as to create additional efficiencies in operations. Many of our competitors h
substantially greater resources to invest in teldyical improvements. We also may not be able fec#ively implement new technology-
driven products and services or be successful iketiag these products and services to our custamer

FDIC deposit insurance costs have increased and maycrease further in the future

FDIC insurance rates have increased significarglyd we may pay higher FDIC deposit premiums in fitere. The Dodd-rank Ac
established 1.35% as the minimum Designated Re$tatie (“DRR”) for the deposit insurance fund. The FDIC has ddtexththat the DR
should be 2.0% and has adopted a plan under whighi imeet the statutory minimum DRR of 1.35% thetstatutory deadline of Septenr
30, 2020. The Dodérank Act requires the FDIC to offset the effectinstitutions with assets less than $10 billiontleé increase in ti
statutory minimum DRR to 1.35% from the former staty minimum of 1.15%. The FDIC has not announiged it will implement this offse
The DoddFrank Act also requires the FDIC to base depositriance premium on an institution's total assetsimits tangible equity instead
its deposits. The FDIC has adopted regulations llage assessments for banks and thrifts with tatséts of less than $10 billion o
combination of financial ratios and regulatory mgs. If circumstances require the FDIC to imposditamhal special assessments or fur
increase its quarterly assessment rates, this edstdhave an adverse impact on our results ofatipes.

We will become subject to more stringent capital rguirements, which could adversely impact our returnon equity, require us to raiss
additional capital, or constrain us from paying dividends or repurchasing shares

In July 2013, the federal banking agencies appravedw rule that will substantially amend the raguly riskbased capital rules applicable
the Bank and the Company. The final rule implemémdsBasel 11l regulatory capital reforms and chesgequired by the Dodd-Frank Act.
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The final rule includes new minimum risglased capital and leverage ratios, which will Heatiive for us on January 1, 2015, and refine:
definition of what constitutes “capitafor purposes of calculating these ratios. The newimum capital requirements will be: (i) a n
common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%; (ii)féer 1 to riskbased assets capital ratio of 6% (increased frory @B} a total capital ratio ¢
8% (unchanged from current rules); and (iv) a Tideverage ratio of 4%. The final rule also regsiitmrealized gains and losses on ce
“available-for-sale” securities holdings to be umbéd for purposes of calculating regulatory capigjuirements unless a one-time opt-is
exercised. The final rule also establishes a “ehpitnservation bufferdf 2.5%, and will result in the following minimunatios: (i) a commc
equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 7.0%, (ii) a Tiertd risk-based assets capital ratio of 8.5%, and (iii) al teapital ratio of 10.5%. The new car
conservation buffer requirement would be phasdokiginning in January 2016 at 0.625% of nelighted assets and would increase eact
until fully implemented in January 2019. An instiln will be subject to limitations on paying di@dds, engaging in share repurchases
paying discretionary bonuses if its capital le\adlsf below the buffer amount. These limitationsl w#tablish a maximum percentage of elic
retained income that can be utilized for such astio

We have analyzed the effects of these new cagtplirements, and believe that the Bank and the @agngrould have met all of these r
requirements, including the full 2.5% capital cansgion buffer, if they had been in effect as ofcBeber 31, 2014 .

The application of more stringent capital requiraisecould, among other things, result in lower metuon equity, require the raising
additional capital, and result in regulatory actiaghwe were to be unable to comply with such regmients. Furthermore, the impositior
liquidity requirements in connection with the impientation of Basel Il could result in our having lengthen the term of our fundil
restructure our business models, and/or increasbaldings of liquid assets. Implementation of aigto asset risk weightings for ribkse:
capital calculations, items included or deductedaiculating regulatory capital and/or additionapital conservation buffers could resul
management modifying its business strategy, andtidouit our ability to make distributions, includj paying out dividends or buying b
shares. Specifically, beginning in 2016, the Bandbility to pay dividends will be limited if it @s not have the capital conservation bi
required by the new capital rules, which may limitr ability to pay dividends to stockholders. S&ugfervision and Regulatidrederz
Banking Regulation-New Capital Rule.”

Our sources of funds are limited because of our hding company structure

The Company is a separate legal entity from itssislidries and does not have significant operatwings own. Dividends from the Ba
provide a significant source of cash for the Conypdiine availability of dividends from the Bank imlted by various statutes and regulati
Under these statutes and regulations, the Ban&tipermitted to pay dividends on its capital sttwkhe Company, its sole stockholder, if
dividend would reduce the stockholders' equity e Bank below the amount of the liquidation accoestablished in connection with

mutual-tostock conversion. Federal savings banks may pageatids without the approval of its primary fedemegulator only if they me
applicable regulatory capital requirements befaré after the payment of the dividends and totald@inds do not exceed net income to

over the calendar year plus its retained net income the preceding two years. Although the Baokisital exceeded applicable regula
requirements at December 31, 201Hhe Bank did not have sufficient net income aberpreceding two years to pay a dividend to thengany
without receiving prior regulatory approval. Ther@many has also reserved $5.0 million of its avédaash to maintain its ability to serve i
source of financial strength to the Bank. If in theure, the Company utilizes its available cashditier purposes and the Bank is unable tc
dividends to the Company, the Company may not kafficient funds to pay dividends.

Trading activity in the Company's common stock cou result in material price fluctuations

It is possible that trading activity in the Compangommon stock, including shatlling or significant sales by our larger stocktess, coul
result in material price fluctuations of the priger share of the Company's common stock. In addisach trading activity and the resul
volatility could make it more difficult for the Camany to sell equity or equitselated securities in the future at a time andepifcdeem
appropriate, or to use its stock as consideratomf acquisition.

Various factors may make takeover attempts that youmight want to succeed more difficult to achieve, hich may affect the value ¢
shares of our common stock

Provisions of our articles of incorporation anddws, federal regulations, Maryland law and variotiger factors may make it more difficult
companies or persons to acquire control of the Gampwithout the consent of our board of directdfsu may want a takeover attemp
succeed because, for example, a potential acqoineld offer a premium over the then prevailing eriaf our shares of common stc
Provisions of our articles of incorporation anddws$ also may make it difficult to remove our cutrbaard of directors or management if
board of directors opposes the removal. We haweesldo be subject to the Maryland Business ContioimaAct, which places restrictions
mergers and other business combinations with Istagkholders. In addition, our articles of incomuan provide that certain mergers and ¢
similar transactions, as well as amendments tadigles of incorporation, must be approved by ldhotders owning at least twibvirds of ou
shares of common stock entitled to
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vote on the matter unless first approved by att lves-thirds of the number of our authorized directossuaning no vacancies. If approvec
at least twathirds of the number of our authorized directossueming no vacancies, the action must still be@pgat by a majority of our sha
entitled to vote on the matter. In addition, a dioe can be removed from office, but only for cgusuch removal is approved by stockhol
owning at least two-thirds of our shares of comrstotk entitled to vote on the matter. However tifeast twothirds of the number of o
authorized directors, assuming no vacancies, apprtve removal of a director, the removal may b wi without cause, but must still
approved by a majority of our voting shares erditie vote on the matter. Additional provisions g limitations on the voting rights of ¢
beneficial owners of more than 10% of our commatlst Our bylaws, which can only be amended by thard of directors, also conti
provisions regarding the timing, content and procabrequirements for stockholder proposals andinations.

New lines of business or new products and servicegy subject us to additional risks

From time to time, we may seek to implement newdiof business or offer new products and serviddsnaexisting lines of business in ¢
current markets or new markets. There are subataigks and uncertainties associated with thefmtef particularly in instances where
markets are not fully developed. In developing aratketing new lines of business and/or new prodaictsservices, we may invest signific
time and resources. Initial timetables for theddtrction and development of new lines of busineska new products or services may nc
achieved and price and profitability targets mayprove feasible, which could in turn have a malaregative effect on our operating results.

Non-Compliance with USA PATRIOT Act, Bank Secrecy At, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, Truth-kbending Act or other
laws and regulations could result in fines or san@ins

Financial institutions are required under the USATRIOT and Bank Secrecy Acts to develop programpr&vent financial institutions fra
being used for monelaundering and terrorist activities. Financial ingtons are also obligated to file suspicious\attireports with the U.¢
Treasury Department's Office of Financial CrimedoEtement Network if such activities are detect&tese rules also require finan
institutions to establish procedures for identifysnd verifying the identity of customers seekiagpen new financial accounts. Failure ot
inability to comply with these regulations couldué in fines or penalties, curtailment of expansipportunities, intervention or sanctions
regulators and costly litigation or expensive addél controls and systems. During the last fewgeseveral banking institutions have rece
large fines for norcompliance with these laws and regulations. In taatdithe U.S. Government imposed and will contitnexpand laws al
regulations relating to residential and consumadileg activities that create significant new coraptie burdens and financial risks. We t
developed policies and continue to augment proesdand systems designed to assist in compliantetidse laws and regulations, but ti
policies may not be effective to provide such cdame.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We conduct our business at 19 banking offices &mt@t the Chicago metropolitan area. We own a ritgjof our banking center facilitie
except for our Chicagbincoln Park, and Northbrook offices, which aresed. Our Hyde Park East office, which was alsodéawas close
effective January 2, 2014 and the lease is no loimgeffect. We also operate two satellite natioc@hmercial leasing offices. We believe
all of our properties and equipment are well maigd, in good operating condition and adequatalficsf our present and anticipated needs.

We believe our facilities in the aggregate areaflé and adequate to operate our banking and debatsiness. Additional information w
respect to premises and equipment is presentedtm ®of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateisieintitem 8 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject tmwsilegal actions arising in the normal courséudiness. In the opinion of managem
based on currently available information, the reSoh of these legal actions is not expected tetmwmaterial adverse effect on the Company
results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NAS[A@al Select Market under the symbol “BFIN'he approximate number of hold
of record of the Company’s common stock as of Ddmam31, 2014 was 1,419. Certain shares of the Coyipa@&ommon stock are held
“nominee” or “street” name, and accordingly, theniier of beneficial owners of such shares is notmor included in the foregoing number.

The following table presents quarterly market infation provided by the NASDAQ Stock Market for tBempanys common stock and ce
dividends paid for the periods ended December 314 2nd 2013 .

Cash
Dividends

2013 and 2014 Quarterly Periods High Low Close Paid
Quarter ended December 31, 2014 $ 1217 $ 10.2¢ % 11.8¢ $ 0.0:
Quarter ended September 30, 2014 10.6¢ 10.4: 10.5¢ 0.04
Quarter ended June 30, 2014 11.2¢ 9.4( 11.1¢ 0.01
Quarter ended March 31, 2014 10.3: 9.0¢ 9.9¢ —
Quarter ended December 31, 2013 $ 9.74 % 8.7C $ 9.1¢ $ 0.0z
Quarter ended September 30, 2013 9.4( 8.1t 8.84 —
Quarter ended June 30, 2013 8.71 7.2t 8.5(C 0.0z
Quarter ended March 31, 2013 8.4(C 7.1¢ 8.0¢ —

The Company is subject to federal regulatory litiotas on the payment of dividends. Federal ResBoard Supervisory Letter SR 09-4
provides that a holding company should, among athiags, notify and make a submission to the Fddeeserve Bank prior to declarin
dividend if its net income for the current quartenot sufficient to fully fund the dividend, andrsider eliminating, deferring or significar
reducing its dividends if its net income for theremt quarter is not sufficient to fully fund thévidends, or if its net income for the past 1
quarters, net of dividends previously paid duringttperiod, is not sufficient to fully fund the diends.

The Company is also subject to state law limitation the payment of dividends. Maryland law gemgiahits dividends to an amount equa
the excess of our capital surplus over paymentsvibald be owed upon dissolution to stockholder®senpreferential rights upon dissolur
are superior to those receiving the dividend, andrt amount that would not make us insolvent predjdowever, that even if the Company’
assets are less than the amount necessary toy shtesfrequirement set forth above, the Company make a distribution from: (1)t
Company’s net earnings for the fiscal year in which distribution is made; (2) the Compagyiet earnings for the preceding fiscal yea
(3) the sum of the Comparsyhet earnings for the preceding eight fiscal guartDividends from the Bank provide a significaatirce of cas
for the Company. The availability of dividends frahe Bank is limited by various statutes and retiphas. For a discussion of the Bagk’
ability to pay dividends, see Part I, Item 1, “Bweds — Supervision and Regulation — Federal BanRiegulation — Capital Distributions.”

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
The Company had no sales of unregistered stockgltine quarter ended December 31, 2014 .
Repurchases of Equity Securities

Our Board of Directors had authorized the repurehasup to 5,047,423 shares of our common stock. r€purchase authorization expirec
November 15, 2012. The authorization permittedesh#w be repurchased in open market or negotiededéctions, and pursuant to any tra
plan that may be adopted in accordance with Rulebd0of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Thboaation was utilized
management's discretion, subject to the limitatiseisforth in Rule 1048 of the Securities and Exchange Commission aher atpplicabl
legal requirements, and to price and other intelingtations established by the Board of Directoks. of December 31, 2014the Compan
had repurchased 4,239,134 shares of its commok stdof the 5,047,423 shares that had been aatftbfor repurchase.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following line graph shows a comparison of¢henulative returns for the Company, the Russel020@dex, the NASDAQ Bank Index, t
ABA Community Bank NASDAQ Index and the KBW RegitrBanking Index for the period beginning Decembgr 2005 and endit

December 31, 2014The information assumes that $100 was investdukatiosing price on December 31, 2005 in the ComBtock and ea
index, and that all dividends were reinvested.

250

2000

Index Value

[ Ok

BankFinancial Corporation
Russell 2000 Index
NASDAQ Bank Index

ABA Community Bank
NASDAQ Index

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—@— BankFinancial Corporation —— Russell 2000 Index
MASDACQ Bank index —F— ABA Commumty Bank NASDAQ Index
KBW Bank Index
December 31,
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
100.0( 122.6( 110.8¢ 72.7¢ 72.5¢ 73.4¢ 42.5¢ 57.4¢ 71.8¢ 92.82
100.0¢ 118.3% 116.5: 77.1% 98.11 124.4¢ 119.2¢ 138.7¢ 192.6: 202.0¢
100.0( 111.0: 86.51 65.81 53.6: 60.01 52.5¢ 60.8¢ 84.52 86.9:2
100.0( 110.8: 83.3¢ 67.0¢ 52.71 57.5¢ 52.6¢ 60.7¢ 84.6( 86.9¢
100.0( 105.6: 79.81 62.5: 47.3¢ 56.01 52.01 57.4¢ 82.5¢ 82.7(

KBW Bank Index
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following information is derived from the awatitconsolidated financial statements of the Compaayadditional information, reference
made to Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Anglg$ Financial Condition and Results of Operatjbresd the Consolidated Financ
Statements of the Company and related notes indledewhere in this Annual Report.

At and For the Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Condition Data:

Total assets $ 146541 $ 145359 $ 1,481,190 $ 156357 $ 1,530,65!
Loans, net 1,172,35I 1,098,07 1,030,46! 1,227,39. 1,050,76!
Loans held-for-sale — — 2,16¢€ 1,91¢ 2,71¢
Securities, at fair value 121,17: 110,90° 77,83: 92,83: 120,74
Goodwill — — — — 22,56¢
Core deposit intangible 1,85¢ 2,43: 3,03¢ 3,671 2,70C
Deposits 1,211,71 1,252,70: 1,282,35: 1,332,55: 1,235,37
Borrowings 12,92: 3,05¢ 5,567 9,322 23,74¢
Equity 216,12: 175,62 172,89( 199,85 253,28!

Selected Operating Data:

Interest and dividend income $ 49,34¢ % 49,39: $ 60,727 $ 69,70¢ $ 64,93¢
Interest expense 3,04¢ 3,65: 4,447 6,91¢ 13,18¢
Net interest income 46,30 45,73¢ 56,28( 62,79! 51,75(
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (73¢) (687) 31,52: 22,72; 12,08
Net interest income after provision for
(recovery of) loan losses 47,03¢ 46,42t 24,75¢ 40,07( 39,66
Noninterest income 6,70¢ 8,13¢ 7,728 8,14« 7,917
Noninterest expens@ 44.45! 51,26: 59,59( 84,53 54,63¢
Income (loss) before income taxes 9,297 3,29¢ (27,109 (36,32) (7,059
Income tax expense (benefit) (31,31) — — 12,37: (2,747
Net income (loss) $ 40,61« $ 329 % (27,109 $ (48,69¢) $ (4,307)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 201 $ 0.1¢ $ (1.3 $ (2.46) $ (0.229)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 201 % 0.1€ $ (1.3¢) $ (2.4¢) $ (0.22)

(footnotes on following pag
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At and For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:
Return on assets (ratio of net income (loss) toage
total assets) 2.82% 0.22% 1.79% (3.00% (0.28%
Return on equity (ratio of net income (loss) torage
equity) 22.5¢ 1.8¢ (13.3¢) (19.49) (1.69)
Net interest rate spredd 3.3t 3.2¢ 3.8¢ 4.0¢ 3.3¢
Net interest margif? 3.4C 3.3 3.92 4.2( 3.57
Efficiency ratio ® 83.8¢ 95.1¢ 93.11 85.5¢ 91.5%
Noninterest expense to average total as@ets 3.1C 3.5 3.92 3.7¢ 3.5(C
Average interest-earning assets to average interest
bearing liabilities 122.9: 121.5( 123.1° 122.6¢ 122.5¢
Dividends declared per share $ 008 % 0.0¢ % 0.02 $ 0.22 $ 0.2¢
Dividend payout ratio 4.2% 25.6% N.M. N.M. N.M.
Asset Quality Ratios:
Nonperforming assets to total asséts 1.27% 1.7(% 2.61% 6.35% 3.9¢%
Nonperforming loans to total loans 1.0z 1.6¢€ 2.7 6.0¢ 4.3¢
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 98.11 76.8¢ 63.6¢ 41.4 47.6¢
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.01 1.27 1.7z 2.52 2.07
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.1z 0.31 3.91 1.04 0.7t
Capital Ratios:
Equity to total assets at end of period 14.7%% 12.0¢% 11.67% 12.7¢ % 16.55 %
Average equity to average assets 12.5¢ 12.0¢ 13.3¢ 15.4% 16.7
Tier 1 leverage ratio (Bank only) 11.4¢ 10.1¢ 9.6( 10.4¢ 12.4¢
Other Data:
Number of full-service office® 19 2C 2C 2C 18
Employees (full-time equivalents) 26¢ 301 352 357 32¢
Q) Noninterest expense for the year ended Decemb&031, includes a full goodwill impairment of $23x8llion.
2) Income tax expense (benefit) for the year dridecember 31, 2014 includes a full recovery ofdbéerred tax asset valuation allowance$86.1

million , and income tax expense (benefit) for the yeaedrdecember 31, 2011 includes the establishmeatfafl valuation allowance for tl
deferred tax asset of $22.6 million.

3) The net interest rate spread represents fiieratice between the yield on average interestiegrassets and the cost of average intdyeatin(
liabilities for the period.

4) The net interest margin represents net intémesme divided by average total intereaining assets for the peri

5) The efficiency ratio represents noninterest expegiss goodwill impairment, divided by the sum ef mterest income and noninterest incc

(6) The noninterest expense to average total assetgeptesents noninterest expense less goodwikimment, divided by average total ass

©) Nonperforming assets include nonperforming loars@her real estate own

(8) The Bank's Hyde Park East branch was closed orada@y2014.

N.M. Not Meaningful
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis that follows focusezemain factors affecting our consolidated finah@ondition at December 31, 20%c¢
2013 , and our consolidated results of operatiamstie three years ended December 31, 2004r consolidated financial statements,
related notes and the discussion of our criticabanting policies appearing elsewhere in this AhfReport should be read in conjunction v
this discussion and analysis.

Overview of 2014

Total loans increased in 2014 due to increased etiackand the deployment of new loan and leaseumtsd Consistent with our practice:
previous years, we actively managed our loan plistto exit certain multfamily, commercial real estate and commercial loglationship
based on their risk rating. At the same time, wal@eed substantially all of our excess liquiditgaching a 96.8% loan to deposit ratio.

We managed our deposit portfolio to retain highelug core deposit relationships and reduce ourafdsinds to the lowest practicable lev
We ended 2014 with our highest-ever core depotid, 180.8% of total deposits, and our lowest-ewastof funds.

Our net interest margin increased during 2014 asoan growth offset the impact of lower marketlgigeon loan originations and loan renev
and the effects of the reduction in risk within than portfolio. Noninterest income declined sligltue to changing customer behaviors ir
retail deposit portfolio and the planned reductanour mortgage banking servicing portfolio. We tioned to reduce our core noninte
expense in 2014, focusing principally on efficiexcirelated to staffing, faciliies and our ongoingiatives to utilize technologpase:
transaction processing and customer informatioiveigl capabilities. At the same time, we increasegstments in advertising, marketing
staffing in Commercial & Industrial lending to fhar accelerate loan growth.

We executed our plan to reduce nonperforming assetguture nonperforming asset expenses during.20dr ratio of nonperforming loans
total loans was 1.03% and our nonperforming agedtstal assets ratio was 1.27% at December 34 201

Outlook for 2015

The combined effect of low market interest rated wields and competitive forces in the Chicago pttitan area and in our other busir
units is expected to maintain pressure on assklsyibroughout 2015. Our focus will be on balanteet growth to deploy our available sur)
capital. We will continue the evolution of our loportfolio towards a configuration that permitstbetgrowth rates in multiple, independ
segments with comparable rigkljusted yields. We were pleased to have increasetbtal shareholder return in 2014 in part thloutgrrease
dividends to shareholders, and we expect to evalaange of options to increase shareholder einrd015.

We expect to release new depasiated products in an effort to improve nonintenresome during the course of 2015; in addition,may als
be successful in increasing revenues related #b, tnonedeposit wealth management, and commercial properdycasualty insurance sales
to new product capabilities and increased dedicsaéel capacity. Core noninterest expense is exghéatcontinue to decline despite incre
in advertising and marketing expenses relatedan bnd deposit growth initiatives. Through thedeas, we hope to further improve our ¢
operating earnings in 2015 to a level consistett peer institutions in our market.

Results of Operation
Net Income

Comparison of Year 2014 to 2013Ve recorded net income of $40.6 million for theryeaded December 31, 2014ompared to net incor
of $3.3 million for 2013 . Net income for 2014 inded a tax benefit of $35.1 millidhat was recorded to reflect the reversal of aatiu
allowance that was established in 2011 for defetagdassets. Excluding this tax benefit, net incdorethe year ende®ecember 31, 20:
would have been $5.5 million . Net income for 20d8uded a $1.3 million gain on sale of owner-odedpand investor-owned one-tour
family residential loans designated as held-foe-s@lur earnings per share of common stock was $@rthe year ended December 31, 2014
compared to $0.16 per share of common stock foryda ended December 31, 2018xcluding the tax benefit that we recorded fce
recovery of the deferred tax assets valuation @lme, our earnings per share of common stock wioaléd been $0.2fbr the year ende
December 31, 2014 .
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Comparison of Year 2013 to 2012VNe recorded net income of $3.3 million for theyended December 31, 2018ompared to a net loss
$27.1 million for 2012 The net loss for 2012 was primarily due to a $3tillion provision for loan losses and $12.7 roifliof expense fi
nonperforming asset management and operationshef otal estate owned. The $31.5 million providimnloan losses in 2012 included
$11.5 million charge relating to the consummatiétmm bulk loan sales and a $5.9 million chargatiah to the transfer of loans to the held
for-sale portfolio in preparation for a bulk sale. @arnings per share of common stock was $0.16 forydar ended December 31, 2(
compared to a loss of $1.36 per share of commark $tw the year ended December 31, 2012.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is our primary source of rexerNet interest income equals the excess of iritéresme (including discount accretion
purchased impaired loans) plus fees earned oreBttearning assets over interest expense incurrédterestbearing liabilities. The level
interest rates and the volume and mix of interastiag assets and interdstaring liabilities impact net interest income ehetst rate spread ¢
net interest margin are utilized to measure andagxjghanges in net interest income. Interest sptead is the difference between the yiel
interest-earning assets and the rate paid forestbearing liabilities that fund those assets. The intgfrest margin is expressed as
percentage of net interest income to average stt@@ning assets. The net interest margin exdbedsterest rate spread because nonintere
bearing sources of funds, principally noninterestting demand deposits and stockholders' equéy,aalpport interest-earning assets.

The accounting policies underlying the recognitidrinterest income on loans, securities, and oiiterestearning assets are included in M
1 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsitém 8 of this Form 10-K.
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Average Balance Sheets

The following table sets forth average balance tshemverage yields and costs, and certain otharnmdtion. No taxequivalent yiel
adjustments were made, as the effect of thesetatuss would not be material. Average balanceslaily average balances. Nonaccrual I«
are included in the computation of average balarimgishave been reflected in the table as loanyiogra zero yield. The yields set forth be
include the effect of deferred fees and expenssspdnts and premiums, purchase accounting adjussnteat are amortized or accrete
interest income or expense.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Average Average Average
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning Assets:

Loans $ 1,126,551 $ 47,80: 420 $ 1,031,240 $ 47,69 462% $ 1,155,820 $ 58,71t 5.08%
Securities 114,70t 1,15¢ 1.01 72,69¢ 981 1.3t 80,03( 1,48t 1.8¢
Stock in FHLBC 6,20z 28 0.4t 6,73¢ 22 0.3¢ 10,72¢ 2¢ 0.27
Other 113,53! 36¢ 0.32 262,42! 69€ 0.27 185,96: 497 0.27

Total interest-earning

assets 1,360,95 49,34¢ 3.62 1,373,10 49,39 3.6( 1,432,54. 60,727 4.2¢
Noninterest-earning assets 73,12¢ 78,46 86,19:
Total assets $ 143408 3 145156 $ 151878

Interest-bearing Liabilities:
Savings deposits $ 153,67: 15¢ 01C $ 147,44. 152 01C $ 144,68: 14¢ 0.1¢C
Money market accounts 347,43 1,11¢ 0.32 343,82 1,16¢ 0.3¢ 346,11t 1,262 0.3€
NOW accounts 350,40: 357 0.1¢ 347,52t 37¢ 0.11 335,55: 41¢€ 0.1z
Certificates of deposit 252,62 1,407 0.5¢€ 288,35: 1,93¢ 0.67 328,52 2,511 0.77

Total deposits 1,104,14 3,03¢ 0.2¢ 1,127,14 3,63¢ 0.32 1,154,88: 4,34 0.3¢
Borrowings 2,98( 8 0.27 2,96¢ 14 0.47% 8,16% 104 1.27

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 1,107,12 3,04¢ 0.2¢ 1,130,11 3,65°% 0.32 1,163,04: 4,445 0.3¢

Noninterest-bearing deposit 127,83l 129,75! 134,80
Noninterest-bearing
liabilities 19,28t 16,81¢ 18,03¢

Total liabilities 1,254,23 1,276,68: 1,315,88:
Equity 179,84 174,87 202,84!

Total liabilities and

equity $ 1,434,08 $ 1,451,556 $ 1,518,73
Net interest income $ 46,30¢ $ 4573¢ $ 56,28(
Net interest rate spreéd 3.35% 3.28% 3.86%
Net interest-earning assets $ 253,83 $ 242,99( $ 269,49
Net interest margif? 3.4(% 3.3% 3.9%%

Ratio of interest-earning
assets to interest-bearing
liabilities 122.9% 121.5% 123.1%

Q) Net interest rate spread represents the differbatgeen the yield on average inte-earning assets and the cost of average intbessing liabilities

2) Net interes-earning assets represents total interest-earssgisless total interesearing liabilities
?3) Net interest margin represents net interest incdivided by average total inter-earning asse!
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Comparison of Year 2014 to 2013et interest income increased by $564,000 , or 1,.286$46.3 million for the year end&kcember 3:
2014 , from $45.7 million for the year ended Decemil, 2013 . Our net interest rate spread inctesseen basis points to 3.3586 the yea
ended December 31, 2014 , from 3.28% for 2013 . @airinterest margin increased by seven basis 9aint3.40%for the year ende
December 31, 2014 , from 3.33% for 2013 . Our ayeraterest-earning assets decreased $12.1 mibic1.361 billionfor the year ende
December 31, 2014 , from $1.373 billion for the ryeaded 2013 . Our average interest-bearing ltadslidecreased $23.0 million §1.10°
billion for the year ended December 31, 2014 , f&il 30 billion for 2013 .

Comparison of Year 2013 to 2012Net interest income decreased by $10.5 million ,18r7% , to $45.7 milliorfor the year ende
December 31, 2013 , from $56.3 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012 . Our net interest ratmadplecreased 58 basis point8.28%
for the year ended December 31, 2013, compar8dB&%s for 2012 . Our net interest margin decred&se@0 basis points to 3.33fér the yea
ended December 31, 2013 from 3.93% for 2012 . Q@erame interest-earning assets decreased $59iémtid $1.373 billionfor the yea
ended December 31, 2013, from $1.433 billion f@t2, and our average interest-bearing liabilidesreased $32.9 million t%il.130 billior
for the year ended December 31, 2013 , from $1k1l68n for 2012 .

Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the dollar amountludrmges in interest income and interest expengddomajor categories of our interestrning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Informatie provided for each category of interest-earrasgets and interelsearing liabilities wit|
respect to changes attributable to changes in wl{im®., changes in average balances multiplietheéypriorperiod average rate), and char
attributable to rate (i.e., changes in average matkiplied by priorperiod average balances). For purposes of thig,tahbnges attributable
both rate and volume that cannot be segregatediiemreallocated proportionately to the change du®iume and the change due to rate.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Total Total
Increase Increase
Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:

Loans $ 420t $ (4,099 % 111 % (5,990 $ (5,039 % (11,025
Securities 46E (292) 173 (12€) (37¢) (504)
Stock in FHLBC 2 8 6 12 5 (7)
Other (449) 11€ (339 201 — 201
Total interest-earning assets 4,21¢ (4,262) (43 (5,92¢) (5,407 (11,33
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposits 6 — 6 4 — 4
Money market accounts 13 (66) (53 (20 (83 (93
NOW accounts 4 (26) (22 9 (46) (37
Certificates of deposit (229) (309) (532 (280) (29¢) (57¢)
Borrowings — (6) (6) (45) (45) (90
Total interest-bearing liabilities (20€) (407) (607) (322) (472) (794)
Change in net interest income $ 4,428 $ (3,86) $ 564 $ (5,606 $ (493) $  (10,54)
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Provision for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichcii@rged to operations in order to maintain thenadlace for loan losses at a level we con:
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit lasstee loan portfolio. In determining the level thie allowance for loan losses, we cons
past and current loss experience, evaluationsabiestate collateral, current economic conditimadyme and type of lending, adverse situat
that may affect a borrower’ability to repay a loan and the levels of nonprning and other classified loans. The amount efdtiowance |
based on estimates and the ultimate losses mayfreemysuch estimates as more information becomasadle or events change. We asses
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basisnaakle provisions for loan losses in order to mamthe allowance.

We recorded net recoveries of loan losses of $P86ahd $687,000 , respectively, for the years erdlscbmber 31, 2014 and 201and i
provision for loan losses of $31.5 million for thear ended December 31, 2Q1Phe provision for loan losses is a function af gllowance fc
loan loss methodology we use to determine the gpjate level of the allowance for inherent loanskes after net chargefs have bee
deducted. The portion of the allowance for loarséssattributable to loans collectively evaluatedifepairment decreased $2.3 milligror
16.4% , to $11.5 million at December 31, 2014 , parad to $13.8 million at December 31, 20Tis decrease occurred primarily becaus
growth in our loan portfolio focused on loan typeth lower loss ratios based on our historical legperience, and improvements in
historical loan loss factors that occurred as tssés incurred in earlier periods aged and thuse winer eliminated from the calculatior
assigned a lower weight. Net charge-offs were $#iildon in 2014 , compared to $3.2 million in 2048d $45.2 million in 2012 . Net charge-
offs for 2012 included a $10.8 million charg#-relating to compliance with the OCC's regulstdransition guidance concerning
elimination of special valuation allowances, aslvesl a $17.4 million charge relating to the conswatiom of two bulk loan sales and
transfer of loans to the held-fsele portfolio in preparation for a bulk sale. Forther analysis and information on how we deteemihe
appropriate level for the allowance for loan losard analysis of credit quality, see “Critical Aaoting Policies” and Risk Classification ¢
Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses.”

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31, Change
2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Deposit service charges and fees $ 1,93 $ 2,00t $ 2,17¢ $ (72) $ a7y
Other fee income 2,26¢ 2,25( 2,39 14 (149
Insurance commissions and annuities income 431 474 51C (43 (36)
Gain on sale of loans, net 15¢ 1,46¢ 841 (1,317 62¢
Loss on sale of securities @) — — @) —
Gain (loss) on disposition of premises and equigmen 5 (43) (15€) 48 11z
Loan servicing fees 41¢ 461 48€ (43 (25)
Amortization of servicing assets (13%) (239) (26%) 98 32
Recovery (impairment) of servicing assets 8 65 (55) (73 12C
Earnings on bank owned life insurance 23t 313 43¢ (78) (125)
Trust income 683 711 733 (28) (22
Other 732 662 622 70 4C
Total noninterest income $ 6,70¢ $ 813 § 7,72 § (1429 % AL

Comparison of Year 2014 to 20130ur noninterest income decreased by $1.4 mil@#6.7 million for the year ended December 31,201
from $8.1 million for the year ended December 3112, primarily due to a decrease in gain on skleamns. Noninterest inconfer the yea
ended December 31, 2014 included a $158,000 gaisatenof loans, compared to a $1.5 million gainsafe of loandor the year ende
December 31, 2013 , which included recurring loale sctivity combined with the completion of thdesaf the owner-occupied and investor
owned one-to four family residential loans that designated as held-feale at December 31, 2012. The completion of thlis epresentt
approximately $1.3 million of the $1.5 million gaom sale of loans that we recorded for the yeaeéridecember 31, 2013. We recorde
impairment of servicing assets of $8,000 for tharyended December 31, 2014 , compared to a reco¥asrvicing assets of $65,000 in 2013
Bank-owned life insurance produced earnings of $XBbfor 2014 , a decrease of $78,000 , or 24.8%mpared to $313,000 for 20HBe tc
decreased annualized policy returns.
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Comparison of Year 2013 to 201Dur noninterest income increased by $411,00@t fillion for the year ended December 31, 20f8m
$7.7 million for the year ended December 31, 20MPninterest income for the year end@egcember 31, 2013 included a $1.5 million gai
sale of loans, which included recurring loan saiévdy combined with the completion of the saletb& owner-occupied and investmrnec
one-to four family residential loans that we desigd as held-fosale at December 31, 2012. The completion of thie sepresentt
approximately $1.3 million of the $1.5 million gaim sale of loans that we recorded for the yeaeétcember 31, 2013. We recorde
recovery of an impairment of servicing assets &,860 for the year endddecember 31, 2013, compared to an impairment ofdB86in 2012
Bank-owned life insurance produced earning$313,000 for 2013, a decrease of $125,000, ds%28compared to earnings of $438,00(
2012 due to decreased annualized policy returns.

Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31, Change
2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Compensation and benefits $ 22,87: $ 26,198 $ 2579 % (3,32)) $ 404
Office occupancy and equipment 6,87¢ 7,547 8,06( (669) (513
Advertising and public relations 1,10C 92t 733 17t 192
Information technology 2,67¢ 3,091 3,06z (41%) 29
Supplies, telephone and postage 1,57¢ 1,69 1,84( (11¢) (1439
Amortization of intangibles 57¢ 60% 633 (27 (28
Nonperforming asset management 83¢ 2,63¢ 5,211 (1,800 (2,579
Loss on sale other real estate owned 35 14¢ 252 (113 (109
Valuation adjustments of other real estate owned 43¢ 55C 5,56( (112 (5,010
Operations of other real estate owned 93t 91t 1,67¢ 20 (764
FDIC insurance premiums 1,41¢€ 1,91z 1,77¢ (497) 134
Other 5,10¢ 5,03¢ 4,99( 66 48
Total noninterest expense $ 44,457 $ 51,26: $ 59,59( $ (6,81) $ (8,32¢)

Comparison of Year 2014 to 201F%or the year ended December 31, 2014 , nonintexpeinse decreased by $6.8 million , or 13.3%$4th:
million , compared to $51.3 million for the yeardex December 31, 2013 . Compensation and benefisnse decreased $3.3 milliorot
12.7% , to $22.9 million for the year ended Decendie 2014 , compared to $26.2 million in 20IBhe decrease was due in substantial p
the reduction in full time equivalent employee6® at December 31, 2014 from 301 at December(@®ll3 2Severance expense was $130
for the year ended December 31, 2014 , compar&d 76,000 for 2013 . Stock-based compensation yéar ended December 31, 2@tk
$1.1 million , compared to $933,000 for 201Bhis increase was attributable to an increadeSOP expense resulting from the $2.70 inci
in the Company’s stock price that occurred betweenember 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014 . Nonsitespense for 2014 includ&®.z
million of nonperforming asset management and OREPenses, compared to $4.3 million for 201RBonperforming asset managen
expenses decreased $1.8 million , or 68.2% , t@3$8® for the year ended December 31, 2014 , caozdptar $2.6 million in 2013 The
decrease was primarily due to a decline in nonpeiiftg assets and a corresponding decline in expenregting to resolutions and acceler.
dispositions of nonperforming assets. The mostifsigimt decreases in nonperforming asset managemqranse related to legal expen
receiver fees, and real estate taxes, which tot6&&,000 for the year ended December 31, 201Mmpaced to $2.5 million for 20130REC
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014do%l.4 million , and included a $438,008luation adjustment to OREO propert
compared to a $550,000 valuation adjustment in 2048ninterest expense for the for the year endeckebhiber 31, 201ihcluded a provisic
of $73,000 for mortgage representation and warregggrve for mortgage loans sold, compared to 8 800 provision for 2013and $53,00
in compensatory fees and final settlements of |langiced for others. Noninterest expense for s ynded December 31, 2013 includer
payment of $203,000 of settlements concerning ol sortgage loans.

Comparison of Year 2013 to 201ZFor the year ended December 31, 2013 , nonintexpeinse decreased by $8.3 million , or 14.0%$5th?
million from $59.6 million for 2012 . Compensati@and benefits expense included $175,000 in severarpensefor the year ende
December 31, 2013, compared to $147,000 for 20@anirelated incentive compensation was $500,00théoyear endeBecember 31, 201
compared to $187,000 for the year ended Decemhe?@P. Stock-based compensation for the year eDéedmber 31, 2013 was $933,(
an increase of $206,000, or 28.3%, compared to ,$0@7for the year endedecember 31, 2012. This increase is a result oB2@#stricte
stock grants combined with increased ESOP expenagesult
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of a higher stock price at year end. Noninteregtease for 2013 included $4.3 million of nonperfargiasset management and OF
expenses, compared to $12.7 million for 2012. Ndiopming asset management expenses decreased $oé o $2.6 million for the yea
ended December 31, 2013, compared to $5.2 milln@0d12. OREO expenses for the year enBedember 31, 2013 included a $550,
valuation adjustment to OREO properties compared$56.6 million valuation adjustment in 2012. Otheninterest expender the year ende
December 31, 2013 included the payment of $203d@¥0&kettlements concerning two sold mortgage lo&ther noninterest expensger the
year endeDecember 31, 2013 also included a provision of $1A® for the establishment of a mortgage repreientand warranty reser
for mortgage loans sold. The amount of the reptasen and warranty reserve was calculated by a@pglgublished Fannie Mae data rela
to the percentage of loans that it required todpurchased due to breaches of representations amdnties to the Bank's outstanding
loans.

Income Taxes

Comparison of Year 2014 to 2013or the year ended December 31, 2014 we recadddcome tax benefit $31.3 milligrwhich include:
the full recovery of the valuation allowance of $Bhillion we established for deferred tax assets in 2011raMersed the valuation allowai
for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 20l&db@s managemestdetermination that it was more likely than natttthe Company wou
realize the tax attributes underlying the defertax assets before they expired. In making thisrdetation, management considerec
available negative and positive evidence. For tharyended December 31, 201&e recorded no income tax expense or benefittdube
existence of a full valuation allowance for defdrtax assets. See Note 10 of the "Notes to CoradelidFinancial Statements" in Iltem 8 of
Form 10-K for further information. Excluding thellfeecovery of the valuation allowance, the effeettax rate for the year endBécember 3:
2014 was 39.13%.

Comparison of Year 2013 to 201ZFor the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 aweded no income tax expense or benefit duee
existence of a full valuation allowance for defdrtax assets.

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31,@14 and December 31, 2013

Total assets increased $11.8 million , or 0.8% $10465 billion at December 31, 2014 , from $1.48Mon at December 31, 2013 The
increase in total assets was primarily due to arease in loans receivable and deferred tax asgkish was partially offset by a decreas
cash and cash equivalents. Net loans increase® $@dlion , or 6.8% , to $1.172 billion at Decemisr, 2014 , from $1.098 billio
December 31, 2013 . Net cash and cash equivalecreased by $101.4 million , or 63.0% , to $59.8ioni at December 31, 2014from
$161.0 million at December 31, 2013 .

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmearid business loans (muléimily, nonresidential real estate, commercial,starction an
land loans, and commercial leases), which togetiee up 84.6% of gross loans at December 31, 20tbt loans receivable increasgd4.:
million , or 6.8% , to $1.172 billion at December, 2014 . Multi-family mortgage loans increased#®4.3 million , or 21.3% commercie
loans increased by $12.6 million , or 23.3% ; neittential real estate loans decreased $29.1 mijlimn11.0%,; construction and land loz
decreased $4.7 million , or 71.3% . One-to-four ifamesidential mortgage loans decreased $21.0ianil] or 10.5%. Commercial leas
increased by $30.0 million , or 16.0% .

Our allowance for loan losses decreased by $2.#Homil or 15.3% , to $12.0 million at December 2014 , from $14.2 millional
December 31, 2013 . The decrease reflected theinethbimpact of a $736,000 recovery of loan losses$i.4 million of net charge-offs.

Securities increased $10.3 million , or 9.3% , #2%2 million at December 31, 2014 , from $110.9liom at December 31, 2013 due
primarily to the purchase of $73.1 milliaf securities. The securities purchases were [grtéset by our receipt of principal repayment
$7.2 million on residential mortgage-backed andatetalized mortgage obligations. During 2014 afd®, we also invested in FDIC insul
certificates of deposit issued by other insuredodépry institutions.

Deposits decreased $41.0 million , or 3.3% , t@%$2.billion at December 31, 2014 , from $1.253iduillat December 31, 201,3due to
decrease in certificates of deposits. Core depdsi#tsings, money market, noninterbstaring demand and NOW accounts) increasec
percentage of total deposits, representing 80.8%taf deposits at December 31, 2014 , comparé&®1@% of total deposits &tecember 3:
2013.

Certificates of deposit decreased $42.8 million 125% , to $232.9 million at December 31, 20Bhfr$275.6 million at December 31, 2013
The decrease was primarily due to a lessening nfampetitive pricing position pending the deployref our excess liquidity through furtt
loan growth.

Total stockholders’ equity was $216.1 million atd@mber 31, 2014 , compared to $175.6 million atdbdwer 31, 2013 The increase in tof
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to $40.6lioil of net income that we recorded for the yeadezhDecember 31, 2014which wa:
partially offset by the $1.7 million in dividendsat were paid to our stockholders. The unallocated



28




Table of Contents

shares of common stock that our ESOP owns werectefl as a $10.3 million reduction to stockholderguity at December 31, 2014
compared to $11.3 million at December 31, 2013 .

Securities

Our investment policy is established by our BodrBioectors. The policy emphasizes safety of theegiment, liquidity requirements, poten
returns, cash flow targets, and consistency withierest rate risk management strategy.

At December 31, 2014 , our mortgage-backed seesrénd collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMQsf)ected in the following table we
issued by U.S. governmesponsored enterprises and agencies, Freddie ManigFislae and Ginnie Mae, and are obligations withehfedere
government has affirmed its commitment to supphlitsecurities reflected in the table were clagsifias available-for-sale Becember 3:
2014, 2013 and 2012 .

We hold FHLBC common stock to qualify for membepsim the Federal Home Loan Bank System and toigikd to borrow funds under t
FHLBC's advance program. The aggregate cost oFéliBC common stock as of December 31, 2014 was $@I®n based on its par vall
There is no market for FHLBC common stock. We pasgid $189,000 of FHLBC stock during 2014 and redeefi2.3 millionof exces
FHLBC stock during 2013 , respectively. At DecemBgr 2014 we owned nshares of FHLBC common stock in excess of the nurof
shares we were required to own to maintain our negshiip in the Federal Home Loan Bank System athe teligible to obtain advances.

The following table sets forth the composition, atized cost and fair value of our securities.

At December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Amortized Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Securities:

Certificates of deposits $ 86,04¢ $ 86,04¢ $ 65,01( $ 65,01( $ 33,45t $ 33,45¢
Municipal securities — — 18C 187 35C 36¢
Equity mutual fund 50C 50¢ 50C 497 50C 52¢
SBA - guaranteed loan participation

certificates 29 29 35 35 42 42

Total 86,57¢ 86,58 65,72¢ 65,72¢ 34,34¢ 34,39t

Mortgage-backed Securities:
Mortgage-backed securities -

residential 23,43: 24,61: 27,22¢ 28,36 32,57: 34,23
CMOs and REMICs - residential 9,93¢ 9,97¢ 16,85: 16,81 9,111 9,20¢
Total mortgage-backed securities 33,36¢ 34,58 44,08( 45,17¢ 41,68:¢ 43,43

$ 119,94° $ 121,17 $ 109,80 $ 110,907 $ 76,03. % 77,83:

The fair values of marketable equity securitiesgererally determined by quoted prices, in actiek®ets, for each specific security. If quc
market prices are not available for a marketabletggecurity, we determine its fair value basedtmquoted price of a similar security tra
in an active market. The fair values of debt sdimgiare generally determined by matrix pricingjaliis a mathematical technique widely L
in the industry to value debt securities withouyireg exclusively on quoted prices for the spec#iecurities, but rather by relying on
securities’relationship to other benchmark quoted securifié® fair value of a security is used to determime amount of any unrealiz
losses that must be reflected in our other commisitie income and the net book value of our seeusriti

We evaluate marketable investment securities wghificant declines in fair value on a quarterlysizato determine whether they shoulc
considered other-thaemporarily impaired under current accounting gnaa which generally provides that if a marketaggeurity is in a
unrealized loss position, whether due to generaketaonditions or industry or issuspecific factors, the holder of the securities masstes
whether the impairment is other-than-temporary.
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Portfolio Maturities and Yields

The composition and maturities of the securitiedfptio and the mortgage-backed securities powfali December 31, 205te summarized
the following table. Maturities are based on theaficontractual payment dates, and do not refleetimpact of prepayments or e:
redemptions that may occur. Municipal securitiedds have not been adjusted to a tax-equivaleris,t@sthe amount is immaterial.

More than One Year More than Five Years
One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years More than Ten Years
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield
(Dollars in thousands)
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ 86,04¢ 0.65% $ — —% $ — —% $ — —%
Municipal securities — — — — — — — —
Equity mutual fund 50C 1.97 — — — — — —
SBA guaranteed loan participation
certificates — — — — 29 1.7¢ — —
86,54¢ 0.6t — — 29 1.7¢ — —
Mortgage-backed Securities:
Pass-through securities:
Fannie Mae — — 881 5.6¢ 4 2.3C 10,29( 2.9¢
Freddie Mac — — 121 2.1z 19 1.9¢ 1,52¢ 3.2¢
Ginnie Mae — — — — 88 1.65 10,50¢ 2.3t
CMOs and REMICs — — 25C 1.74 371 1.8¢ 9,31t 0.8t
— — 1,252 4.5t 482 1.84 31,63t 2.1t
Total securities $ 86,54¢ 0.65% $ 1,252 455% $ 511 1.87% $ 31,63t 2.15%
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Loan Portfolio

We originate multfamily mortgage loans, nonresidential real estasng, commercial loans, commercial leases, andtroatisn and lan
loans. In addition, we originate oneftmir family residential mortgage loans and consulo&ns, and purchase and sell loan participatitoms
time-to-time. Our principal loan products are dissed in Note 4 of the "Notes to Consolidated Firzr&tatements” in Item 8 of this Form 10.
K.

The following table sets forth the composition af toan portfolio, excluding loans held-for-salg,thpe of loan.

At December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 180,33 1524 $ 201,38 18.1% $ 218,59¢ 20.8t% $ 272,03 21.6% $ 256,30( 23.92%
Multi-family mortgage 480,34! 40.6( 396,05 35.6¢ 352,01¢ 33.6( 423,61t 33.61 296,91¢ 27.71
Nonresidential real estate 234,501 19.82 263,56 23.7: 264,67 25.2¢ 311,64: 24.71 281,98 26.31
Construction and land 1,88t 0.1¢€ 6,57( 0.5¢ 8,552 0.82 19,85: 1.5¢ 18,39¢ 1.72
Commercial loans 66,88: 5.6¢ 54,25¢ 4.8¢ 61,38¢ 5.8¢€ 93,93: 7.4¢€ 64,67¢ 6.04
Commercial leases 217,14 18.3¢ 187,11. 16.8¢ 139,78 13.3¢ 134,99( 10.7: 151,10° 14.1(
Consumer 2,051 0.17 2,315 0.21 2,74 0.2¢€ 2,147 0.17 2,182 0.2C
1,183,14 100.0(% 1,111,26 100.0(% 1,047,75! 100.0%  1,258,20! 100.0%  1,071,56! 100.00%
Net deferred loan - - - - -
origination costs 1,19¢ 97( 74t 90¢ 1,37
Allowance for loan losses (11,990 (14,159 (18,03%) (31,72¢) (22,180
Total loans, net $1,172,35 $1,098,07 $1,030,46! $1,227,39: $ 1,050,76!

Loan Portfolio Maturities

The following table summarizes the scheduled remasof our loan portfolio at December 31, 20B¥emand loans, loans having no st
repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft I@aeseported as being due in one year or less.

One Year
Within Through Beyond
One Year Five Years Five Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Scheduled Repayments of Loans:
One-to-four family residential $ 22,11¢  $ 52,53t % 105,68t $ 180,33
Multi-family mortgage 39,24: 118,00 323,09¢ 480,34¢
Nonresidential real estate 75,53¢ 141,49t 17,46¢ 234,50(
Construction and land 1,71¢ 16¢ — 1,88¢
Commercial loans and leases 143,65: 139,51 854 284,02!
Consumer 38t 90¢ 757 2,051
$ 282,64 % 452,63 % 447,86: $ 1,183,14
Total
Loans Maturing After One Year:
Predetermined (fixed) interest rates $ 446,92
Adjustable interest rates 453,57
$ 900,50(

31







Table of Contents

Nonperforming Loans and Assets

We review loans on a regular basis, and generddlgepoans on nonaccrual status when either pahcipinterest is 90 days or more past
In addition, the Company places loans on nonaccastalis when we do not expect to receive full paynod interest or principal. Intere
accrued and unpaid at the time a loan is placedomaccrual status is reversed from interest incdnterest payments received on nonact
loans are recognized in accordance with our sicgmifi accounting policies. Once a loan is placech@amaccrual status, the borrower n
generally demonstrate at least six months of payrperformance before the loan is eligible to rettoraccrual status. We may have Ic
classified as 90 days or more delinquent andastikuing. Generally, we do not utilize this catggof loan classification unless: (1) the loa
repaid in full shortly after the period end dat®) the loan is well secured and there are no a&sbertpending legal barriers to its collectior
(3) the borrower has remitted all scheduled paymant is otherwise in substantial compliance withterms of the loan, but the processir
loan payments actually received or the renewahefldan has not occurred for administrative reas@h®ecember 31, 2014, we had loan:
in this category.

We typically obtain new thirdsarty appraisals or collateral valuations when Vaeg a loan on nonaccrual status, conduct impairtesting o
complete a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR)less the existing valuation information for ttodlateral is sufficiently current to comply w
the requirements of our Appraisal and Collateralugtion Policy (“ACV Policy”). We also obtain newhitd—party appraisals or collate
valuations when the judicial foreclosure processctales with respect to real estate collateral, whén we otherwise acquire actua
constructive title to real estate collateral. Iigidn to third-party appraisals, we use updated valuation infdomatased on Multiple Listir
Service data, broker opinions of value, actualssplices of similar assets sold by us and appreasss prices in response to offers to purc
similar assets owned by us to provide interim viduainformation for consolidated financial statathand management purposes. Our /
Policy establishes the maximum useful life of d estiate appraisal at 18 months. Because appraisdlspdated valuations utilize historice
“ask—side”data in reaching valuation conclusions, the appdatr updated valuation may or may not reflectabieial sales price that we v
receive at the time of sale.

Real estate appraisals may include up to threeoappes to value: the sales comparison approacimebhme approach (for inconproducing
property) and the cost approach. Not all appraistilize all three approaches. Depending on theneadf the collateral and market conditic
we may emphasize one approach over another inndieieg the fair value of real estate collateral.pfgisals may also contain differ
estimates of value based on the level of occupan@fanned future improvements. “As-igéluations represent an estimate of value bas
current market conditions with no changes to the aiscondition of the real estate collateral. “Aabdlized” or “as-completed¥aluation:
assume the real estate collateral will be impraweed stated standard or achieve its highest andulsesin terms of occupancy. “As-stabilized
or “as-completed” valuations may be subject toesent value adjustment for market conditions ostifeedule of improvements.

As part of the asset classification process, welbgvan exit strategy for real estate collateraDREO by assessing overall market conditi
the current use and condition of the asset, ankiigisest and best use. For most incopreducing real estate, we believe that investohge
most highly a stable income stream from the assgtsequently, we perform a comparative evaluatiodetermine whether conducting a :
on an “as—is”, “as—stabilized” or “as—improved” tsas most likely to produce the highest net rediie value. If we determine that the “as
stabilized” or “as—improvedbasis is appropriate, we then complete the negesaarovements or tenant stabilization tasks, whit applicabl
time value discount and improvement expenses imcated into our estimates of the expected costsetb As of December 31, 2014
substantially all impaired real estate loan cofi@tand OREO were valued on an “as—is basis.”

Estimates of the net realizable value of real estatlateral also include a deduction for the efg@costs to sell the collateral or such c
deductions from the cash flows resulting from tpheration and liquidation of the asset as are apjatep For most real estate collateral sul
to the judicial foreclosure process, we apply &% deduction to the value of the asset to deteritiaeexpected costs to sell the asset.
estimate includes one year of real estate taxéss sammissions and miscellaneous repair and ¢Jasists. If we receive a purchase offer
requires unbudgeted repairs, or if the expectediusn period for the asset exceeds one year,her include, on a case-logse basis, tl
costs of the additional real estate taxes and repad any other material holding costs in the etqzbcosts to sell the collateral. For OREO
apply a 7.0% deduction to determine the expectstsdo sell, as expenses for real estate taxeeepaits are expensed when incurred.
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Nonperforming Assets Summary

The following table below sets forth the amountd aategories of our nonperforming loans and nopetihg assets.

At December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans

One-to-four family residential $ 435¢ % 4641 % 729¢ % 10,62: $ 10,05¢
Multi-family mortgage 4,481 7,09¢ 3,517 14,80° 13,22¢
Nonresidential real estate 3,24¢ 4,214 8,98t 29,927 12,42¢
Construction and land — 382 2,21( 3,24¢ 6,13¢
Commercial 76 77 25¢€ 2,92( 3,76¢€
Commercial leases — — = 22 72
Consumer 3 12 — 3 3

12,16: 16,42« 22,267 61,547 45,69¢
Loans Past Due Over 90 Days, still accruing — 22¢ 32¢ 35C 81¢
Loans held-for-sale — — 1,752 — —

Other real estate owned

One-to-four family residential 80¢€ 901 1,76( 5,32¢ 3,01t
Multi-family mortgage 2,307 1,921 72C 3,65¢ 2,48¢
Nonresidential real estate 88t 1,181 3,50« 4,90¢ 7,37¢
Land 13t 27¢ 1,328 2,23 1,74¢
4,13¢ 4,27¢ 7,301 16,12¢ 14,62:
Nonperforming assets (excluding purchased impddoads and
purchased other real estate owned) 16,29¢ 20,93( 31,65¢ 78,02: 61,13¢
Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential 52 10C 38C 3,941 —
Multi-family mortgage — — — 1,41¢ —
Nonresidential real estate — 1,63: 2,56¢ 3,37¢ —
Construction and land — — 1,021 4,78¢ —
Commercial — 23 20 1,07¢ —
52 1,75¢ 3,98¢ 14,60( —
Purchased other real estate owned
One-to-four family residential 457 17€ 32( 327 —
Nonresidential real estate — — 462 2,54¢ —
Land 1,76¢ 1,852 2,26¢ 3,48 —
2,22¢ 2,02¢ 3,057 6,35¢ —
Purchased impaired loans and other real estatecbwne 2,271 3,78¢ 7,04( 20,95¢ —
Total nonperforming assets $ 18,57 $ 2471 $ 38,698 % 98,977 $ 61,13t
Ratios
Nonperforming loans to total loans 1.02% 1.6€% 2.7(% 6.08% 4.34%
Nonperforming loans to total loafts 1.02 1.5C 2.32 4,92 4,32
Nonperforming assets to total assets 1.27 1.7C 2.61 6.3 3.9¢
Nonperforming assets to total asséts 1.11 1.44 2.14 4.9¢ 3.9¢
1) These asset quality ratios exclude purchas@dired loans and purchased other real estate oreselling from the Downers Grove National Bank
acquisition.
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Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets decreased by $6.1 million0t42 due in substantial part to the execution of tleen@any's plan to materially red
future nonperforming asset expenses and acceldratesturn to the Company's historical asset quéditels. Nonperforming assets tote
$18.6 million at December 31, 2014 and $24.7 millet December 31, 2013The decrease in nonperforming assets for the grde:
December 31, 2014 reflected the disposition of $4ilBon in OREO, and numerous other nonperfornmasget resolutions.

Approximately $5.4 million nonaccrual loans weranisferred to OREO during the year ended Decemhe2®U. These were primarily lar
multifamily and nonresidential loans, comprising tmajority of the decrease in nonaccrual loansttierperiod. We continue to experie
modest quantities of defaults on residential loamscipally due either to the borrowsrpersonal financial condition or deteriorated atelta
value.

Other Real Estate Owned

Real estate that is acquired through foreclosuiedred in lieu of foreclosure is classified as ORItil it is sold. When real estate is acqu
through foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclestt is recorded at its fair value, less thereated costs of disposal. If the fair value of
property is less than the loan balance, the diffezgés charged against the allowance for loan fosse

The following represents the rollfoward of OREO dhed composition of OREO properties.

At and For the Years Ended December

31,
2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands)
Beginning balance $ 6,30¢ $ 10,35¢
New foreclosed properties 5,44¢ 5,517
Valuation adjustments (44¢) (57¢)
Sales (4,949 (8,986
Ending balance $ 6,35¢ § 6,30¢
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Valuation Net OREO Valuation Net OREO
Balance Allowance Balance Balance Allowance Balance
(Dollars in thousands)

One-to—four family residential $ 861 $ (55 $ 80€ $ 1,011 $ (110 $ 901
Multi-family mortgage 2,53( (223 2,301 1,921 — 1,921
Nonresidential real estate 964 (79 88t 1,45¢ (2749) 1,181
Land 217 (82 13t 41€ (147 27t
4,57: (439 4,13: 4,80: (525) 4,27¢

Acquired other real estate owned:
One—to—four family residential 457 — 457 18C 4) 17¢
Land 2,22¢ (457) 1,76¢ 2,22t (379 1,852
2,68 (457) 2,22¢ 2,40t (377) 2,02¢
Total other real estate owned $ 7,25¢  $ (899 $ 6,35¢ $ 7,208 $ (902) $ 6,30¢
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Activity in the valuation allowance is as follows:

At and For the Years Ended December

31,
2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands)
Beginning of year $ 90z $ 1,18(
Additions charged to expense 43¢ 55C
Reductions from sales of other real estate owned (444) (82¢)
End of year $ 89€ $ 90z

Loan Extensions and Modifications

Maturing loans are subject to our standard loarenmdting policies and practices. Due to the needltain updated borrower and guara
financial information, collateral information or fwepare revised loan documentations, loans irptheess of renewal may appear as pas
because the information needed to underwrite avanef the loan is not available to us prior to thaturity date of the loan. At times, short
term administrative extensions, which are typica§ days in duration, are granted to facilitate pgrounderwriting. In general, lo
modifications are subject to a risk-adjusted pgcamalysis.

When appropriate, we evaluate loan extensions adifioations in accordance with ASC 340 and related federal regulatory guide
concerning TDRs and the FFIEC workout guidanceetemnine the required treatment for nonaccrualistahd risk classification purposes
general, if we grant a loan modification or extensihat involves either the absence of principapdization (other than for revolving lines
credit which are customarily granted on interasly terms), or if we grant a material extensioranfexisting loan amortization period in ex
of our underwriting standards, the loan will beggld on nonaccrual status and impairment testinglwded to determine whether a spe
valuation allowance or loss classification / chaoffeis required. If the loan is well secured byatyundance of collateral and the collectak
of both interest and principal is probable, thenlogay remain on accrual status, but it will be siféesd as a TDR due to the concession ma
the loan principal amortization payment componénkan in full compliance with the payment requiremts specified in a loan modificat
will not be considered as past due, but may notethebe placed on nonaccrual status or be clatsiea TDR, as appropriate under
circumstances.

In accordance with the FFIEC workout guidance,@oenpany will restructure a note into two separatees (A/B structure), charging off 1
entire B portion of the note. The A note is struetliwith appropriate loan-tealue and cash flow coverage ratios that provideafdigt
likelihood of repayment. The A note is classifiedeanonperforming note until the borrower has displayddstorical payment performance
a reasonable time prior to and subsequent to steucturing. A period of sustained repayment foleast six months generally is require:
return the note to accrual status provided thatagament has determined that the performance ismably expected to continue. The A r
will be classified as a restructured note (eitherfgrming or nonperforming) through the calendaaryef the restructuring that the histor
payment performance has been established.

Troubled Debt Restructurings
The Company had $3.0 million of TDRs at December2B14 , compared to $3.3 million at December 31,32, with $38,000 and $53,000

specific valuation allowances allocated to thosanoat December 31, 2014 and 2Q1Bespectively. The Company had no outstar
commitments to borrowers whose loans are classifetiDRs.
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The following table presents TDRs by class.

At December 31,

2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands)

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 1917 $ 2,09¢
Multi-family mortgage 51C 51¢
Accrual troubled debt restructured loans 2,42i 2,611
One-to-four family residential real estate 23C 34z
Multi-family mortgage 34¢ 384
Nonaccrual troubled debt restructured loans 57¢ 72€
Total troubled debt restructured loans $ 3,00: § 3,331

Risk Classification of Loans

Our policies, consistent with regulatory guidelinpsovide for the classification of loans and othssets that are considered to be of I
quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assedesignated as special mention.

A substandard asset is inadequately protectedéygulrent sound worth and paying capacity of thegobor of the collateral pledged, if al
Assets so classified must have a vasfined weakness, or weaknesses, that jeopardizdgytiidation of the debt. They are characterizedha
distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain sertoss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Tibk rating guidance published by the C
clarifies that a loan with a wetlefined weakness does not have to present a plitpabidefault for the loan to be rated substanidand the
an individual loars loss potential does not have to be distinct lierlban to be rated substandard. An asset classifiedoubtful has all t
weaknesses inherent in one classified as substamdtr the added characteristic that the weaknessd® collection or liquidation in full, «
the basis of currently existing facts, conditioasd values, highly questionable and improbablee#ssslassified as loss are those consic
uncollectible and of such little value that theintinuance as assets is not warranted; such balameepromptly chargeaff as required k
applicable federal regulations. A special mentisses has potential weaknesses that deserve manatyeigiese attention. If left uncorrect
these potential weaknesses may result in detenaraff the repayment prospects for the asset dheéninstitutions credit position at sor
future date. Special mention assets are not adyaisssified and do not expose an institutionuffisient risk to warrant adverse classificati

Based on a review of our assets at December 314 2@lassified loans consisted of $14.0 millionfpening substandard loans agd2.:
million of nonperforming loans. As of December 2014 , we had $3.4 million of assets designatexpasial mention.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichciuigrged to operations in order to maintain thenadloce for loan losses at a level we con:
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit lasst® loan portfolio. In determining the level thie allowance for loan losses, we cons
past and current loss experience, trends in nonathryans, evaluations of real estate collatetarent economic conditions, volume and 1
of lending, adverse situations that may affect mdweer’s ability to repay a loan and the levels of nonpening and other classified loans. -
amount of the allowance is based on estimates landltimate losses may vary from the estimates @® imformation becomes available
events change.

We provide for loan losses based on the allowanethod. Accordingly, all loan losses are chargethérelated allowance and all recove
are credited to it. Additions to the allowance lman losses are provided by charges to income basedrious factors that, in our judgmi
deserve current recognition in estimating probafderred credit losses. We review the loan portfoin an ongoing basis and make provis
for loan losses on a quarterly basis to maintagnalfowance for loan losses in accordance with @aitog principles generally accepted in
United States of America. The allowance for loassts consists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impanesidential non-owner occupied mortgage, nfaltivily mortgage, nonresidential r

estate, construction and land, commercial, and ocemial lease loans for which the recorded investmerthe loan exceeds t
measured value of the loan; and
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» general allowances for loan losses for each loasschased on historical loan loss experience; diustanents to historical lo
experience (general allowances), maintained to rcomeertainties that affect our estimate of probahturred credit losses for ei
loan class.

The adjustments to historical loss experience ased on our evaluation of several factors, inclgdevels of, and trends in, past due
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chastjs-and recoveries; trends in volume and termeafs, including any credit concentration
the loan portfolio; experience, and ability of lémgl management and other relevant staff; and ratiand local economic trends :
conditions.

We evaluate the allowance for loan losses based thm combined total of the specific and generahpanents. Generally, when the |
portfolio increases, absent other factors, thewallice for loan loss methodology results in a higtheliar amount of estimated proba
incurred credit losses than would be the case witlioe increase. Conversely, when the loan poctfdecreases, absent other factors
allowance for loan loss methodology generally rissil a lower dollar amount of estimated probabksés than would be the case withou
decrease.

We review our loan portfolio on an ongoing basisiatermine whether any loans require classificatind impairment testing in accorda
with applicable regulations and accounting priregplWhen we classify loans as either substandadduabtful and in certain other cases,
review the collateral and future cash flow projees to determine if a specific reserve is necesSdrg allowance for loan losses repres
amounts that have been established to recognimer@ttcredit losses in the loan portfolio that laoéh probable and reasonably estimable ¢
date of the consolidated financial statements. Whelassify problem loans as loss, we chargetaffismounts.

Our calculation of the general component of thevedince for loan losses includes the FASB disclosegeirement that each loan portfe
category must be segmented into specific loan eafSASB Standards Update 2010-20 (ASU 210-ZRgceivables (Topic 310): Disclosu
about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivabled the Allowance for Credit Lossesl)oan class segmentation tables are presented &
4 of the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statesieint Item 8 of this Form 18 To maintain consistency, the loan class segntientavas
also applied within the 18uarter loss history that we use to calculate teegal component of the allowance for loan lossd®rent ris
factor weightings were adjusted based on our etialuaf their relevance to the new loan classed, duplicative historical loss factors w
eliminated from the loan class segmentation.

While we use the best information available to mekaluations, future adjustments to the allowaneg become necessary if conditions d
substantially from the information that we usedriaking the evaluations. Our determinations as ¢origk classification of our loans and
amount of our allowance for loan losses are sulifeceview by our regulatory agencies, which caguiee that we establish additional |
allowances.
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Net Charge-offs and Recoveries

The following table sets forth activity in our allance for loan losses.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of year $ 14,15¢  $ 18,03: $ 31,72¢ % 22,18 $ 18,62:
Charge-offs
One-to-four family residential (8793 (1,50%) (12,36¢€) (5,316) (2,292
Multi-family mortgage (1,230 (1,832 (7,209 (3,519 (2,385
Nonresidential real estate (1,729 (577) (18,167 (69¢) (2,899
Construction and land @ (949) (4,317 (2,519 (525
Commercial loans (129 (42%) (4,960 (1,399 (1,179
Commercial leases (8) — (127 (72 —
Consumer (22 (55) (203%) (93 (16)
(3,979 (5,337) (47,23) (13,60¢) (9,289
Recoveries
One-to-four family residential 41¢€ 447 238 51 69
Multi-family mortgage 10C 23€ 53¢ 12t 3
Nonresidential real estate 427 51¢ 32¢ 73 633
Construction and land 377 462 25C — 58
Commercial loans 1,22¢ 47C 62€ 178 1
Consumer 3 8 42 7 —
2,54¢ 2,14: 2,01¢ 42¢ 764
Net charge-offs (1,429 (3,199 (45,217 (13,177 (8,525
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (73€) (687) 31,52: 22,72 12,08:
Balance at end of year $ 11,99C $ 14,15  $ 18,03t % 31,72¢  $ 22,18(
Ratios
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.1%% 0.31% 3.91% 1.04% 0.75%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans 98.17 76.8¢ 63.6¢ 41.47 47.6¢
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.01 1.27 1.72 2.52 2.07

Our allowance for loan losses decreased $2.2 millior 15.3% , in 2014 primarily because the growth in our loan portidibcused on loe
types with lower loss ratios based on our histbricss experience, and improvements in the hisabdizan loss factors that occurred as
losses incurred in earlier periods aged and thus wither eliminated from the calculation or aseija lower weight. The impact of these
factors was partially offset by an increase of $08,, or 25.3% in the portion of the allowance for loan lossgslautable to loans individual
evaluated for impairment to $470,000 at DecembefB814 , compared to $375,000 at December 31, 2013

Although our loan portfolio increased by $71.9 moill for the year ended December 31, 201de combined impact of these two factors
sufficient to fully fund the allowance to reflettet growth in our loan portfolio.

Net charg-offs were $1.4 million and $3.2 million , respeely, for the years ended December 31, 2014 an@ 2@hd $45.2 milliorfor the
year endedDecember 31, 2012 The $31.5 million provision for loan losses fod12 included a $11.5 million charge relating to
consummation of two bulk loan sales and a $5.9aniltharge relating to the transfer of loans tohhkl-forsale portfolio in preparation fol
bulk sale.

A loan balance is classified as a loss and chaoffedthen it is confirmed that there is no readipparent source of repayment for the amou
the loan that is classified as loss. Confirmatian occur upon the receipt of updated third-parpraisal
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valuation information indicating that there is avlprobability of repayment upon sale of the collatethe final disposition of collateral whi
the net proceeds are insufficient to pay the lcaarxe in full, our failure to obtain possessiort@ftain consumepan collateral within certa
time limits specified by applicable federal regigdas, the conclusion of legal proceedings wherebihieowers obligation to repay is lega
discharged (such as a federal Chapter 7 bankryptmeeding), or when it appears that further foro@lection procedures are not likely
result in net proceeds in excess of the costslteato

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses
The following table sets forth our allowance foamolosses allocated by loan category. The allow#mrclan losses allocated to each cate

is not necessarily indicative of future losses iy garticular category and does not restrict the afsthe allowance to absorb losses in ¢
categories.

At December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each in Each
Allowance Loan Category Allowance Loan Category Allowance Loan Category
for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total
Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 214¢ $ 180,33 15200 $ 384¢ $ 201,38: 18.12% $ 4,72¢ $ 218,59t 20.8t%
Multi-family
mortgage 5,20% 480,34¢ 40.6( 4,444 396,05¢ 35.6¢ 4,58( 352,01¢ 33.6(
Nonresidential real
estate 2,94( 234,50( 19.82 3,73¢ 263,56 23.72 5,54t 264,67: 25.2¢
Construction and
land 80 1,88t 0.1€ 39: 6,57( 0.5¢ 1,031 8,552 0.8z
Commercial loans 554 66,88 5.6t 731 54,25¢ 4.8¢ 1,32¢ 61,38¢ 5.8¢€
Commercial leases 1,00¢ 217,141 18.3¢ 94¢€ 187,11 16.8¢ 66€ 139,78: 13.3¢
Consumer 54 2,051 0.17 57 2,317 0.21 163 2,74F 0.2¢€
$ 11,99C $ 1,183,14 100.0% $ 14,15 $ 1,111,26. 100.0(% $ 18,038 $ 1,047,75! 100.0%
At December 31,
2011 2010
Percent of Percent of
Loans in Each Loans in Each
Allowance for Loan Balances Category to Allowance for Loan Balances Category to
Loan Losses by Category Total Loans Loan Losses by Category Total Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family
residential $ 6,10 $ 272,03: 21.6% $ 3,55¢ $ 256,30( 23.92%
Multi-family mortgage 6,08: 423,61! 33.67 7,03z 296,91¢ 27.71
Nonresidential real
estate 13,75¢ 311,64 24.77 5,71¢ 281,98 26.31
Construction and land 1,68¢ 19,85: 1.5¢ 2,461 18,39¢ 1.7z
Commercial loans 3,53¢ 93,93: 7.4€ 2,87¢ 64,67¢ 6.04
Commercial leases 504 134,99( 10.7: 51¢ 151,10° 14.1C
Consumer 58 2,14 0.17 20 2,182 0.2C
$ 31,72¢ $ 1,258,20! 100.000 $ 22,18( $ 1,071,56! 100.0(%
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Sources of Funds

Deposits.At December 31, 2014 , our deposits totaled $113l®dn . Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.@8lion and nonintereshearing
demand deposits totaled $130.7 million . NOW, sgwimnd money market accounts totaled $848.1 milliddoninterestbearing demar
deposits at December 31, 2014 included $609,000ténnal checking accounts, such as accounts fak Bashiers checks and money orde
At December 31, 2014 , we had $232.9 million otifieates of deposit outstanding, of which $161.llion had maturities of one year or le
Although a significant portion of our certificate$ deposit are shorteéerm certificates of deposit, we believe, basechistorical experienc
and our current pricing strategy, that we will neta significant portion of these accounts uponurigt

The following table sets forth the distributiontofal deposit accounts, by account type.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Noninterest-bearing demand:
Retail $ 36,74 2.9¢% —% $ 37,77¢ 3.01% —% $ 39,17: 3.0%% —%
Commercial 91,08: 7.4C — 91,97¢ 7.31 — 95,63¢ 7.41 —
Total noninterest-bearing
demand 127,83( 10.3¢ — 129,75! 10.3¢ — 134,80 10.4¢ —
Savings deposits 153,67: 12.4% 0.1C 147,44. 11.7: 0.1C 144,68: 11.22 0.1C
Money market accounts 347,43t 28.2( 0.32 343,82 27.3¢ 0.3¢ 346,11¢ 26.8¢ 0.3¢
Interest-bearing NOW
accounts 350,40: 28.4¢ 0.1C 347,52¢ 27.65 0.11 335,55: 26.0z 0.1z
Certificates of deposit 252,62¢ 20.51 0.5¢€ 288,35: 22.9¢ 0.67 328,52¢ 25.47 0.77
$ 1,231,971 100.0% $ 1,256,90 100.0%6 $ 1,289,69 100.00%
The following table sets forth certificates of dsjpdoy time remaining until maturity at December 3014 :
Maturity
3 Months or Over 3t0 6 Over 6 to 12 Over 12
Less Months Months Months Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Certificates of deposit less than $100,00'$ 37,28. $ 32,27¢ % 46,327 $ 4522 % 161,10¢
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more 13,81¢ 8,87: 22,44¢ 26,61¢ 71,75(
Total certificates of deposit $ 51,09¢ $ 41,15 $ 68,77¢ $ 71,83¢ $ 232,85¢

Borrowings. Our borrowings consist primarily of Federal Homeahdank advances and repurchase agreements. Twifng table sets for
information concerning balances and interest ratesur borrowings.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at end of year $ 12,92:  $ 3,058 % 5,567
Average balance during year 2,98( 2,96¢ 8,16:
Maximum outstanding at any month end 12,92: 3,39¢ 10,08:
Weighted average interest rate at end of year 0.1€% 0.25% 1.7%%
Average interest rate during year 0.27% 0.47% 1.27%
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At December 31, 2014 , we had the capacity to voan additional $308.9 millionnder our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furtheore, w
had unpledged securities that could be used toostijppexcess of $27.5 million of additional FHLB®rrowings.

At December 31, 2014 , we had a line of credit wfith Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago. At DecembgefPB14, there were no outstand
federal funds borrowings and there was no outstandalance on the line of credit.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Companys consolidated financial statements and the relatéels have been prepared in accordance with G&MAP generally require
the measurement of financial position and operatgsglts in terms of historical dollars without eafering changes in the relative purcha
power of money over time due to inflation. The impaf inflation, if any, is reflected in the inciesd cost of our operations. Unlike indus
companies, our assets and liabilities are primaribnetary in nature. As a result, changes in mairketest rates have a greater impac
performance than the effects of inflation.

Management of Interest Rate Risk

Qualitative AnalysisA significant form of market risk is interest raigk. Interest rate risk results from timing di#aces in the maturity
repricing of our assets, liabilities and off balarsheet contractsi.g., forward loan commitments), the effect of loan psepants and depo
withdrawals, the difference in the behavior of lexgdand funding rates arising from the use of défe indices and “yield curve rislkdrising
from changing rate relationships across the spectofi maturities for constant or variable creditkrimvestments. In addition to direc
affecting net interest income, changes in markera@st rates can also affect the amount of new toaginations, the ability of borrowers
repay variable rate loans, the volume of loan pyepnts and refinancings, the carrying value of gtweent securities classified as available
for-sale and the flow and mix of deposits.

The general objective of our interest rate risk aggment is to determine the appropriate level Sk given our business strategy and
manage that risk in a manner that is consistertt witr policy to reduce, to the extent possible, ékposure of our net interest incomi
changes in market interest rates. Our Asset/LigbiMlanagement Committee (“ALCO”)which consists of certain members of se
management, evaluates the interest rate risk inhénecertain assets and liabilities, our operatemyironment and capital and liquic
requirements, and modifies our lending, investimyl aleposit gathering strategies accordingly. Thar8oof Directors’ Asset/Liability
Management Committee then reviews the ALE@ttivities and strategies, the effect of thosategies on our net interest margin, anc
effect that changes in market interest rates whaige on the economic value of our loan and seeangortfolios as well as the intrinsic valu
our deposits and borrowings, and reports to tHeBiird of Directors.

We actively evaluate interest rate risk in conrmattvith our lending, investing and deposit actestiIn an effort to better manage intenegt¢-
risk, we have demphasized the origination of residential mortglages, and have increased our emphasis on thenatign of nonresidenti
real estate loans, mulamily mortgage loans, commercial loans and comiakleases. In addition, depending on market irsterates and o
capital and liquidity position, we generally selll @ a portion of our longer-term, fixed-rate msntial loans, usually on a servicingtainet
basis. Further, we primarily invest in shorter-dioma securities, which generally have lower yieltsmpared to longeierm investment
Shortening the average maturity of our intereshiegrassets by increasing our investments in shteten loans and securities, as well as |
with variable rates of interest, helps to bettetainahe maturities and interest rates of our asseddiabilities, thereby reducing the exposut
our net interest income to changes in market isteates. Finally, we have classified all of ourastment portfolio as available-fegle so as
provide flexibility in liquidity management.

We utilize a combination of analyses to monitor Baenk's exposure to changes in interest rates. The edonatue of equity analysis is
model that estimates the change in net portfolioev@'NPV") over a range of interest rate scenarios. NPV igdtheounted present value
expected cash flows from assets, liabilities anfibafance sheet contracts. In calculating changeBlRV, we assume estimated |
prepayment rates, reinvestment rates and deposdydates that seem most likely based on histoggpkerience during prior interest t
changes.

Our net interest income analysis utilizes the digdaved from the dynamic GAP analysis, describelbeand applies several additio
elements, including actual interest rate indiced emargins, contractual limitations such as interat floors and caps and the U.S. Tree
yield curve as of the balance sheet date. In anfditive apply consistent parallel yield curve shiftsboth directions) to determine poss
changes in net interest income if the theoreti@bycurve shifts occurred instantaneously. Netrigsgt income analysis also adjusts the dyn
GAP repricing analysis based on changes in prepalyrates resulting from the parallel yield curvétsh

Our dynamic GAP analysis determines the relatidarit® between the repricing of assets and liadslibver multiple periods of time (rang
from overnight to five years). Dynamic GAP analyisisludes expected cash flows from loans and mgegzcked
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securities, applying prepayment rates based omlifferential between the current interest rate #rel market interest rate for each loan
security type. This analysis identifies mismatcireshe timing of asset and liability repricing bdbes not necessarily provide an acct
indicator of interest rate risk because it omits fdoctors incorporated into the net interest incamalysis.

Quantitative Analysis.The following table sets forth, as of December 3214 , the estimated changes in the BarkPV and net intere
income that would result from the designated irtsta@ous parallel shift in the U.S. Treasury yialdve. Computations of prospective effect
hypothetical interest rate changes are based oremws assumptions including relative levels of ratikterest rates, loan prepayments
deposit decay, and should not be relied upon asdtide of actual results.

Decrease in Estimated

Estimated Decrease in NPV Net Interest Income
Change in Interest Rates (basis points) Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

+400 $ (43,359 (18.99% $ (2,06¢€) (2.30%
+300 (31,330 (13.69) (759 (1.63)
+200 (20,207 (8.82) (359 (0.77)
+100 (11,757 (5.13) (187) (0.40

0 — — — —

The Company has opted not to include an estimata ftecrease in rates at December 31, 231the results are not relevant given the ctL
targeted federal funds rate of the Federal Operkél@ommittee. The table set forth above indicétias at December 31, 2014 the event ¢
an immediate 200 basis point increase in intergsisy the Bank would be expected to experience&2¥8decrease in NPV and$a54,00!
decrease in net interest income. This data doeseflett any actions that we may undertake in respdo changes in interest rates, suc
changes in rates paid on certain deposit accowagedcbon local competitive factors, which could sedthe actual impact on NPV and
interest income, if any.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodolaged in the above interest rate risk measurembtadeling changes in NPV and
interest income requires that we make certain agsans that may or may not reflect the manner incihactual yields and costs respon
changes in market interest rates. The NPV andntetest income table presented above assumeshthatomposition of our interest-rate-
sensitive assets and liabilities existing at thgitr@ng of a period remains constant over the pebeing measured and, accordingly, the
does not reflect any actions that we may undertak@sponse to changes in interest rates, suclhasges in rates paid on certain dej
accounts based on local competitive factors. Theetalso assumes that a particular change in siteages is reflected uniformly across
yield curve regardless of the duration to matueitghe repricing characteristics of specific asseis liabilities. Accordingly, although the NI
and net interest income table provides an indioadioour sensitivity to interest rate changes padicular point in time, such measurement:
not intended to and do not provide a precise fatechthe effect of changes in market interestsrate our net interest income and will di
from actual results.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity Management— Bank. The overall objective of our liquidity managemesnta ensure the availability of sufficient cashdario mee
all financial commitments and to take advantageneéstment opportunities. We manage liquidity imlexrto meet deposit withdrawals
demand or at contractual maturity, to repay borngwias they mature, and to fund new loans andtimezgs as opportunities arise.

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, prin@pd interest payments on loans and securitie, tare lesser extent, wholesale borrowi
the proceeds from maturing securities and steort+ investments, and the proceeds from the sdlédsans and securities. The sched
amortization of loans and securities, as well ax@eds from borrowings, are predictable sourcesiruds. Other funding sources, howe
such as deposit inflows, mortgage prepayments anthage loan sales are greatly influenced by maritetest rates, economic conditions
competition.

Our cash flows are derived from operating actisitimvesting activities and financing activitiesraported in the Consolidated Statemen
Cash Flows in our Consolidated Financial Statemédts primary investing activities are the origipatfor investment of one-ttsur family
residential mortgage loans, muiéimily mortgage loans, nonresidential real estatm$, commercial leases, construction and lands)o@m
commercial loans and the purchase of investmenirgies and mortgage-backed securities. Duringyders ended December 31, 202201
and 2012 , our loans originated for investmentléot&513.4 million , $524.6 million , and $364.6llioh , respectively. Purchases of lo
totaled $5.6 million for the year ended December 31
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2012 . There were no loan purchases in the yeatsdePecember 31, 2014 and 2013. Purchases of sesuataled $73.1 million $74.2
million and $35.4 million for the years ended Detem31, 2014 , 2013, and 2012 , respectively.

These activities were funded primarily by principabayments on loans and securities, and the $atmms and securities. During the ye
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , princg@yments on loans totaled $432.6 million , $258illion , and $518.3 million
respectively. During the years ended December 8142 2013 and 2012 , principal repayments on gexuurtotaled $7.2 million $13.t
million , and $19.7 million , respectively. Duririge years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2pfizeeds from maturities and sale
securities totaled $55.8 million , $26.8 millioand $30.6 million , respectively. During the yeamsled December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201:
the proceeds from the sale of loans held-for-sabded $5.5 million , $11.7 million and $21.0 rrolti , respectively.

Loan origination commitments totaled $30.5 mill@nDecember 31, 2014 , and consisted of $20.2anithf fixed-rate loans arf10.3 millior
of adjustable-rate loans. Unused lines of credd atandby letters of credit granted to custometaléd $109.6 million and $472,000
respectively, at December 31, 2014 . At DecembeRB14 , commitments to sell mortgages totaled $0 .

Deposit flows are generally affected by the levieimarket interest rates, the interest rates andrddgrms and conditions on deposit prod
offered by our banking competitors, and other fectiVe had net deposit decreases of $41.0 milli®29,6 million and $50.0 milliofior the
years endeDecember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2Q12spectively. At times during recent periods, veee not actively competed for higher «
deposit accounts, including certificates of depadibosing instead to fund loan growth from thenl@amd lease repayments. Certificate
deposit that are scheduled to mature in one yel@ssrfrom December 31, 2014 totaled $161.0 milli@ased upon prior experience and
current pricing strategy, we believe that we wallain a significant portion of these deposits uft@ir maturities.

We anticipate that we will have sufficient fundsadable to meet current loan commitments and lioesredit and maturing certificates
deposit that are not renewed or extended. We gijneeanain fully invested and may utilize additidreources of funds through FHLE
advances, of which $10.0 million were outstandibdpacember 31, 2014 . At December 31, 2@&thad the ability to borrow an additio
$308.9 millionunder our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furthesre, we have unpledged securities that could bd ts support borrowin
in excess of $27.5 million . Finally, at Decemb#r 2014, we had a line of credit available with the Fed&aserve Bank of Chicago.
December 31, 2014 , there was no outstanding balamc¢his credit line.

Liquidity Management- Company.The liquidity needs of the Company on an unconsddid basis consist primarily of operating expel
dividends to stockholders and stock repurchases.pfimary sources of liquidity for the Company eumtty are $9.7 milliorof cash and ca
equivalents and any cash dividends from the Bank.

Our Board of Directors declared four cash divideratgging from $0.01 to $0.03 per share during 2@dtaling $1.7 million. The Board ¢
Directors of the Bank did not declare any divideddsng 2014. We did not conduct any share repwehan 2014.

As of December 31, 2014ve were not aware of any known trends, eventmoertainties that had or were reasonably likelgawe a materi
impact on our liquidity. As of December 31, 20Mle had no other material commitments for capitgleexitures.

Capital Management

Capital Management - BankThe overall objectives of our capital managemeattarensure the availability of sufficient captimlsupport loar
deposit and other asset and liability growth optties and to maintain capital to absorb unforadesses or writelowns that are inherent
the business risks associated with the bankingsimguWe seek to balance the need for higher ddpials to address such unforeseen
and the goal to achieve an adequate return oraghieatinvested by our stockholders.

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requiretaeadministered by the federal banking agencieslufe to meet minimum capi
requirements can trigger certain mandatory, andiplysadditional discretionary, actions by the O@1@t, if undertaken, could have a di
material effect on the Bankfinancial statements. Under capital adequacyediuies and the regulatory framework for prompt ective actior
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines thablve quantitative measures of the Bank’s asdetsilities, and certain off-balancsee
items as calculated under regulatory accountingtigess. The Banls capital amounts and classification are also stibjequalitative judgmen
by regulators about components, risk weightingd, @her factors.

The prompt corrective action regulations provideeficlassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitaliz
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not usedepoesent overall financial conditi
Adequately capitalized institutions require regotgtapproval to accept brokered deposits. If urajgitalized, a financial institutios’capita
distributions, asset growth and expansion are didhiand for the submission of a capital restorasaequired.
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The Company and the Bank have each adopted Regul@apital Plans that require the Bank to maintaifier 1 leverage ratio of at least
and a total riskeased capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimuipiteiratios set forth in the Regulatory Capitahid will be increased a
other minimum capital requirements will be estdid$ if and as necessary. In accordance with theaulBtegy Capital Plans, neither -
Company nor the Bank will pursue any acquisitiongoswth opportunity, declare any dividend or cortdaiey stock repurchase that wc
cause the Bank's total riflased capital ratio and/or its Tier 1 leveragertifall below the established minimum capitalisv In addition, th
Company will continue to maintain its ability torge as a source of financial strength to the Bapkdlding at least $5.0 million of cash
liquid assets for that purpose.

At December 31, 2014 , actual and required capatas were:

To be Well-
BankFinancial Required for Capitalized under
Consolidated F.S.B. Capital Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Ratio Actual Ratio Purposes Action Provisions
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) 18.31% 16.21% 8.0(% 10.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets) 17.21 15.11 4.0C 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total assets) 13.0¢ 11.4F 4.0C 5.0C

See Note 11 of the "Notes to Consolidated Finargfatements” in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for a necitiation of the Banks equity unde
GAAP to regulatory capital.

As of December 31, 201tthe Bank was well capitalized under the regulafaaynework for prompt corrective action. There apeconditions ¢
events that management believes have changed thiésBaompt corrective action capitalization catggo

Capital Management - CompanyOn June 23, 2005, the Company completed its mudusteck conversion and sold 24,466,250 shar
common stock in a subscription offering at $10.@0 ghare and raised $240.3 million in offering s, net of offering expenses.

Company contributed $120.9 million of the net pext®to the Bank, paid off $30 million of term bawngs, loaned $19.6 million to our ES
and retained the remaining net proceeds of $72amilSubsequent to the mutualgtmck conversion, the Bank declared aggregate elivd o
$60.0 million to the Company. During this periog tGompany paid dividends totaling $36.8 million angended $64.6 milliofor shar
repurchases.

Total stockholders’ equity was $216.1 million atd@mber 31, 2014 , compared to $175.6 million atdbdwer 31, 2013 The increase in tof
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to the congal net impact of our $40.6 milliaf net income and our declaration and payment sf
dividends totaling $1.7 million during the year eddDecember 31, 2014The unallocated shares of common stock that @@ owns we
reflected as a $10.3 million reduction to stockleodd equity at December 31, 2014 , compared toJa3$million reduction to stockholders’
equity at December 31, 2013 .

Cash DividendsOur Board of Directors declared four cash divideofd$0.01 to $0.03 per share during 2014 , totaihgy million .

Stock Repurchase ProgranOur Board of Directors had authorized the repurehafsup to 5,047,423 shares of our common stocle
repurchase authorization expired on November 1%22The authorization permitted shares to be réyased in open market or negotiz
transactions, and pursuant to any trading planrttegt be adopted in accordance with Rule 10kB-the Securities and Exchange Commis:
The authorization was utilized at management'srelin, subject to the limitations set forth in BRulOb48 of the Securities and Excha
Commission and other applicable legal requiremeants, to price and other internal limitations ed&iigdd by the Board of Directors. As
December 31, 2014the Company had repurchased 4,239,134 sharés asrnmon stock out of the 5,047,423 shares tiblean authorize
for repurchase.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contraual Obligations

CommitmentsAs a financial services provider, we routinely ar@arty to various financial instruments with offléncesheet risks, such
commitments to extend credit, standby letters edlitr unused lines of credit and commitments tbleahs. While these contractual obligati
represent our future cash requirements, a signifip@rtion of commitments to extend credit may expiithout beingdrawn upon. Suc
commitments are subject to the same credit polaiesapproval process afforded to loans that weemakhough we consider commitment:
extend credit in determining our allowance for ldasses, at December 31, 2014e had made no provision for losses on commitm&
extend credit, and had no specific or general alue for losses on such commitments, as we havendnddstorical loss experience w
commitments to extend credit and we believed tbat n
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probable and reasonably estimable losses wereenhén our portfolio as a result of our commitmetdsextend credit. For additiot
information, see Note 14 of the "Notes to Consdédainancial Statements" in Item 8 of this FormkL0

Contractual Obligations.In the ordinary course of our operations, we eités certain contractual obligations. Such obligasi includ
operating leases for premises and equipment.

The following table summarizes our significant fixand determinable contractual obligations and roftieding needs by payment dats

December 31, 2014 The payment amounts represent those amountsodtiee trecipient and do not include any unamortigeginiums c
discounts or other similar carrying amount adjusttae

Payments Due by Period

One to
Less than Three Three to More than
One Year Years Five Years Five Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Contractual Obligations
Certificates of deposit $ 161,02( $ 65,28: $ 6,55t $ — 3 232,85¢
Borrowings 10,00( — — — 10,00¢(
Standby letters of credit 467 5 — — 472
Operating leases 44C 914 95C 5,16¢ 7,47(
Total $ 17192 $ 66,20 $ 7,508 $ 5,16¢ $ 250,80:

Commitments to extend credit $ 140,05 % — $ — $ — § 140,05°

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as thdsa &re reflective of significant judgments and entainties, and could potentially resul
materially different results under different asstioqs and conditions. We believe that the mostoaditaccounting policy upon which ¢
financial condition and results of operation depexal which involves the most complex subjectiveisiens or assessments, is as follows:

Allowance for Loan Losse. Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance foah losses involves a high degree of judgment.alowance fo
loan losses provides for probable incurred losssgd upon evaluations of known and inherent riskbé loan portfolio. We review the le
of the allowance on a quarterly basis and estaliishprovision for loan losses based upon histblbea loss experience, the nature and vol
of the loan portfolio, information about specifiorbower situations, estimated collateral valuesneenic conditions and other factors to as
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Aptbe material estimates that we must make to ksttathe allowance are loss exposur
default; the amount and timing of future cash flawsaffected loans; the value of collateral; aregermination of loss factors to be applie
the various elements of the loan portfolio. Alltbése estimates are susceptible to significantggaflthough we believe that we use the
information available to us to establish the alloeafor loan losses, future adjustments to thenaliece may be necessary if borrower finan
collateral valuation or economic conditions difeibstantially from the information and assumptiossd in making the evaluation. In addit
as an integral part of their supervisory and/omgiration process, our regulatory agencies peridigicaview the methodology and sufficier
of the allowance for loan losses. These agencigsraguire us to recognize additions to the alloveabased on their inclusion, exclusiot
modification of risk factors or differences in judgnts of information available to them at the tiofeheir examination. A large loss co
deplete the allowance and require increased pomgdo replenish the allowance, which would negdyiaffect earnings.

Income Taxes We consider accounting for income taxes a critic@ounting policy due to the subjective natureasfain estimates that «
involved in the calculation. We use the assetillighmethod of accounting for income taxes in whideferred tax assets and liabilities
established for the temporary differences betwéenfinancial reporting basis and the tax basiswfassets and liabilities. Under GAAF
deferred tax asset valuation allowance is requiodoe recognized if it is “more likely than ndtiat the deferred tax asset will not be reali
The determination of the realizability of the deéel tax assets is dependent upon judgments madeviiod managemenrd’ evaluation of a
available positive and negative evidence, inclugingr pretax losses and the events or conditions that caileed, forecasts of future taxa
income, and current and future economic and busioesditions. In assessing the realization of mefetax assets at December 31, 2011
Company concluded that it was more likely than tiwt the Company will not realize the benefits béde deductible differences
December 31, 2011, and therefore, a full valuasibtowance for deferred tax assets in the amou®2@t6 million was recorded for the enc
December 31, 2011.
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The Company reversed its DTA valuation allowancefaBecember 31, 2014 due to managensedétermination that it was more likely tl
not that the Company’s DTA would be realized. Thgedmination resulted from managemsntonsideration of all available negative
positive evidence.

Although we determined a valuation allowance watsraquired for any deferred tax assets at Decei®beP014, there is no guarantee tr
valuation allowance will not be required in theufiig.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE AB  OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding market risk see Item“Kanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations
Management of Interest Rate Risk.”

ITEM 8. EINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING
Management of BankFinancial Corporation is resgdador establishing and maintaining effective intd control over financial reporting.

Management evaluates the effectiveness of interoadrol over financial reporting and tests for abliity of recorded financial informatic
through a program of ongoing internal audits. Aggtem of internal control, no matter how well desid, has inherent limitations, includ
the possibility that a control can be circumventedverridden and misstatements due to error ardfraay occur and not be detected. #
because of changes in conditions, internal comffelctiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, eweneffective system of internal con
will provide only reasonable assurance with respeéinancial statement preparation.

The Companys internal control over financial reporting is sogess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregahe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantte agcounting principles generally acce|
in the United States of America. The Companiyiternal control over financial reporting inclgdéhose policies and procedures that (i) pe
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabétaild accurately and fairly reflect the transassicand dispositions of the assets of
Company; (i) provide reasonable assurance thatséi@ions are recorded as necessary to permit ratapa of financial statements
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America, and thatipgs and expenditures of the Comg
are being made only in accordance with authorinatiof management and directors of the Company;(déih@rovide reasonable assura
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauited acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compa assets that could have a mat
effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed the Company’s internal camtesl financial reporting as of December 31, 2Q1a6 required by Section 404 of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, based on the criteviaffective internal control over financial regog described in the “2013 Internal Control-
Integrated Framework,adopted by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioh the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on
assessment, management concludes that, as of Dec8ii2014 , the Company’s internal control owearficial reporting is effective.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm has issued their report on the effectivwnef the Compang’internal control ov
financial reporting. That report follows under theading, Report of Independent Registered Publaiwating Firm.

/sl F. Morgan Gasior /sl Paul A. Cloutier
F. Morgan Gasior Paul A. Cloutier
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer &resident Executive Vice President and Chieéaficial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have audited the accompanying consolidated nséattis of financial condition of BankFinancial Corgiion (the “Company”)as o
December 31, 2014 and 2013 , and the related ddased statements of operations, comprehensivariacghanges in stockholdeejuity
and cash flows for each of the years in the thesa-period ended December 31, 2014 . We also haditeed the Company’internal contre
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20hdsed on criteria established in #@13 Internal Contro}— Integrated Framework issued
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadway Commission (COSOlJhe Companys management is responsible for tl
financial statements, for maintaining effectiveemmal control over financial reporting, and for &ssessment of the effectiveness of int
control over financial reporting, included in thecampanying Report of Management on Internal Cor@wer Financial Reporting. O
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegarftial statements and an opinion on the Comgaingérnal control over financial report
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to iobtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaéments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordr@r financial reporting was maintained in all &l respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleage supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitlaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estisiatade by management, and evaluating the ovemnalhdial statement presentation. Our &
of internal control over financial reporting inckdl obtaining an understanding of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and euadutite design, and operating effectiveness ofiralecontrol based on the assessed risk
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstavwedelieve that our audits provid
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdidose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withosizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaslsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position
BankFinancial Corporation as of December 31, 201dt 2013, and the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the years in
three-year period ended December 31, 2Bleonformity with accounting principles generatlgcepted in the United States of America. .
in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31, 2014
based on criteria established in @13 Internal Control-+ategrated Framework issued by the Committee oh§gming Organizations of tl
Treadway Commission (COSO).

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
February 20, 2015
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2014 2013
Assets
Cash and due from other financial institutions $ 9,69: $ 15,78:
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial ingitins 49,88¢ 145,17¢
Cash and cash equivalents 59,58: 160,95
Securities, at fair value 121,17- 110,90
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses:
December 31, 2014, $11,990 and December 31, 2043154 1,172,35 1,098,07
Other real estate owned, net 6,35¢ 6,30¢
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank, at cost 6,257 6,06¢
Premises and equipment, net 34,28t 35,32¢
Accrued interest receivable 3,92¢ 3,93:
Core deposit intangible 1,85¢ 2,43:
Bank owned life insurance 22,19: 21,95¢
Deferred taxes 31,64 —
Other assets 5,781 7,627
Total assets $ 1,465,411 $ 1,453,59.
Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing $ 130,71: $ 126,68!
Interest-bearing 1,081,00. 1,126,02
Total deposits 1,211,71. 1,252,70:
Borrowings 12,92: 3,05¢
Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insurance 11,48¢ 10,43:
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 13,16¢ 11,77:
Total liabilities 1,249,228 1,277,96
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 stearterized, none issued or outstanding — —
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 sharthe@zed;
21,101,966 shares issued at December 31, 20140dr&d 2 211 211
Additional paid-in capital 193,84! 193,59«
Retained earnings (deficit) 31,58« (7,347)
Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares (10,27¢) (11,25%
Accumulated other comprehensive income 757 41¢
Total stockholders’ equity 216,12: 175,62
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 146541 $ 1,453,59.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Interest and dividend income
Loans, including fees $ 47,80: $ 47,69. $ 58,71¢
Securities 1,15¢ 981 1,48t
Other 39: 72C 52€
Total interest income 49,34¢ 49,39 60,72}
Interest expense
Deposits 3,03¢ 3,63¢ 4,34:
Borrowings 8 14 104
Total interest expense 3,04¢ 3,65: 4,44
Net interest income 46,30: 45,73¢ 56,28(
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (73€) (687) 31,52
Net interest income after provision for (recovery € loan losses 47,03¢ 46,42t 24,75¢
Noninterest income
Deposit service charges and fees 1,93: 2,00t 2,17¢
Other fee income 2,26¢ 2,25( 2,39¢
Insurance commissions and annuities income 431 474 51C
Gain on sale of loans, net 15¢ 1,46¢ 841
Loss on sale of securities (includes $7 accumulatieer comprehensive income
reclassifications for unrealized net losses onlalibs for sale securities for the
year ended December 31, 2014) @) — —
Gain (loss) on disposition of premises and equignmest 5 (43 (15€)
Loan servicing fees 41¢ 461 48¢
Amortization and impairment of servicing assets (149 (16¢) (320)
Earnings on bank owned life insurance 23t 31z 43¢
Trust 682 711 738
Other 73z 662 622
Total noninterest income 6,70¢ 8,13¢ 7,728
Noninterest expense
Compensation and benefits 22,87 26,19¢ 25,79:.
Office occupancy and equipment 6,87¢ 7,54 8,06(
Advertising and public relations 1,10C 92t 733
Information technology 2,67¢ 3,091 3,06:
Supplies, telephone, and postage 1,57¢ 1,69 1,84(
Amortization of intangibles 57¢ 60% 633
Nonperforming asset management 83¢ 2,63¢ 5,211
Operations of other real estate owned 1,40¢ 1,61 7,491
FDIC insurance premiums 1,41¢ 1,91: 1,77¢
Other 5,10¢ 5,03¢ 4,99(
Total noninterest expense 44,45 51,26: 59,59(
Income (loss) before income taxes 9,297 3,29¢ (27,109
Income tax benefit (31,31) — —
Net income (loss) $ 40,61: $ 3,29¢ $ (27,109
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 201 $ 0.1€ $ (1.36)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 201 % 0.1¢ $ (1.3¢)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 20,177,27 20,020,83 19,888,51

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 20,186,37 20,025,32 19,888,51



See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net income (loss) $ 40,61¢ $ 3,29¢ % (27,109
Unrealized holding gain (loss) on securities aggilring the period 12t (699) 7
Tax effect 213 — —
Other comprehensive income (loss) on securitigspitax effect 33¢ (699 7
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 40,95 $ 259 § (27,109

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteilements

50




Table of Contents

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands, except per share data)
Unearned
Employee
Stock Accumulated
Additional Retained Ownership Other
Common Paid-in Earnings Plan Comprehen-sive
Stock Capital (Deficit) Shares Income (Loss) Total

Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 211 $ 193,80: $ 17,94¢ $ (13,21) $ 1,111 $ 199,85
Net loss — — (27,109 — — (27,109
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effect — — — — 7 7
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compensation

expense — 41 — — — 41
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.(

per share) — — (633) — — (639
ESOP shares earned — (252) — 97¢ — 727
Balance at December 31, 2012 211 193,59( (9,79€) (12,237 1,11¢ 172,89(
Net income — — 3,29¢ — — 3,29¢
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax effect — — — — (699) (699)
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compensation

expense — 86 — — — 86
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.(

per share) — — (844) — — (844)
ESOP shares earned — (82 — 97¢ — 89¢
Balance at December 31, 2013 211 193,59« (7,342) (11,25 41¢ 175,62
Net income — — 40,61« — — 40,61«
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effect — — — — 33¢ 33¢
Nonvested stock awards-stock-based compensation

expense — 70 — — — 70
Cash dividends declared on common stock ($0.(

per share) — — (1,68¢) — — (1,689
ESOP shares earned — 181 — 97¢ — 1,16(
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 211 $ 193,84 $ 3158: $ (10,27¢) $ 757 $ 216,12:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteilements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile to net income (loss) tbaash from operating activities

Provision for (recovery of) loan losses
ESOP shares earned
Stock—based compensation expense
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization and accretion on securities and loans
Amortization of core deposit and other intangitdsets
Amortization and impairment of servicing assets
Net change in net deferred loan origination costs
Net loss on sale of other real estate owned
Net gain on sale of loans
Net loss on sale of securities
Net (gain) loss on disposition of premises and gmeint
Loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sale of loans
Other real estate owned valuation adjustments
Net change in:
Deferred income tax
Accrued interest receivable
Earnings on bank owned life insurance
Other assets
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Securities
Proceeds from maturities
Proceeds from principal repayments
Proceeds from sales of securities
Purchases of securities
Loans receivable
Principal payments on loans receivable
Purchases of loans
Originated for investment
Proceeds from sale of loans

(In thousands)

Proceeds of redemption of Federal Home Loan Barhidago stock

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago stock

Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned
Purchase of premises and equipment, net
Net cash from (used in) investing activities

(Continued)

52

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
$ 40,61 $ 3,29¢ $ (27,109
(736€) (687) 31,52:
1,16( 89€ 727
70 86 41
3,811 4,45 4,54¢
(43¢) (73€) (2,507)
57¢ 60E 632
142 16¢€ 32C
(229) (225) 16
35 14¢ 252
(15€) (1,469) (841)
7 J— N
(5) 43 15€
(5,329) (10,777 (18,639
5,481 11,67( 20,98«
43¢ 55C 5,55¢
(31,649 — —
7 217 1,427
(235) (319) (43€)
2,87¢ (249) 1,40(
1,39¢ 2,09: (1,189
17,84¢ 9,77¢ 17,01:
52,10: 26,81 30,59(
7,17¢ 13,49: 19,66¢
3,66: — —
(73,14%) (74,220) (35,36()
432,57 453,15: 518,33
_ — (5,641)
(513,38 (524,59:) (364,59)
— 2,86¢ 10,98¢
— 2,34¢ 7,93¢
(189) — —
4,91 8,83¢ 13,15¢
(1,176) (10) (2,33%)
(87,462 (91,319 192,73:
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposits $ (40,99 $ (29,649 $ (50,02¢)
Net change in borrowings 9,86¢ (2,517) (3,759
Net change in advance payments by borrowers fastarnd insurance 1,057 (273) (277)
Cash dividends paid on common stock (1,68¢) (8449 (639)

Net cash used in financing activities (31,760 (33,277 (54,685
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (101,376 (114,80 155,06(
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 160,95 275,76: 120,70«
Ending cash and cash equivalents $ 59,568. $ 160,95 $ 275,76:¢
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 3,07C % 3,697 % 4,50z
Income taxes paid 114 — —
Income taxes refunded — 461 1,42
Loans transferred to other real estate owned 5,44¢ 5,51Z 7,03¢
Loans transferred to held-for-sale — — 12,74

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatior: BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporatimadquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Compgnis the owne
of all of the issued and outstanding capital stocBankFinancial, F.S.B. (the “Bank”).

Principles of Consolidatior: The consolidated financial statements includeatteounts of and transactions of BankFinancial Gepon, th
Bank, and the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,aRitial Assurance Services, Inc. and BF Asset Regd@erporation (collectively, the
Company”). All significant intercompany accountslaransactions have been eliminated.

Nature of Business: The Companys revenues, operating income, and assets are pyinfltam the banking industry. Loan originati
customers are mainly located in the greater Chiaagtropolitan area. To supplement loan originatidhe Company purchases mortg
loans. The loan portfolio is concentrated in lota are primarily secured by real estate.

Use of Estimates To prepare financial statements in conformityhwatcounting principles generally accepted in tinitddl States of Ameri
(“GAAP”), management makes estimates and assumptions baseditable information. These estimates and assongaffect the amour
reported in the financial statements and the déscks provided, and actual results could differ.

Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions Interestbearing deposits in other financial institutionstaniag in less than 90 da
are carried at cost.

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, depesitother financial institutions maturing in legan 90 days, and daily fede
funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for custolbpen and deposit transactions, interest beariggpsits in other financial institutiol
borrowings, and advance payments by borrowersab@s and insurance.

Securities : Debt securities are classified as availablesfde when they might be sold before maturity. Bquiecurities with readi
determinable fair values are classified as avaldbi-sale. Securities available-feale are carried at fair value, with unrealizeddimg gain:
and losses reported in other comprehensive incdmss)( net of tax. Interest income includes amatiin of purchase premium or discol
Premiums and discounts on securities are amorbtrethe level-yield method without anticipating pagments, except for mortgageacke:
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gaiddosses on sales are based on the amortizedfdbg security sold. Declines in the
value of securities below their cost that are othan-temporary are reflected as realized lossegletermining if losses are other-than
temporary, management considers: (1) the lengthmaf and extent that fair value has been less thahor adjusted cost, as applicable, (2
financial condition and near term prospects ofisiseer, and (3) whether the Company has the inbesell the debt security or it is more lik
than not that the Company will be required to gedl debt security before the anticipated recovery.

Securities also include investments in certificatedeposit with maturities of greater than 90 daysese certificates of deposit are placed
insured institutions for varying maturities and amts that are fully insured by the Federal Depositirance Corporation (“FDIC”).

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock The Bank is a member of the Federal Home LoankBasstem. Members are required to own a ce
amount of stock based on the level of borrowings @her factors, and may invest in additional anteuRederal Home Loan Bank of Chic.
(“FHLBC") stock is carried at cost and classified as a wdsttisecurity. Accounting guidance for FHLBC stqechvides that, for impairme
testing purposes, the value of long term investsisath as our FHLBC common stock is based on thienate recoverability’of the par valu
of the security without regard to temporary dedimevalue. Both cash and stock dividends are tedas income.

Loans Helcfor—Sale: Mortgage loans originated and intended for saléhe secondary market are carried at the lowerggfegate cost
estimated fair market value, as determined by antbhg commitments from investors. Net unrealizes$és, if any, are recorded as a valu
allowance and charged to earnings. Mortgage loatd—forsale are generally sold with servicing rights metdi. The carrying value
mortgage loans sold is reduced by the fair valuthefservicing right. Gains and losses on saleamtgage loans are based on the differ
between the selling price and the carrying valuthefrelated loan sold.

Held for investment loans that have been tranddetweheld-for-sale are carried at the lower of awsfair value. For held-fosale loans, ar
decreases in value below cost after transfer aregrézed in mortgage banking revenue in the Codatdd Statements of Operations
increases in fair value above cost are not recegnimtil the loans are sold. The credit componéatng write down upon transfer to held-for-
sale is reflected in charge-offs to the allowararddan losses.

Fair market value is determined based on quotedkehaates and our judgment of relevant market d@mmi. Gains and losses on
disposition of loans held-fagale are determined on the specific identificatiethod. Transferred mortgage loans sold in therstany marke



are sold without retaining servicing rights.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and Loan Income: Loans that management has the intent and aldityold for the foreseeable future or until maguctr payoff an
reported at the principal balance outstandingoh¢he allowance for loan losses, premiums andodists on loans purchased, and net def
loan costs. Interest income on loans is recognrizéttome over the term of the loan based on theusaof principal outstanding.

Premiums and discounts associated with loans psechare amortized over the contractual term ofdhe using the levelsdeld method. Loa
origination fees, net of certain direct originatioasts, are deferred and recognized in interestiniecusing the levelield method withot
anticipating prepayments.

Interest income is reported on the interest methuatgrest income is discontinued at the time a liza@0 days past due or when we do
expect to receive full payment of interest or pipat. Past due status is based on the contra@rraktof the loan.

All interest accrued but not received for loand theve been placed on nonaccrual status is revagaadst interest income. Interest receive
such loans is accounted for on the cash—basisstrremovery method until qualifying for return toceual status. Once a loan is placed on no
accrual status, the borrower must generally dematestit least six months of payment performancerbethe loan is eligible to return
accrual status. Generally, the Company utilizes“8#te days delinquent, still accruingategory of loan classification when: (1) the las
repaid in full shortly after the period end dat), the loan is well secured and there are no a&skbertpending legal barriers to its collectior
(3) the borrower has remitted all scheduled paymant is otherwise in substantial compliance withterms of the loan, but the processir
payments actually received or the renewal of a lenot occurred for administrative reasons.

Impaired Loans:Impaired loans consist of nonaccrual loans andbteslidebt restructurings (“TDRs”A loan is considered impaired wh
based on current information and events, managebmgigves that it is probable that we will be umabd collect all amounts due (b
principal and interest) according to the originahtactual terms of the loan agreement. Once aitodatermined to be impaired, the amoul
impairment is measured based on the loan's obdervfaip value, the fair value of the underlying latéral less selling costs if the loar
collateraldependent, or the present value of expected fumsh flows discounted at the loan's effective agerate. If the measurement of
impaired loan is less than the recorded investriretite loan, the bank's allowance for the impairetateral dependent loan under ASC 31(
10-35 is based on fair value (less costs to dalif the charge-off (the confirmed “loss¥) based on the higher appraised value. The reng
recorded investment in the loan after the chaffewvill have a loan loss allowance for the amobgtwhich the estimated fair value of
collateral (less costs to sell) is less than itwraised value.

Impaired loans with specific reserves are reviegearterly for any changes that would affect thecBfmereserve. Any impaired loan for whi
a determination has been made that the economie v&lpermanently reduced is chargéfiagainst the allowance for loan losses to refies
current economic value in the period in which tleéedmination has been made.

At the time a collateralependent loan is initially determined to be imedjrwe review the existing collateral appraisalthé most rece
appraisal is greater than a year old, a new apdresobtained on the underlying collateral. Appadé are updated with a new indepen
appraisal at least annually and are formally reegwy our internal appraisal department upon réadig new appraisal. All impaired lo¢
and their related reserves are reviewed and updstel quarter. With an immaterial number of exoEst all appraisals and internal revi
are current under this methodology at Decembe314 .

Purchased Impaired LoansPurchased impaired loans are recorded at thematgd fair values on the respective purchase datdsar
accounted for prospectively based on expected ftasis. No allowance for credit losses is recordedtteese loans at the acquisition datt
determining the acquisition date fair value of fnaged impaired loans, and in subsequent accounitieg;ompany reviews these loans o
individual basis. Expected future cash flows inesscof the fair value of loans at the purchase (atzretable yield") are recorded as intt
income over the life of the loans if the timing aachount of the future cash flows can be reasonabtimated. The noaecretable yiel
represents estimated losses in the portfolio aedusl to the difference between contractually iregipayments and the cash flows expect:
be collected at acquisition.

Subsequent to the purchase date, increases in fagh over those expected at the purchase dateremmegnized as interest inco

prospectively. The present value of any decreasespected cash flows after the purchase datedgnézed by ecording a chargeff througt
the allowance for loan losses.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings A loan is classified as a troubled debt restriotuwhen a borrower is experiencing financial idiffties tha
leads to a restructuring of the loan, and the Comggants concessions to the borrower in the refstring that it would not otherwise consic
These concessions may include rate reductionscipahforgiveness, extension of maturity date atidep actions intended to minim
potential losses.

In determining whether a debtor is experiencingvicial difficulties, the Company considers if thebtbr is inpayment default or would be
payment default in the foreseeable future withdwat modification, the debtor declared or is in thecpss of declaring bankruptcy, ther
substantial doubt that the debtor will continueaging concern, the debtor has securities thag baen or are in the process of being deli
the debtor's entitgpecific projected cash flows will not be suffidig¢n service any of its debt, or the debtor carofmifin funds from sourc
other than the existing creditors at a market f@telebt with similar risk characteristics.

In determining whether the Company has grantednaession, the Company assesses, if it does notetgeollect all amounts due, whet
the current value of the collateral will satisfyetmounts owed, whether additional collateral cargntees from the debtor will serve
adequate compensation for other terms of the @sting, and whether the debtor otherwise has admeinds at a market rate for debt \
similar risk characteristics.

A loan that is modified at a market rate of inténegl not be classified as troubled debt restruicty in the calendar year subsequent tc
restructuring if it is in compliance with the maéid terms. Payment performance prior and subsedaehe restructuring is taken into accc
in assessing whether it is likely that the borrowan meet the new terms. This may result in tha loging returned to accrual at the tim
restructuring. A period of sustained repaymentfdeast six months generally is required for metioraccrual status.

Periodically, the Company will restructure a notitwo separate notes (A/B structure), chargirfghaf entire B portion of the note. The
note is structured with appropriate loanvelue and cash flow coverage ratios that provideafbigh likelihood of repayment. The A noti
classified as a noperforming note until the borrower has displayetiistorical payment performance for a reasonable tprior to an
subsequent to the restructuring. A period of sasthirepayment for at least six months generaltgdgsiired to return the note to accrual st
provided that management has determined that th@rpwnce is reasonably expected to continue. Thaote will be classified as
restructured note (either performing or nonperfaghithrough the calendar year of the restructuttiag the historical payment performance
been established.

Allowance for Loan LossesThe Company establishes provisions for loan lossbigh are charged to the Compasyésults of operations
maintain the allowance for loan losses to absodbaile incurred credit losses in the loan portfdilodetermining the level of the allowal
for loan losses, the Company considers past anértuloss experience, trends in classified loanaluations of real estate collateral, cur
economic conditions, volume and type of lendingyeaisle situations that may affect a borroweability to repay a loan and the level:
nonperforming and other classified loans. The arhofithe allowance is based on estimates and tiveate losses may vary from the estim
as more information becomes available or eventagiha

The Company provides for loan losses based onllineaance method. Accordingly, all loan losses dnarged to the related allowance an
recoveries are credited to it. Additions to thewaknce for loan losses are provided by chargesduonie based on various factors that, ir
judgment, deserve current recognition in estimagirabable incurred credit losses. The Company vevthe loan portfolio on an ongoing b
and makes provisions for loan losses on a quarberdys to maintain the allowance for loan lossegcitordance with GAAP. The allowance
loan losses consists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impairesidential non-owner occupied mortgage, nfaltvily mortgage, nonresidential r
estate, construction and land, commercial, and cenial lease loans for which the recorded investrrethe loan exceeds the measi
value of the loan; and

» general allowances for loan losses for each loassdbased on historical loan loss experience; djudtanents to historical loss experie
(general allowances), maintained to cover uncditanhat affect our estimate of probable incurcestit losses for each loan class. If
remaining unamortized discount related to a spepiiol of purchased performing loans exceeds ttimat®d credit losses associated
these loans, no general valuation allowance isrdecbagainst the loans.

The adjustments to historical loss experience ased on our evaluation of several factors, inclgdavels of, and trends in, past due
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chaoffs-and recoveries; trends in volume and termiearfs, including any credit concentration
the loan portfolio; experience and ability of lemglimanagement and other relevant staff; and ndteonthlocal economic trends and conditic
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Company evaluates the allowance for loan lolsased upon the combined total of the specific gameral components. Generally, w
the loan portfolio increases, absent other factbesallowance for loan loss methodology resulta iigher dollar amount of estimated prob
incurred credit losses than would be the case witioe increase. Conversely, when the loan poctfdecreases, absent other factors
allowance for loan loss methodology generally rissil a lower dollar amount of estimated probabksés than would be the case withou
decrease.

The loss ratio used in computing the required garlean loss reserve allowance for a given clas®anf consists of (i) the actual loss r
(measured on a weighted, rolling twelgearter basis), (ii) the change in credit qualifyhvm the specific loan class during the period) the
actual inherent risk factor assigned to the speddfan class and (iv) the actual concentrationigK factor assigned to the specific loan c
(collectively, “the Specific Loan Class Risk Fastdr The Specific Loan Class Risk Factors are weightpthBy in the calculation. In additic
two additional quantitative factors, the NationatoBomic risk factor and the Local Economic risktéac are also components of

computation but are given different weightingsheit computation due to their relative applicapitio the specific loan class in the conte>
the effect of national and local economic condgiom their risk profile and performance.

Mortgage Servicing Right: Mortgage servicing rights are recognized sepbrathen they are acquired through sales of loanseiimortgag
loans are sold, servicing rights are initially reted at fair value and gains on sales of loangegerded in the statement of operations.
value is based on market prices for comparablegag# servicing contracts, when available, or atiévaly, is based on a valuation model
calculates the present value of estimated fututeseevicing income. The valuation model incorpasaéssumptions that market participi
would use in estimating future net servicing incoswech as the servicing cost per loan, the discratat the escrow float rate, an inflation r
ancillary income, prepayment speeds and defawdsrand losses. The Company compares the valuatdelrmputs and results to publisl
industry data in order to validate the model resalhd assumptions. All classes of servicing asaetssubsequently measured using
amortization method which requires servicing riglisbe amortized into noninterest income in prapartto, and over the period of, -
estimated future net servicing income of the unyiegl loans.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment baped the fair value of the rights as comparedatoying amount. Impairment is determil
by stratifying rights into groupings based on pmadwnt risk characteristics, such as interest ftatm type and investor type. Impairmer
recognized through a valuation allowance for anviddal grouping, to the extent that fair valueléss than the carrying amount. If
Company later determines that all or a portiorhefimpairment no longer exists for a particularugiag, a reduction of the allowance may
recorded as an increase to income. Changes intialuallowances are reported with amortization andairment of servicing assets on
statement of operations. The fair values of semgiaights are subject to significant fluctuatiorssaaresult of changes in estimated and a
prepayment speeds and default rates and losses.

Servicing fee income that is reported on the statdémf operations as loan servicing fees is reabfde fees earned for servicing loans.
fees are based on a contractual percentage ofitemnding principal; or a fixed amount per load are recorded as income when earned.
fees and ancillary fees related to loan serviciegrnet material.

Other Real Estate Owned Real estate properties acquired in collectioradban are initially recorded at fair value lesstcto sell ¢
acquisition, establishing a new cost basis. If f@ilue declines subsequent to foreclosure, a vatluatlowance is recorded through expe
Operating expenses, gains and losses on dispgsitimhchanges in the valuation allowance are re@on noninterest expense as operatio
other real estate owned ("OREQ").

Premises and Equipmer: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipmentsiated at cost less accumulated depreciatiopreDition i
included in noninterest expense and is computedhenstraightine method over the estimated useful lives of élssets. Useful lives ¢
estimated to be 25 to 40 years for buildings angravements that extend the life of the originallding, ten to 20years for routine buildir
improvements, five to 15 years for furniture andipment, two to five years for computer hardward aoftware and no greater than fgear:
on automobiles. The cost of maintenance and rejzadisarged to expense as incurred and signifiepdirs are capitalized.

Other Intangible Assets Intangible assets acquired in a purchase busic@sdination with definite useful lives are amaetizover the
estimated useful lives to their estimated residadlies. Core deposit intangible assets (“CDdlfg recognized at the time of acquisition b
on valuations prepared by independent third padiesther estimates of fair value. In preparinghswveluations, variables such as def
servicing costs, attrition rates, and market distoates are considered. CDI assets are amortizexjppense over their useful lives.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Bank Owned Life InsuranceThe Company has purchased life insurance policiesedain key executives. The Company owned ligeiianc
is recorded at the amount that can be realizedruhdeinsurance contract at the balance sheet @hieh is the cash surrender value adju
for other charges or other amounts due that afegile at settlement.

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment, core deposit and otkemgible assets, and other logm assets are reviewed for impairn
when events indicate that their carrying amount matybe recoverable from future undiscounted chshst If impaired, the assets are recol
at fair value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instrument: Financial instruments include off-balangieeet credit instruments, such
commitments to make loans and commercial lettersredlit, issued to meet customer financing neeti® fhce amount for these ite
represents the exposure to loss, before considetsigmer collateral or ability to repay. Such fio@l instruments are recorded when the)
funded.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the total of the curremtr yjpcome tax due or refundable and the changeefarigbd tax assets &
liabilities. Under GAAP, a deferred tax asset vahraallowance is required to be recognized igitmore likely than notthat the deferred ti
asset will not be realized. The determination & thalizability of the deferred tax assets is highlibjective and dependent upon judgr
concerning managemestevaluation of both positive and negative evidetice forecasts of future taxable income, applieabk plannin
strategies, and assessments of current and futar®mic and business conditions. The Company cerssiabth positive and negative evide
regarding the ultimate realizability of our defetriax assets. Examples of positive evidence mdudecthe existence, if any, of taxes pai
available carryback years and the likelihood that taxable incorieb® generated in future periods. Examples ofatieg evidence may inclu
a cumulative loss in the current year and prior fears and negative general business and econmenitst Deferred tax assets and liabil
are measured using enacted tax rates expecteglyp taptaxable income in the years in which thommporary differences are expected t
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred taetasand liabilities of a change in tax rates gaized in income in the period of
enactment date.

This analysis is updated quarterly and adjustatkasssary. At December 31, 2014 , the Company Inad deferred tax asset of $31.6 million
after recording a full recovery of the valuatiotoalance established in 2011.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit onlyt ffore likely than not" that the tax position wddde sustained in a tax examination, presu
that a tax examination will occur. The amount retogd is the largest amount of tax benefit thajrsater than 50% likely to be realized
examination. For tax positions not meeting the nlitkedy than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded.

Retirement Plans: Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expersséhe amount of matching contributions and any ahdiscretionar
contribution made at the discretion of the ComparBoard of Directors. Deferred compensation expatiseates the benefits over year:
service.

Employee Stock Ownership Plar‘ESOP”) : The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but notlj@tated to participants, is shown ¢
reduction of stockholderstquity. Compensation expense is based on the mariat of shares as they are committed to be reteds
participant accounts. Dividends on allocated ESR¥Pes reduce retained earnings; dividends on uedd&B8OP shares reduce debt and ac
interest.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Shal: Basic earnings (loss) per common share is netnmec(loss) divided by the weighted average numt
common shares outstanding during the period. ES@Res are considered outstanding for this caladatinless unearned. Diluted earni
(loss) per common share is net income (loss) divlaethe weighted average number of common sharssamding during the period plus
dilutive effect of restricted stock shares andalditional potential shares issuable under stotiong.

Loss Contingencie: Loss contingencies, including claims and legéibas arising in the ordinary course of business,racorded as liabiliti
when the likelihood of loss is probable and an ami@u range of loss can be reasonably estimatedalyiement does not believe that there
such matters that will have a material effect anfthancial statements as of December 31, 2014 .

Restrictions on Casl: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal ResBank which is required to meet regulatory reseamd clearin
requirements.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estirdaising relevant market value information and ¢



assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a sepa@tie Fair value estimates involve uncertainties raatters of significant
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

judgment regarding interest rates, credit riskppyenents, and other factors, especially in theradesef broad markets for particular ite
Changes in assumptions or in market conditionscceiginificantly affect the estimates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net iredloss) and other comprehensive income (loss)et
comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealizedsgaind losses on securities, net of tax, whictaks® recognized as separate componel
stockholders’ equity.

Stocl-based CompensationCompensation cost is recognized for stock optiorts restricted stock awards issued to employeegdbas th
fair value of these awards at the date of grané BlackScholes model is utilized to estimate the fair eabdi stock options, while the mar
price of the Companyg’ common stock at the date of grant is used farictsd stock awards. Compensation cost is recegh@er the require
service period, generally defined as the vestinggde

Transfers of Financial AssetsTransfers of financial assets are accounted fosadess when control over the assets has been ridhvey
Control over transferred assets is deemed to lrermigred when the assets have been isolated frer@ampany, the transferee obtains
right (free of conditions that constrain it fronkitag advantage of that right) to pledge or exchahgetransferred assets, and the Company
not maintain effective control over the transferasdets through an agreement to repurchase theme bikéir maturity.

Operating SegmentsWhile management monitors the revenue streams eofvétrious products and services, operations areageahan
financial performance is evaluated on a Compaide basis. Operating results are not reviewed dnics management to make reso
allocation or performance decisions. Accordinglyoéthe financial service operations are consédeby management to be aggregated ir
reportable operating segment.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made in the pear’s financial statements to conform to therent yeais presentatior
Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In January 2014, the FASB amended existing guidémctarify when a creditor should derecognizeanloeceivable and recognized collat
asset. An in substance repossession or foreclasags, and a creditor is considered to have redephysical possession of residential
estate property collateralizing a consumer mortdage, upon either (1) the creditor obtaining letiidé to the residential real estate prop
upon completion of a foreclosure or (2) the bormwe@nveying all interest in the residential reahés property to the creditor to satisfy
loan through completion of a deed in lieu of foostire or through a similar legal agreement. Addélty, the amendment requires interim
annual disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreetbresidential real estate property held by teditor and (2) the recorded investmer
consumer mortgage loans collateralized by residergal estate property that are in the procederetlosure according to local requirem
of the applicable jurisdiction. This amendment ffe&tive for interim and annual reporting periodsgmning after December 15, 2014.
adoption of this standard will not have a materigbact on the Company’results of operation or financial position butl nequire expansic
of the Company’s disclosures.

FASB ASC 606 In May 2014, the FASB issued an update (ASU Nid409, Revenue from Contracts with Customers) credfii§B Topic
606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Thdange in this update affects any entity that eidrgers into contracts with customer
transfer goods or services or enters into contrimtshe transfer of nonfinancial assets unlesse¢hcontracts are within the scope of ¢
standards (for example, insurance contracts oeleastracts). The core principle of the guidanciad an entity should recognize revent
depict the transfer of promised goods or servicesustomers in an amount that reflects the coraiier to which the entity expects to
entitled in exchange for those goods or servicés. Juidance provides steps to follow to achievectire principle. An entity should disclc
sufficient information to enable users of finanatdtements to understand the nature, amount,giamid uncertainty of revenue and cash f
arising from contracts with customers. Qualitativel quantitative information is required about cacts with customers, significant judgme
and changes in judgments, and assets recognizextifi® costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. Theeamdments in this update become effe(
for annual periods and interim periods within thas@ual periods beginning after December 15, 2Q&.are currently evaluating the img
of adopting the new guidance on the consolidateahitial statements.
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NOTE 2 - EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Amounts reported in earnings (loss) per share aeftess available to common stockholders for theodedivided by the weighted aver:
number of shares of common stock outstanding duttiegperiod, exclusive of unearned ESOP sharesuamdsted restricted stock sha
Stock options and restricted stock are regardgubeeshtial common stock and are considered in theedi earnings per share calculations tc

extent that they would have a dilutive effect iheerted to common stock.

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ 40,61: $ 3,29¢ $ (27,109
Average common shares outstanding 21,101,96 21,091,39 21,072,96
Less:

Unearned ESOP shares (905,239 (1,054,14)) (1,182,49)

Unvested restricted stock shares (19,46() (16,42 (1,959
Weighted average common shares outstanding 20,177,27 20,020,83 19,888,51

Add - Net effect of dilutive stock options and ustex restricted stock 9,10t 4,48: —
Weighted average dilutive common shares outstanding 20,186,37 20,025,32 19,888,51
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 201 % 0.1¢ $ (2.36)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 201 $ 0.1¢ $ (1.3€)
Number of antidilutive stock options excluded frime diluted earnings per share

calculation — — —
Weighted average exercise price of anti-dilutivéapshares $ — 8 —  $ —
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES

The fair value of securities and the related gnassealized gains and losses recognized in accuetllaether comprehensive income i
follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

December 31, 2014
Certificates of deposit $ 86,04¢ $ — 3 — 3 86,04¢
Equity mutual fund 50C 9 — 50¢
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 23,43 1,21¢ (40 24,61
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 9,93¢ 53 (13 9,97¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 29 — — 29

$ 119,94 $ 1,280 $ (53) $ 121,17.
December 31, 2013
Certificates of deposit $ 65,01C $ — 3 — 3 65,01(
Municipal securities 18C 7 — 187
Equity mutual fund 50C — 3 497
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 27,22¢ 1,29t (160 28,36«
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 16,85 35 (72 16,81
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 35 — — 35

$ 109,80! $ 1,337 $ (235 ¢ 110,90

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized namggobligations reflected in the preceding tableevigsued by U.S. governmesponsore
entities and agencies, Freddie Mac, Fannie MaeGindie Mae, and are obligations which the governnies affirmed its commitment
support. All securities reflected in the precedialgle were classified as available-for-sale at rdwr 31, 2014 and 2013 .

The amortized cost and fair values of securitieBetember 31, 2018y contractual maturity are shown below. Securities due at a sing

maturity date are shown separately. Expected ntiggimnay differ from contractual maturities becabeerowers may have the right to cal
prepay obligations with or without call or prepaympenalties.

December 31, 2014

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 86,04¢ % 86,04¢
Equity mutual fund 50C 50¢
Mortgage-backed securities - residential 23,43: 24,61
Collateralized mortgage obligations - residential 9,93¢ 9,97¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates 29 29
$ 119,94 ¢ 121,17:

Investment securities available for sale with cagyamounts of $6.8 million and $8.0 million at etber 31, 2014 and 2013espectively
were pledged as collateral on customer repurchgteements and for other purposes as required oriped by law.
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NOTE 3 - SECURITIES (continued)

Sales of securities were as follows:

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

For the years ended December 31,

2013 2012
Proceeds $ $ — —
Gross gains — —
Gross losses — —
Securities with unrealized losses at December 314 2nd 2013 not recognized in income are as fallow
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Value Loss
December 31, 2014
Mortgage-backed securities - resident$ — 3 — 2,12¢ (40 $ 2,12¢ $ (40
Collateralized mortgage obligations -
residential — — 1,84 (13 1,847 13
$ — 3 — % 3,97: (53 $ 3,97: $ (539
December 31, 2013
Equity mutual fund $ 497 $ 3 $ — — % 497 $ (3)
Mortgage-backed securities - resident 2,80¢ (160 — — 2,80¢ (160
Collateralized mortgage obligations -
residential 11,23 (72) — — 11,23 (72
$ 1453¢ $ (235) ¢ = — 3 1453¢ $ (235)

The Company evaluates marketable investment sesuvitith significant declines in fair value on aagierly basis to determine whether t
should be considered other-themporarily impaired under current accounting gog which generally provides that if a marketedgeurity
is in an unrealized loss position, whether dueeioegal market conditions or industry or issspecific factors, the holder of the securities t
assess whether the impairment is other-than-temypora

Certain residential mortgadecked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs that the Company holds in its investmentfplio were
in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2044t the unrealized loss was not considered fiegnit under the Comparg/impairmer
testing methodology. In addition, the Company doetsintend to sell these securities, and it islikey that the Company will be required
sell the securities before their anticipated recpeecurs.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 180,33 $ 201,38:
Multi-family mortgage 480,34¢ 396,05¢
Nonresidential real estate 234,50( 263,56°
Construction and land 1,88t 6,57(
Commercial loans 66,88: 54,25t
Commercial leases 217,14: 187,11.
Consumer 2,051 2,311
1,183,14 1,111,26:
Net deferred loan origination costs 1,19¢ 97(
Allowance for loan losses (12,990 (14,159
Loans, net $ 1,172,351 $ 1,098,07

Loan Origination/Risk ManagementThe Company has certain lending policies and pnaeedin place that are designed to maximize
income within an acceptable level of risk. The Camypreviews and approves these policies and proesdn a periodic basis. A report
system supplements the review process by providiagagement with frequent reports related to loadywetion, loan quality, concentratic
of credit, loan delinquencies and nonperforming potential problem loans via trend and risk ratinggration. The Company requires t
insurance insuring the priority of our lien, firacaextended coverage casualty insurance, andpibppate, flood insurance, in order to pro
our security interest in the underlying property.

The majority of the loans the Company originates iavestment and business loans (mfaltiily, nonresidential real estate, commer
construction and land loans, and commercial leagegddition, we originate one-four family residential mortgage loans and consulo@ns
and purchase and sell loan participations fromioagme. The following briefly describes our pripal loan products.

The Company originates real estate loans pringifgtured by first liens on nonresidential reahtestThe nonresidential real estate prope
are predominantly office buildings, light industriauildings, shopping centers and mixese developments and, to a lesser extent,

specialized properties such as nursing homes drat bealthcare facilities. The Company may, frometito time, purchase commercial

estate loan participations.

Multi-family mortgage loans generally are securgdulti-family rental properties such as apartment builgijrigcluding subsidized apartm
units. In general, loan amounts range between $280nd $3.0 million . Approximately 2286 the collateral is located outside of our prin
market area; however, we do not have a concentratiany single market outside of our primary matkeritory. In underwriting multfamily
mortgage loans, the Company considers a numbeactdrs, which include the projected net cash flovthe loans debt service requiremi
(generally requiring a minimum ratio of 120%the age and condition of the collateral, thefficial resources and income level of the borr
and the borrower’'s experience in owning or managimgilar properties and, proximity to diverse enypl@nt opportunities. Multiamily
mortgage loans are generally originated in amouptto 80%of the appraised value of the property securingdha. Personal guarantees
usually obtained from multi-family mortgage borrowe

Loans secured by multi-family mortgages generallyolve a greater degree of credit risk than ondotw-family residential mortgage loa
and carry larger loan balances. This increaseditcrist is a result of several factors, includifgetconcentration of principal in a limi
number of loans and borrowers, the effects of g@neronomic conditions on income producing propsrtiand the increased difficulty
evaluating and monitoring these types of loanstifleumore, the repayment of loans secured by rfartily mortgages typically depends uj
the successful operation of the related real egiatperty. If the cash flow from the project is wedd below acceptable thresholds,
borrower’s ability to repay the loan may be impdire

The Company emphasizes nonresidential real estats lwith initial principal balances between $280,and $3.0 million Substantially all ¢
our nonresidential real estate loans are securguidperties located in our primary market area. Thepany’s
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

nonresidential real estate loans are generallytemrias three - or five -year adjustabdée mortgages or mortgages with balloon maturibif
three or five years. Amortization on these loangy@cally based on 20 - to 30 -year schedules. Chmpany also originates some &al
fixed-rate, fully amortizing loans.

In the underwriting of nonresidential real estatens, the Company generally lends up to 80% opthperty’s appraised value. Decisions
lend are based on the economic viability of thepprty as the primary source of repayment and teditwvorthiness of the borrower.
evaluating a proposed commercial real estate anemphasize the ratio of the property’s projecteticash flow to the loas’'debt servic
requirement (generally requiring a minimum ratiol@0%), computed after deduction for a vacancy factat property expenses we de
appropriate. Personal guarantees are pursued aatlyusbtained from nonresidential real estate doars.

Nonresidential real estate loans generally carghdui interest rates and have shorter terms thasetbo on- to fourfamily residentic
mortgage loans. Nonresidential real estate loamwetier, entail significant additional credit riskempared to one- to fodamily residentic
mortgage loans, as they typically involve largemidoalances concentrated with single borrowersargs of related borrowers. In addition,
payment of loans secured by incopr@ducing properties typically depends on the ss&ft operation of the related real estate pr@ectthu
may be subject to a greater extent to adverse tionslin the real estate market and in the gerem@homy.

The Company makes various types of secured anccureske commercial loans to customers in our markead #or the purpose of financi
equipment acquisition, expansion, working capitad ather general business purposes. The termesé tlhans generally range from less
one year to five years. The loans are either natgmtion a fixedate basis or carry adjustable interest rates iedlé® (i) a lending rate that
determined internally, or (ii) a short-term markate index.

Commercial credit decisions are based upon ouitaesessment of the loan applicant. The Compatgrm@es the applicarg’ability to repa
in accordance with the proposed terms of the I we assess the risks involved. An evaluatiomasle of the applicant to determ
character and capacity to manage. Personal guagsnfethe principals are pursued and usually obthitn addition to evaluating the Ic
applicants financial statements, we consider the adequatlyegbrimary and secondary sources of repaymerthéloan. Credit agency repc
of the applicant’s credit history supplement oualgsis of the applicarg’ creditworthiness and at times are supplementtdimguiries to othe
banks and trade investigations. Moreover, assstdlion personal financial statements are verifdadlateral supporting a secured transac
also is analyzed to determine its marketabilitym@wercial business loans generally have highereésterates than residential loans of
duration because they have a higher risk of defsinlte their repayment generally depends on theesstul operation of the borrower’
business and the sufficiency of any collateralciRg of commercial loans is based primarily on thedit risk of the borrower, with d
consideration given to borrowers with appropriapasbit relationships.

The Company also lends money to small and siid-leasing companies for equipment financingdsa&enerally, commercial leases
secured by an assignment by the leasing compathedéase payments and by a secured interest iadilipment being leased. In most ce
the lessee acknowledges our security interest énléhsed equipment and agrees to send lease paydiegttly to us. Consequently,
Company underwrites lease loans by examining thditsvorthiness of the lessee rather than the lessase loans generally are n@tours
to the leasing company.

The Companys commercial leases are secured primarily by tdolggcequipment, medical equipment, material hamgdéquipment and oth
capital equipment. Lessees tend to be publiclyetdlacbmpanies with investmegtade rated debt or companies that have not igsulglit deb
and therefore do not have a public debt rating. Tohepany requires that a minimum of 5@¥%our commercial lessees have an invest
grade public debt rating by Moodybr Standard & Poors, or the equivalent. CommeElesses to these entities have a maximum mataf
seven years and a maximum outstanding credit expaxu$15.0 millionto any single entity. If the lessee does not hapeldic debt rating
they are subject to the same internal credit aislgs any other customer. Typically, commerciabésato these lessees have a maxi
maturity of five years and a maximum outstandineddrexposure of $5.0 millioto any single entity. In addition, the Company witlginate
commercial leases to lessees with below-investgeatte public debt ratings and have a maximum aqudstg credit exposure of $3rillion
to any single entity. Lease loans are almost alvfaljys amortizing, with fixed interest rates.

Although the Company does not actively originatastauction and land loans presently, constructiot land loans generally consist of i
acquisition loans to help finance the purchasauod lintended for further development, including&rfamily homes, multfamily housing an
commercial income property, development loans titddbrs in our market area to finance improvementseial estate, consisting mostly
single-family subdivisions, typically to financeetleost of utilities, roads, sewers
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

and other development costs. These builders géyneedy on the sale of singlamily homes to repay development loans, althoughami
cases the improved building lots may be sold totlarobuilder, often in conjunction with developméoans. Construction and land lo
typically involve a higher degree of credit rislathfinancing on improved, owneccupied real estate. The risk of loss on consom@nd lan
loans is largely dependent upon the accuracy ofnitial appraisal of the property’value upon completion of construction or develeptmthe
estimated cost of construction, including interest;] the estimated time to complete and/or sekase such property. The Company see
minimize these risks by maintaining consistent iegdpolicies and underwriting standards. Howevethée estimate of value proves to
inaccurate, the cost of completion is greater thgmected, the length of time to complete and/draselease the collateral property is gre
than anticipated, or if there is a downturn in kbeal economy or real estate market, the propesticchave a value upon completion the
insufficient to assure full repayment of the lodinis could have a material adverse effect on thalityuof the construction and land Ic
portfolio, and could result in significant lossesdelinquencies.

The Company offers conforming and non-conformiixgd-rate and adjustable-rate residential mortdages with maturities of up to 3@ar:
and maximum loan amounts generally of up to $2iani. The Company currently offers fixadte conventional mortgage loans with te
of 10 to 30 years that are fully amortizing with miitly payments, and adjustabige conventional mortgage loans with initial termhdetwee
one and five years that amortize up to 30 yeare-@mfourfamily residential mortgage loans are generallyamaditten according to Fant
Mae guidelines, and loans that conform to suchejinds are referred to as “conforming loans.” TlemPany generally originates both fixed:
and adjustable-rate loans in amounts up to the maxi conforming loan limits as established by Famiée, which is currently $417,0G6r
single-family homes. Private mortgage insuranaedgiired for first mortgage loans with loan-to-v@ahatios in excess of 80% .

The Company also originates loans above conforriinigs, sometimes referred to as “jumbo loarthdt have been underwritten to the cr
standards of Fannie Mae. These loans are genaiaiple for sale to various firms that specialinethe purchase of such naoenforming
loans. In the Chicago metropolitan area, largadesgial loans are not uncommon. The Company aigpnates loans at higher rates that dc
fully meet the credit standards of Fannie Mae betdeemed to be acceptable risks.

The primary markets served by the Company have gemtually broadening signs of stability amid wislesad economic weakness and |
unemployment. The ability of the Compasyborrowers to repay their loans, and the valu¢hefcollateral securing such loans, coul
adversely impacted by a return to economic weakimeiss local markets as a result of unemploymdatlining real estate values, or incre:
residential and office vacancies. This not onlyldaesult in the Company experiencing chaodfs-and/or nonperforming assets, but also ¢
necessitate an increase in the provision for lossds. These events, if they were to recur, woale lan adverse impact on the Company
results of operations and its capital.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following tables present the balance in thevadince for loan losses and the loans receivablmbtjolio segment and based on impairn
method:

Allowance for loan losses Loan Balances
Individually Purchased Collectively Individually Purchased Collectively
evaluated for impaired evaluated for evaluated for impaired evaluated for
impairment loans impairment Total impairment loans impairment Total
December 31, 2014
One-to-four family
residential real estate $ 8 $ — $ 2,14 $ 2,148 $ 4,12: % 52 $ 176,160 $ 180,33
Multi-family mortgage 22¢ — 4,97¢ 5,20¢ 5,28 — 475,06 480,34¢
Nonresidential real estate 23€ — 2,70¢ 2,94( 4,69( — 229,81( 234,50(
Construction and land — — 8C 80 — — 1,88t 1,88t
Commercial loans — — 554 554 76 — 66,80¢ 66,88
Commercial leases — — 1,00¢ 1,00¢ — — 217,14 217,14:
Consumer — — 54 54 — — 2,051 2,051
$ 47C % — $ 1152( $ 1199 $ 14,17C $ 52 $ 1,168,92! 1,183,14
Net deferred loan origination costs 1,19¢
Allowance for loan losses (11,990
Loans, net $ 1,172,335
Allowance for loan losses Loan Balances
Individually Collectively Individually Collectively
evaluated Purchased evaluated evaluated Purchase evaluated
for impaired for for impaired for
impairment loans impairment Total impairment loans impairment Total
December 31, 2013
One-to-four family
residential real estate $ 26 $ 5 $ 381l $ 384 $ 3692 % 10 $ 197,59C $ 201,38:
Multi-family mortgage 25t — 4,18¢ 4,44¢ 7,031 — 389,02° 396,05¢
Nonresidential real estate 77 — 3,65¢ 3,73¢ 4,381 1,63: 257,55: 263,56
Construction and land 12 — 381 39: 382 — 6,18 6,57(
Commercial loans — — 731 731 — 23 54,23: 54,25¢
Commercial leases — — 94¢ 94¢ — — 187,11. 187,11.
Consumer — — 57 57 77 — 2,24( 2,317
$ 37C % 5 $ 13,77¢ $ 14,15¢ $ 1556: $ 1,75¢ $ 1,093,94. 1,111,26.
Net deferred loan origination costs 97C
Allowance for loan losses (14,15
Loans, net $ 1,098,07
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is adduls:

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Beginning balance $ 14,15¢ $ 18,03t $ 31,72¢

Loans charged off:
One-to-four family residential real estate (873) (1,50 (12,36¢)
Multi-family mortgage (1,230 (1,839 (7,209
Nonresidential real estate (1,727%) (577) (18,167
Construction and land Q) (943 (4,31))
Commercial loans (123) (42%) (4,960
Commercial leases (8) — (127
Consumer (12 (55 (109
(3,979 (5,337) (47,23)

Recoveries:

One-to-four family residential real estate 41¢ 447 233
Multi-family mortgage 10C 23€ 53¢
Nonresidential real estate 42: 51¢ 32¢
Construction and land 371 465 25C
Commercial loans 1,22t 47C 62€
Consumer 3 8 42
2,54¢ 2,14: 2,01¢
Net charge-off (1,42%) (3,199 (45,219
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses (73€) (687) 31,52:
Ending balance $ 11,99C $ 14,15 $ 18,03t

Impaired loans

Several of the following disclosures are presebiettecorded investment,” which the FASB definesth® amount of the investment in a Ic
which is not net of a valuation allowance, but whitoes reflect any direct write-down of the investta” The following represents t
components of recorded investment:

Loan principal balance

Less unapplied payments

Plus negative unapplied balance

Less escrow balance

Plus negative escrow balance

Plus unamortized net deferred loan costs
Less unamortized net deferred loan fees
Plus unamortized premium

Less unamortized discount

Less previous charge-offs

Plus recorded accrued interest

Less reserve for uncollected interest

= Recorded investment
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following table presents loans individually exeded for impairment by class loans, excludingchased impaired loans:

Allowance Average
for Loan Investment Interest
Loan Recorded Partial Losses in Impaired Income
Balance Investment Charge-off Allocated Loans Recognized
December 31, 2014
With no related allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 324¢ $ 265¢ $ 64¢ $ — $ 2777 % 44
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 1,39¢ 1,37: 27 — 74E 76
Multi-family mortgage 3,17¢ 2,59: 481 — 3,41¢ 12C
Wholesale commercial lending 51¢ 51z — — 401 —
Nonresidential real estate 2,11¢ 2,06¢ 6 — 4,17¢ 72
Commercial loans - secured 76 76 — — 93 3
10,53: 9,27¢ 1,16: — 11,61( 31¢E
With an allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 11t 78 37 8 20z —
Multi-family mortgage 2,71 2,131 624 22¢ 2,345 48
Nonresidential real estate 2,95( 2,60% 32¢ 23€ 1,71¢ 67
5,77¢ 4,81/ 987 47C 4,26: 11F

$ 16,31( $ 14,09 $ 2,15 $ 47C $ 1587! $ 43C

Allowance Average
for Loan Investment Interest
Loan Recorded Partial Losses in Impaired Income
Balance Investment Charge-off Allocated Loans Recognized
December 31, 2013
With no related allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 365¢ $ 254C $ 1,102 $ — $ 3,69 $ 20
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 87t 70€ 137 — 591 —
Multi-family mortgage 5,46¢ 4,44¢ 4 — 6,09¢ 27
Nonresidential real estate 4,062 3,31: 253 — 4,05¢ 33
Land loans 274 262 8 — 16¢ —
Commercial loans - secured 77 77 — — 83 —
14,41( 11,34¢ 1,50¢ — 14,68¢ 80
With an allowance recorded
One-to-four family residential real estate - nonrewoccupied 49( 43¢ 38 26 39: 2
Multi-family mortgage 3,14« 2,541 57: 25E 2,99¢ 12t
Nonresidential real estate 1,34: 1,04¢ 25k 77 2,14¢ 15
Land 18C 11¢ 6C 12 1,26t —
5,157 4,14¢ 92¢ 37C 6,80¢ 142

$ 19567 $ 1549: $ 243 $ 37C $ 21,49: % 22z
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Purchased Impaired Loans

As a result of its acquisition of Downers Grove iNaal Bank, the Company holds purchased loans fhiclwthere was evidence
deterioration of credit quality since originationdafor which it was probable that all contractuatbguired payments would not be collecte
of the date of the acquisition. The carrying amafrthese purchased impaired loans is as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
One-to—four family residential real estate $ 52 $ 10C
Nonresidential real estate — 1,63:
Commercial loans — 23
Outstanding balance $ 52 % 1,75¢
Carrying amount, net of allowance
(None at December 31, 2014, $5 at December 31,)2013 $ 52 % 1,751

Accretable yield, or income expected to be collgctelated to purchased impaired loans is as faliow

For the years ended Decembe

31,
2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 37 9 19¢€
Disposals — —
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference (D) 35
Accretion of income 36 194
Ending balance $ — % 37

For the above purchased impaired loans, the Comgecreased the allowance for loan losses by $5@0be year endeBecember 31, 20:
and decreased the allowance for loan losses by, ®05%or the year ended December 31, 2013 .

Purchased impaired loans for which it was probablie date of acquisition that all contractuaiguired payments would not be collectec
as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Contractually required payments receivable of Iqganshased
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 82 $ 832
Nonresidential real estate — 1,99¢
Commercial loans — 22z
$ 82 $ 3,05:¢

At acquisition, cash flows expected to be colleatede $18.8 million , compared to the fair valugafchased impaired loans of $15.4 million
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Nonaccrual loans

The following table presents the recorded investiirenonaccrual and loans past due over 90 day®staccrual by class of loans, excluc
purchased impaired loans:

Loans Past
Due Over 90
Recorded Days, still
Loan Balance Investment accruing

December 31, 2014
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 4,79 $ 421C % —
One-to-four family residential real estate — nomewoccupied 20¢ 14¢€ —
Multi-family mortgage 5,63¢ 4,481 —
Nonresidential real estate 4,02 3,24t —
Commercial loans — secured 7€ 76 —
Consumer 3 3 —

$ 14,74; % 12,16 % —
December 31, 2013
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 3,51¢ $ 3,49¢ $ —
One-to-four family residential real estate — nomewoccupied 1,19C 1,14: —
Multi-family mortgage 8,14: 7,09¢ 22¢
Nonresidential real estate 4,74¢ 4,21¢ —
Land 387 382 —
Commercial loans — secured 77 77 —
Consumer loans 12 12 —

$ 18,07 $ 16,42: $ 22¢

Nonaccrual loans and impaired loans are definddreifitly. Some loans may be included in both caiegpand some may only be include
one category. Nonaccrual loans include both smbhiéance homogeneous loans that are collectivedjuated for impairment and individue
classified impaired loans.

The Company'’s reserve for uncollected loan intenest $464,000 and $1.3 million at December 31, 2011d1 2013 respectively. Except f
purchased impaired loans, when a loan is onawmmual status and the ultimate collectability lod total principal of an impaired loan is
doubt, all payments are applied to principal unither cost recovery method. Alternatively, when anlég on noraccrual status but there
doubt concerning only the ultimate collectabilifyimterest, contractual interest is credited t@fast income only when received, under the
basis method pursuant to the provisions of FASB A30-10, as applicable. In all cases, the average badaare calculated based on
month—end balances of the financing receivablelsimthe period reported pursuant to the provismSASB ASC 310-10, as applicable.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Past Due Loans

The following tables present the aging of the rdedrinvestment in past due loans at December 34 B@ class of loans:

90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 1,41¢ $ 27€ $ 384« % 553t $ 126,05« $ 131,58¢
One-to-four family residential real estate -

non-owner occupied 32C 16& 14¢€ 631 47,35( 47,98
Multi-family mortgage 2,31 1,18i 3,36: 6,86¢ 334,17 341,03
Wholesale commercial lending — — — — 135,39! 135,39!
Nonresidential real estate 37¢ 444 3,24¢ 4,06¢ 227,07¢ 231,14¢
Construction — — — — 63 63
Land — — — — 1,814 1,814
Commercial loans:

Secured — — 7€ 7€ 11,86: 11,93¢

Unsecured — 1 — 1 1,88¢ 1,88t

Municipal loans — — — — 2,24: 2,24:

Warehouse lines — — — — 14,36: 14,36

Health care — — — — 24,154 24,15

Aviation — — — — 1,111 1,111

Other — — — — 11,33¢ 11,33¢
Commercial leases:

Investment rated commercial leases 42¢ — — 42¢ 160,83( 161,25¢

Below investment grade 13¢€ — — 13¢€ 11,24¢ 11,38:

Non-rated 8 — — 8 35,67 35,68(

Lease pools — — — — 10,18( 10,18(
Consumer 18 1 3 22 2,03¢ 2,06(
Total $ 5,01 $ 2,074 $ 10,677 % 17,76« $ 1,158,84¢ $ 1,176,61.

90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total

Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential real estate

- non-owner occupied $ — $ — 52 % 52 — 52
Nonresidential real estate — — — — — —
Commercial loans — secured — — — — — —

$ — 3 — 52 % 52 — 52

71




Table of Contents

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following tables present the aging of the rdedrinvestment in past due loans as December 33, 20 class of loans:

Greater than

30-59 Days 60-89 Days 90 Days Past Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Due Due Past Due Total
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 751 $ 424 $ 2,87¢ $ 4,051 $ 142,05¢ $ 146,10¢
One-to-four family residential real estate -
non-owner occupied 90t — 96( 1,86t 52,67¢ 54,54
Multi-family mortgage 2,19: 1,71¢ 6,354 10,26: 303,90¢ 314,16t
Wholesale commercial lending — — — — 78,53 78,53
Nonresidential real estate 4,43: 1,36: 3,96¢ 9,764 249,19: 258,95¢
Construction — — — — 2,48¢ 2,48¢
Land — — 382 382 3,68¢ 4,06¢
Commercial loans:
Secured 9 — — 9 15,97 15,98(
Unsecured 25 — — 25 4,115 4,14;
Municipal loans — — — — 2,84¢ 2,84¢
Warehouse lines — — — — 1,927 1,927
Health care — — — — 19,38: 19,38:
Aviation — — — — 1,102 1,102
Other — — — — 9,00¢ 9,00¢
Commercial leases:
Investment rated commercial leases — — — — 147,37: 147,37:
Below investment grade 8 — — 8 14,73¢ 14,747
Non-rated — — — — 23,17¢ 23,17¢
Lease pools — — — — 3,011 3,011
Consumer 3 4 4 11 2,317 2,32¢
$ 8,32¢ $ 3,501 $ 14,54 % 26,37¢ $ 1,077,500 $ 1,103,87!
90 Days or
30-59 Days 60-89 Days Greater Total Past Loans Not
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Past Due Total
Purchased impaired loans
One-to-four family residential real
estate - non-owner occupied  $ — 3 — $ 10C $ 10C $ — 3 10C
Nonresidential real estate — — 1,631 1,631 — 1,631
Commercial loans — secured — — 23 23 — 23
$ — $ — 8 1,75¢ $ 1,75¢ $ — 3 1,75¢
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The Company evaluates loan extensions or modificatin accordance with FASB ASC 3H@-with respect to the classification of the loa
a TDR. In general, if the Company grants a loaremsion or modification to a borrower for other tham insignificant period of time tt
includes a belowmarket interest rate, principal forgiveness, payifierbearance or other concession intended to nizeirthe economic loss
the Company, the loan extension or loan modificaisoclassified as a TDR. In cases where borroasrgranted new terms that provide f
reduction of either interest or principal then dunel payable, management measures any impairmehéaastructured loan in the same ma
as for impaired loans as noted above.

The Company had $3.0 million of TDRs at December2B1l4 , compared to $3.3 million at December 31,3, with $38,000 and $53,000
specific valuation reserves allocated at DecembeP314 and 2013 , respectively. The Company hasltgianding commitments to borrow
whose loans are classified as TDRs.

The following table presents loans classified a&RED

December 31,

2014 2013

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 1917 $ 2,09
Multi-family mortgage 51C 51¢
Accrual troubled debt restructured loans 2,42 2,611
One-to-four family residential real estate 23C 34z
Multi-family mortgage 34¢ 384
Nonaccrual troubled debt restructured loans 57€ 72€
$ 3,00: $ 3,331

During the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2€H8terms of certain loans were modified andsifi@sl as TDRs. The modification of 1
terms of such loans included one or a combinatibthe following: a reduction of the stated intereaste of the loan; an extension of
maturity date at a stated rate of interest lowantthe current market rate for new debt with similak; or a permanent reduction of
recorded investment in the loan.

The following tables present TDRs that occurredrdythe year:

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013
Pre- Post- Pre- Post-
Modification ~ Modification Modification Modification
outstanding  outstanding outstanding outstanding
Number recorded recorded Number recorded recorded
of loans investment investment of loans investment investment
One-to-four family residential real estate 4 $ 48t $ 444 7 % 124¢ $  1,24¢
One-to-four family residential real estate -
non-owner occupied — — — 1 71 46
Commercial loans - secured 1 21C 5 — — —
5 % 69t $ 44¢ 8 $ 1,32( $ 1,29t
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Due to
permanent
Due to Due to reduction in
reduction in extension of recorded
interest rate maturity date investment Total
For the year ended December 31, 2014
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 19 $ 37 % 52 ¢ 444
Commercial loans - secured — — 5 5
$ 19 $ 37 % 57 $ 44¢
For the year ended December 31, 2013
One-to-four family residential real estate $ — 1,24¢  $ 46 3 1,29¢

The TDRs described above decreased interest inbgri@,000 , resulted in nthange to the allowance for loan losses allocatedresulted i
charge offs of $248,000 for the year ended DecerdbeP014 . The TDRs described above had no impadtterest income, resulted i@
change to the allowance for loan losses and rekint$25,000 charge offs during the year ended Béee 31, 2013 .

The following table presents TDRs for which theresva payment default within twelve months followthg modification:

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013
Number Recorded Number Recorded
of loans investment of loans investment
One-to-four family residential real estate 2 3 78 — % —

A loan is considered to be in payment default dhize90 days contractually past due under the fiextiterms.

The TDRs that subsequently defaulted described ealtad nomaterial impact on the allowance for loans lossesnd the year endir
December 31, 2014.

The terms of certain other loans were modifiedryithe year ending December 31, 2@i4t did not meet the definition of a TDR. Thesan
have a total recorded investment of $1.0 million &1.7 million at December 31, 2014 and 20Ihe modification of these loans invol
either a modification of the terms of a loan torbwrers who were not experiencing financial diffibe$ or a delay in a payment that
considered to be insignificant.

In order to determine whether a borrower is expeiigg financial difficulty, an evaluation is perfoed of the probability that the borrower \
be in payment default on any of its debt in theeéeeable future without the modification. This ea#ibn is performed under the Company’
internal underwriting policy.

Credit Quality Indicators:

The Company categorizes loans into risk categdmdsgd on relevant information about the abilitypofrowers to service their debt, includ
current financial information, historical paymentperience, credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, am
other factors. The Company analyzes loans indiVigley classifying the loans based on credit riSkis analysis includes ndmmogeneot
loans, such as commercial and commercial realeekians. This analysis is performed on a monthbisha he Company uses the follow
definitions for risk ratings:

Special Mention.A Special Mention asset has potential weaknessggiftserve managemesitiose attention. If left uncorrected, tr
potential weaknesses may result in deterioratiothefrepayment prospects for the asset or in te#tution’s credit position at sor
future date. Special Mention assets are not adyecdassified and do not expose an institution wdfisient risk to warrant adver
classification.

Substandard. Loans categorized as substandard continue to agwierest, but exhibit a wetlefined weakness or weaknesses that
jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. The loaastmue to accrue interest because they are wellred and collection of principal a



interest is expected within a reasonable time. fidkerating guidance published by the Office
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

of the Comptroller of the Currency clarifies thalban with a welldefined weakness does not have to present a ptivpabidefault foi
the loan to be rated Substandard, and that aniéhdil loans loss potential does not have to be distinct far ban to be rat:
Substandard.

Nonaccrual. An asset classified Nonaccrual has all the wealaseisdierent in one classified substandard withatided characteristic tt
the weaknesses make collection or liquidation ih @in the basis of currently existing facts, cdimtis, and values, highly questionz
and improbable. The loans were placed on nonacstatils.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describedtpss are considered “Pass” rated loans.

As of December 31, 2014 , and based on the moshtremalysis performed, the risk category of Idanslass of loans is as follows:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Nonaccrual Total

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 126,10. $ 61t $ 1,046 $ 4,22¢ % 131,99:
One-to-four family residential real estate - non-

owner occupied 46,25: 931 964 19¢ 48,34t
Multi-family mortgage 336,55 60¢ 3,43( 4,51¢ 345,11:
Wholesale commercial lending 134,71¢ — 51¢ — 135,23t
Nonresidential real estate 223,38! 1,17C 6,69¢ 3,24 234,50(
Construction 60 — — — 60
Land 1,212 — 613 — 1,82t
Commercial loans:

Secured 11,86: — 7 76 11,94¢

Unsecured 1,147 40 69¢ — 1,88t

Municipal loans 2,21z — — — 2,21z

Warehouse lines 11,29¢ — — — 11,29¢

Health care 24,12; — — — 24,12;

Aviation 1,10¢ — — — 1,10¢

Other 14,301 — — — 14,301
Commercial leases:

Investment rated commercial leases 160,20¢ — — — 160,20¢

Below investment grade 11,30¢ — — — 11,30¢

Non-rated 35,47: — — — 35,47:

Lease pools 10,15: — — — 10,15:
Consumer 2,04¢ — — 3 2,051

$ 1,15354 $ 3,36t $ 13,97 % 12,267 $ 1,183,14
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As of December 31, 2013, and based on the moshtremalysis performed, the risk category of Idanslass of loans is as follows:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Nonaccrual Total

One-to-four family residential real estate $ 140,71¢ $ 26 % 1,941 $ 3,50¢ $ 146,43:
One-to-four family residential real estate - non-

owner occupied 53,01( — 693 1,24t 54,94¢
Multi-family mortgage 299,05¢ 6,471 3,89( 7,031 316,45(
Wholesale commercial lending 75,74: 2,69/ 1,17z — 79,60¢
Nonresidential real estate 237,75: 6,30¢ 13,64¢ 5,86¢ 263,56
Construction 2,48¢ — — — 2,48¢
Land 2,871 — 832 38¢ 4,08¢
Commercial loans:

Secured 15,82« — 78 10C 16,00:

Unsecured 3,17: 67 89¢ — 4,13¢

Municipal loans 2,812 — — — 2,812

Warehouse lines 1,90¢ — — — 1,90¢

Health care 19,33( — — — 19,33(

Aviation 1,10¢ — — — 1,10¢(

Other 8,96¢ — — — 8,96¢
Commercial leases:

Investment rated commercial leases 146,47: — — — 146,47.

Below investment grade 14,62¢ — — — 14,62¢

Non-rated 22,80: — 21C — 23,01t

Lease pools 3,00( — — — 3,00(¢
Consumer 2,31¢ — 1 — 2,31

$ 1,053,960 $ 15,807 $ 23,36: $ 18,13: $ 1,111,26.

NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES

First mortgage loans serviced for others are noluded in the accompanying consolidated statemehfinancial condition. The unpe
principal balances of these loans were $148.3 anilliand $164.6 million at December 31, 2014 , 2083, respectively. Custodial escr
balances maintained in connection with the foregdaan servicing activities were $3.4 million , ad8.5 million at December 31, 2014nc
2013, respectively.
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NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (continued)

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights are incluthedther assets in the accompanying consolidatdrsents of financial condition. Activity
for capitalized mortgage servicing rights and thlated valuation allowance was as follows.

December 31,

2014 2013
Servicing rights
Beginning of year $ 931 % 1,09(
Additions 38 74
Amortized to expense (135) (2393
End of year $ 834 $ 931
Valuation allowance
Beginning of year $ 5 % 70
Additions expensed 8 —
Reductions credited to expense — (65)
End of year $ 13 % 5
Carrying value of mortgage servicing rights $ 821 % 92¢€
Fair value of mortgage servicing rights $ 1,19C $ 1,27¢

The estimated fair value of mortgage servicing tdgh the present value of the expected future flasls over the projected life of the lo
Assumptions used in the present value calculatrenbased on actual performance of the underlyingicgeg along with general mark
consensus. The expected cash flow is the net ammfuall mortgage servicing income and expense itehte expected cash flows
discounted at an interest rate appropriate foais®ciated risk given the current market conditi@ignificant assumptions are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Prepayment speed 13.6%% 14.22%
Discount rate 12.0(% 12.0%
Average servicing cost per loan $63.0C $65.0C
Escrow float rate 1.82% 1.67%

Key economic assumptions used in measuring thevédire of the Company’s mortgage servicing riglst®tiDecember 31, 201ahd the effer
on the fair value of our mortgage servicing rigintsn adverse changes in those assumptions, adlasd:

Fair value of mortgage servicing rights $ 1,19C

Weighted average annual prepayment speed 13.6%%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse change (25)
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse change (49

Weighted-average annual discount rate 12.0(%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse change (44)
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse change (85)

These sensitivities are hypothetical and shouldidsel with caution. As the above table indicateangks in fair value based on variation
individual assumptions generally cannot be usqutédict changes in fair value based upon furtheatians of the same assumptions. Also
effect of a variation in a particular assumptiontba fair value of the retained interest is caltadain the above table independently, witl
changing any other assumption. In reality, changese factor may result in changes in anothemfasthich might magnify or counteract
sensitivities.
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NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (continued)

The weighted average amortization period is 61 h®niThe estimated amortization expense for eatiheafiext five years is as follows:

2015 $ 17k
2016 127
2017 101
2018 82
2019 64
NOTE 6 — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Year end premises and equipment are as follows:
December 31,
2014 2013
Land and land improvements $ 13,56¢ $ 13,60(
Buildings and improvements 37,18: 37,61¢
Furniture and equipment 9,48 9,95(
Computer equipment 7,232 6,411
67,46¢ 67,577
Accumulated depreciation (33,189 (32,249
$ 34,28¢ $ 35,32¢

Depreciation of premises and equipment was $2.Romi| $2.9 million and $3.1 million for the yeaemided December 31, 2014 , 204i%
2012 , respectively.

The Company leases certain branch facilities umdercancelable operating lease agreements expiringiiows years through 2032. R
expense, net of sublease income, for facilities $&&7,000 , $476,000 , and $444,000 in 2014 , 2@I®& 2012 respectively, excluding tax:
insurance, and maintenance. The projected mininamal expense under existing leases, not incluidirgs, insurance, and maintenance,
December 31, 2014 is as follows:

2015 $ 44C
2016 44F
2017 46¢
2018 47¢
2019 471
Thereafter 5,16¢

$ 7,47(C

The Company has subleased some of its branchtiegitind currently is entitled to receive incoméadisws:

2015 $ 50
2016 43
2017 6

$ 99
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NOTE 7 — CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE

The following table presents the changes in theyray amount of core deposit intangible, grossyiag amount, accumulated amortizat
and net book value:

December 31,

2014 2013
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 2,43: $ 3,03¢
Amortization (578 (60%)
Additions = =
Net Carrying Value $ 1,858 % 2,43
Gross carrying amount $ 593 $ 5,932
Accumulated amortization (4,077) (3,499
Net Carrying Value $ 1,85t § 2,43t

Aggregate amortization expense was $578,000 , $605nd $633,000 for 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , reiwedet

Estimated amortization expense for each of the finextyears is as follows:

2015 $ 551
2016 52¢
2017 49¢
2018 184
2019 61
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NOTE 8—DEPOSITS

Composition of deposits are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 130,71 $ 126,68
Savings deposits 154,53. 149,60:
Money market accounts 338,49¢ 347,01°
Interest-bearing NOW accounts 355,11: 353,78°
Certificates of deposit 232,85¢ 275,62:

$ 1,211,713  $ 1,252,70:

Time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC Inseréimit of $250,000 were $13.1 million and $19.4limn at December 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively.

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposittfar next five years are as follows:

2015 $ 161,02(
2016 53,09¢
2017 12,18¢
2018 3,18:
2019 3,37z

NOTE 9—BORROWINGS

Year-end borrowed funds are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Contractual Contractual
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Fixed-rate advance from FHLBC, due within 1 year 0.12% $ 10,00( —% $ =
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.2t 2,921 0.2t 3,05¢
0.1¢% $ 12,92: 0.25% $ 3,05¢

The Company maintains a collateral pledge agreeswrdring secured advances whereby the Compangdraed to keep on hand, free o
other pledges, liens, and encumbrances, specyfiggtified whole first mortgages on improved desitial property not more than @@y
delinquent to secure advances from the FHLBC. Athe Banks FHLBC common stock is pledged as additional tedéd for these advanc
At December 31, 2014 , $104.0 million and $242.3lioni of first mortgage and mulfamily mortgage loans, respectively, collateral
potential advances. At December 31, 2014 , we hadability to borrow an additional $308.9 milliamder our credit facilities with fl
FHLBC. The Company also had available pre-appravegtnight federal funds borrowing. At December 3Q14 and 2013 , there was
outstanding balance on these lines.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase seerged by mortgage-backed securities with a icgrrgmount of $6.8 million an8.(
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013 , respegtivel
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES

The income tax benefit is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current $ 36z $ —  $ —
Deferred benefit 3,431 (1,310 (11,20¢)
Deferred tax valuation allowance (35,11 1,31( 11,20¢
Total income tax benefit $ (31,31) § — 3 —

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxesmputed at the statutory federal corporate tax 0&t34% for 2014 , 2013 and 20t®the
income tax benefit in the consolidated statemehtperations follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Expense (benefit) computed at the statutory fedexatate $ 3,161 $ 1,121 % (9,217
State taxes and other, net 664 92 (1,757%)
Tax adjustments — (2,390 —
Bank owned life insurance (80) (10€) (149
ESOP/Share based compensation 55 (27) (83
Deferred tax valuation allowance (35,119 1,31(C 11,20¢

$ (31,31) $ — $ =
Effective income tax rate N.M. —% —%

N.M. Not Meaningful

Retained earnings at December 31, 2014 and 2013m&14.9 millionfor which no deferred federal income tax liabilitgs been recorde
This amount represents an allocation of incomeatbdebt deductions for tax purposes alone.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

The net deferred tax asset is as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Gross Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses $ 459¢ $ 5,567
Alternative minimum tax, general business credd aat operating loss carryforwards 28,84. 30,31
Tax deductible goodwill and core deposit intangible 2,091 2,44¢
Other 1,70% 2,161
37,23« 40,49

Gross Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred loan origination costs (1,589 (1,426
Purchase accounting adjustments (2,729 (2,557
Other (805) (964)
Unrealized gain on securities (477) (434)
(5,59) (5,37¢)
Valuation allowance — (35,11
$ 31,64 % —

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company’s net dedetaa asset (‘DTA”) was $31.6 million The Company previously established a
valuation allowance against the DTA effective Deben1, 2011, based on the Company’s cumulativégpreperating losses for the previ
three years and other factors, including then ixjstocal and national economic conditions and @mmpanys then elevated level
nonperforming assets and corresponding credit dosts charge-offs, loan loss provisions, rmerforming asset and other real estate o
management expenses, and gains and losses oofather real estate owned and bulk loan sales).

A DTA valuation allowance is required under ASC 7ifen the realization of a DTA is assessed andissessment indicates that it iadre
likely than not” {.e. more than 50% likely) that all or a portiontbe DTA will not be realized. All available evidem both positive at
negative must be considered to determine whetlasedon the weight of that evidence, a valuatiowaince against the net DTA is requil
Objectively verifiable evidence is assigned greateight than evidence that is not objectively valife. The valuation allowance is analy
quarterly for changes affecting the DTA.

The Company reversed its DTA valuation allowancefd3ecember 31, 2014 based on managerselgtermination that it is more likely tf
not that the Company will be able to utilize theirenDTA and that maintaining a valuation allowarioe the DTA was no longer warran
under ASC 740. Accordingly, the valuation allowargcethe DTA was reversed and the Company recoesfedssociated tax benefit $85.1
million in 2014.

The recovery of the DTA valuation allowance wasparged by humerous positive factors, including eiginsecutive quarters of sustained pre
tax income, strengthened asset quality trends,atfsence of other previously-existing negative factthe length of the Compasyne
operating loss carryforward periods and financiajgrtions indicating that the DTA will be realizbdfore the underlying tax attributes be
to expire. The Compang’ability to realize the DTA is dependent upon dle@eration of future taxable income during theqmsiin which th
tax attributes underlying the DTA become deductifiiee amount of the DTA that will ultimately be liead will be impacted by tt
Company’s future taxable income and any chang#sstmany variables that could impact future taxaideme.

At December 31, 2014 , the Company had a federtabperating loss carryforward of $55.9 milliorwhich will begin to expire in 2029,
federal tax credit carryforward of $1.3 million whi will begin to expire in 2022, a $2.6 milli@iternative minimum tax credit carryforwi
that can be carried forward indefinitely, and a.@4%illion federal alternative minimum tax net operating loagyforward which will begin 1
expire in 2031. In addition, at December 31, 2@id Company had a federal net operating loss acamyrd relating to its acquisition
Downers Grove National Bank, which is subject tbzation limitations under
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, of $dlkomwhich will begin to expire in 2030. At Decdryar 31, 2014 the Company had a st
net operating loss carryforward for the State loidis of $93.6 million , which will begin to expgrin 2022.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Beginning of year $ 65 $ 12t
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear 63 —
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1 2
Reductions due to the statute of limitations artlicions for tax positions of prior years (50 (62
End of year $ 79 % 65

The Company does not expect the total amount afaagnized tax benefits to significantly increaselecrease in the next twelve months.
Company recognizes interest and/or penalties eeladeincome tax matters in income tax expense. Atdmnber 31, 2014 and 2013he
Company has immaterial amounts accrued for poldantierest and penalties.

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to t&&eral income tax as well as income tax of theeStaf Illinois, New Jersey, Colora
Minnesota, Florida and Texas. The Company is ngdoisubject to examination by the federal taxintpauities for years before 2011 and
lllinois taxing authorities for years before 2011.

NOTE 11- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requireteeadministered by the federal banking agenciedlufe to meet minimum capi
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, argsipdy additional discretionary, actions by thei@dfof the Comptroller of the Currency tt
if undertaken, could have a direct material effestthe Banks financial statements. Under capital adequacyedluies and the regulatc
framework for prompt corrective action, the Banksthmeet specific capital guidelines that involvegfitative measures of the Baaldsset
liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet itemsalsulated under regulatory accounting practi¢ée Banks capital amounts and classifica
are also subject to qualitative judgments by regusaabout components, risk weightings, and othetofs.

The prompt corrective action regulations provideeficlassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitaliz
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not usedepoesent overall financial conditi
Adequately capitalized institutions require regoitgtapproval to accept brokered deposits. If uralgitalized, a financial institutios’ capita
distributions, asset growth and expansion aredidhiand the submission of a capital restoratioadsired.
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NOTE 11- REGULATORY MATTERS (continued)

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios were

Required for Capital Adequacy To be Well-Capitalized under Prompt

Actual Purposes Corrective Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31, 2014
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):

Consolidated $ 199,28: 18.31% $ 87,08 8.0(% N/A N/A

BankFinancial, F.S.B. 176,41 16.21 87,05¢ 8.0C $ 108,82 10.00%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets):

Consolidated 187,29( 17.21 43,54 4.0C N/A N/A

BankFinancial, F.S.B. 164,42( 15.11 43,52¢ 4.0C 65,29! 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted average totabts:

Consolidated 187,29( 13.0¢ 57,36 4.0C N/A N/A

BankFinancial, F.S.B. 164,42( 11.4¢ 57,43: 4.0C 71,78¢ 5.0C
December 31, 2013
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):

Consolidated $ 186,25: 17.28% $ 86,21: 8.0(% N/A N/A

BankFinancial, F.S.B. 160,83¢ 14.9: 86,19: 8.0C $ 107,74 10.00%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risk-weighted assets):

Consolidated 172,77! 16.0: 43,10¢ 4.0C N/A N/A

BankFinancial, F.S.B. 147,36: 13.6¢ 43,09¢ 4.0C 64,64+ 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted average totabts:

Consolidated 172,77! 11.92 58,00: 4.0C N/A N/A

BankFinancial, F.S.B. 147,36: 10.1¢ 57,99: 4.0C 72,49( 5.0C

A reconciliation of the Bank’s equity under GAAPr&gulatory capital is as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
GAAP equity $ 192,18. $ 150,21!
Disallowed other intangible assets (1,85 (2,439
Disallowed deferred tax asset (25,150) —
Accumulated other comprehensive income (unrealigéd on securities) (757) (419
Tier 1 capital 164,42( 147,36:
General regulatory loan loss reserves allowed 11,99( 13,47¢
Unrealized gains on securities available for shtened 4 —
Total regulatory capital $ 176,41 $ 160,83¢

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , the OCC categpbthe Bank as weltapitalized under the regulatory framework for ppbroorrectivi
action. There are no conditions or events sinceehwotifications that management believes haveggthithe institution’s welkapitalizet
status.

The Company and the Bank have adopted Capital Rtahsequires the Bank to maintain a Tier 1 legereatio of at least 8% and a total risk
based capital ratio of at least 12%. The minimuipitahratios set forth in the Capital Plans will mereased and other minimum cag
requirements will be established if and as necggsazomply with the Basel Ill requirements as stetuirements
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NOTE 11- REGULATORY MATTERS (continued)

become applicable to the Company and the Bankcdordance with the Capital Plans, neither the Compwor the Bank will pursue a
acquisition or growth opportunity, declare any deamd or conduct any stock repurchase that wouldecthe Bank’s total riskased capit
ratio and/or its Tier 1 leverage ratio to fall belthe established minimum capital levels. In additithe Company will continue to maintain
ability to serve as a source of financial strengtithe Bank by holding at least $5.0 milli@fi cash or liquid assets for that purpose
December 31, 2014 management believes the Compaitha Bank's Basel Ill capital calculations exceéerrequirements.

Federal regulations require the Bank to comply veitQualified Thrift Lender (“QTL")test, which generally requires that 65% of asse
maintained in housingelated finance and other specified assets. IfQfAd test is not met, limits are placed on growthartthing, ne
investment, FHLBC advances, and dividends or thétirtion must convert to a commercial bank chatanagement considers the QTL
to have been met as of December 31, 2014 .

The Bank is subject to regulatory restrictions ba amount of dividends it may declare and pay & Gompany without prior regulatc
approval, and to regulatory natification requirertsefior dividends that do not require prior regutsitapproval.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Stock Ownership Ple. Employees are eligible to participate in the ES@Erattainment of age 21 and completion of one péa
service. In connection with the conversion and ganization, the ESOP borrowed $19.6 millioom the Company, and used the procee:
the loan to purchase 1,957,300 shares of commak s&sued in the subscription offering at $10p@0 share. The loan is secured by the s
and will be repaid by the ESOP with funds from Bemnk’s discretionary contributions to the ESOP and egsion ESOP assets. The Bank
committed to make discretionary contributions te #8SOP sufficient to service the loan over a periotito exceed 20 yearsWhen loa
payments are made, ESOP shares are allocatedtimpzarts based on relative compensation and expengcorded. Participants receive t
earned shares at the end of employment.

Contributions to the ESOP were $1.5 million for trears ended December 31, 2014 and 20b8luding dividends and interest receivec
unallocated shares of $90,000 and $49,000 in 204813 , respectively.

Expense related to the ESOP, net of dividends atedeist received on unallocated ESOP shares, wasmdllion , $847,000 and $686,06ar
the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2@&pectively.

Shares held by the ESOP were as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Allocated to participants 929,71 831,85!
Distributed to participants (202,23) (139,589
Unearned 1,027,58. 1,125,44
Total ESOP shares 1,755,06! 1,817,711
Fair value of unearned shares $ 12,187 $ 10,30¢

Profit Sharing Plan/401(k) Plan. The Company has a defined contribution plan (“prsifiaring plan”)covering all of its eligible employet
Employees are eligible to participate in the prefiaring plan after attainment of age 21 and cotigpie®f one yeanof service. The Compa
provides a match of $ 0.50 on each $1.00 of camioh up to 6%of eligible compensation beginning April 1, 200heTCompany may al
contribute an additional amount annually at thermdton of the Board of Directors. Contributionsaling $348,000 , $346,000 , af@84,00!
were made for the years ended December 31, 20043, @&nhd 2012 , respectively.

NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

On June 27, 2006, the Compasystockholders approved the BankFinancial Corpmmafi006 Equity Incentive Plan, which authorized
Human Resources Committee of the Board of Direatbthe Company to grant a variety of cash- andtgchased incentive awards, includ
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restdctock, performance shares and other incentivedsys employees and directors aggreg:
up to 3,425,275 shares of the Company’s commork stoc
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NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

The Human Resources Committee may grant stock raptio purchase shares of the Comparmommon stock to certain employees
directors of the Company. The exercise price fergtock options is the fair market value of the omn stock on the dates of the grants.
stock options generally vest annually over threfv®year periods; vesting is subject to accelerain certain circumstances. The stock opt
will expire if not exercised within five years frothe date of grant. There was no expense recoutethé years ended December 31, 2014
2013 and 2012 . As of December 31, 2014 and 2Qk8re were no stock options outstanding. Theee2at46,625 stock options available
grant at December 31, 2014 .

The Human Resources Committee of the Board of Birecmay grant shares of restricted stock to aertmnployees and directors of
Company. The awards generally vest annually oveying periods from three to fivgears and vesting is subject to acceleration itai
circumstances. The cost of such awards will bewsetratably as compensation expense over suchctespperiods based on expected ve:
dates. The Company recognized $70,000 , $86,000 $41,0000f expenses relating to the grant of shares oficesti stock during the ye:
ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , resphctifs of December 31, 2014the total unrecognized compensation cost rel&t
unvested shares of restricted stock was $80,d0@ cost is expected to be recognized over ahtesiigaverage period of 5.2 months. Thert
103,800 shares of restricted stock available fangat December 31, 2014 .

Weighted Weighted
Average Fair Average Aggregate
Number of Value at Term to Vest Intrinsic

Restricted Stock Shares® Grant Date (in years) Value @
Shares outstanding at January 1, 2013 — = — 3 =

Shares granted 29,00( 8.14

Shares vested (3,250 —

Shares forfeited — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2013 25,75( 8.14 1.2 % 23€

Shares granted — —

Shares vested (8,929 —

Shares forfeited — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2014 16,82 $ 8.14 0.42 $ 19¢
1) The end of period balances consist only of unvesiedes
2) Restricted stock aggregate intrinsic value reprtsstie number of shares of restricted stock migtipby the market price of the common stock undieglyhe outstandir

shares on the date shown.
NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES

The Company is party to various financial instrutsenith off-balancesheet risk. The Company uses these financial im&nts in the norm
course of business to meet the financing needssibmers and to effectively manage exposure todsteate risk. These financial instrume
include commitments to extend credit, standby fistté credit, unused lines of credit, and committag¢a sell loans. When viewed in term:
the maximum exposure, those instruments may inydtvevarying degrees, elements of credit and isterate risk in excess of the amc
recognized in the consolidated statements of filgucondition. Credit risk is the possibility thatcounterparty to a financial instrument will
unable to perform its contractual obligations. teg rate risk is the possibility that, due to afesin economic conditions, the Compange
interest income will be adversely affected.

The following is a summary of the contractual ortioal amount of each significant class of off-alasheet financial instrumer

outstanding. The Comparsy'exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperéorce by the counterparty for commitments to extensdlit
standby letters of credit, and unused lines ofitisdepresented by the contractual notional amot@ithese instruments.
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NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES (continued)

The contractual or notional amounts are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Financial instruments wherein contractual amouepsasent credit risk
Commitments to extend credit $ 30,477 $ 29,25!
Standby letters of credit 472 927
Unused lines of credit 109,58( 118,16°
Commitments to sell mortgages — 222

Commitments to extend credit are generally madegéiods of 60 days or less. The fixed-rate loamanitment totaled $20.2 milliowith
interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 4.96% and nitags ranging from 2 to 30 years.

Since many of the commitments are expected to expithout being drawn upon, the total commitmenbans do not necessarily repre:
future cash requirements. The Company evaluatds @stomer’s creditworthiness on a casezhye basis. The amount of collateral obta
if it is deemed necessary by the Company upon siderof credit, is based on management’s creditietian of the customers.

The Bank, as a member of Visa USA, received 51éstricted shares of Visa, Inc. Class B commooksin connection with Visa, Ing’
initial public offering in 2007, and 32,3%R&lditional shares of Class B common stock that wWepmsited into a litigation escrow that Visa,
established under its retrospective responsilyilign. The retroactive responsibility plan obligaddisformer Visa USA members to indemr
Visa USA, in proportion to their equity interests\Visa USA, for certain litigation losses and exges) including settlement expenses, fo
lawsuits covered by the retrospective responsgjbiitan. The primary method for discharging the mddication obligations under t
retrospective responsibility plan is a reductiorth# ratio at which the Visa, Inc. Class B sharelsl n the litigation escrow can be conve
into publicly traded Class A common shares of Vise, Due to the restrictions that the retrospectigsponsibility plan imposes on
Company’s Visa, Inc. Class B shares, the Compasynbarecorded the Class B shares as an asset.

NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would beivedefor an asset or paid to transfer a liabiligki{ price) in the principal or mc
advantageous market for the asset or liabilitynnoederly transaction between market participamsh® measurement date. There are
levels of inputs that may be used to measure Hires:

» Level 1 —Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetlg@bilities in active markets that the entity has ability to access as of
measurement date.

« Level 2 —Significant other observable inputs other than Leverices such as quoted prices for similar assetgbilities; quote
prices in markets that are not active; or otheuigphat are observable or can be corroboratedbgreable market data.

» Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs theftect a compang own assumptions about the assumptions that mpekétipant
would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Company used the following methods and sigaifi@ssumptions to estimate the fair value of &god of financial instrument:

Securities: The fair values of marketable equity securities generally determined by quoted prices, in actharkets, for each speci
security (Level 1). If Level 1 measurement inputs aot available for a marketable equity securitg, determine its fair value based on
quoted price of a similar security traded in arivactmarket (Level 2). The fair values of debt sé@s are generally determined by ma
pricing, which is a mathematical technique widebgd in the industry to value debt securities withelying exclusively on quoted prices
the specific securities, but rather by relying ba securities’ relationship to other benchmark gdatecurities (Level 2).

Loans helcfor-sale: Loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of codair value, which is evaluated on a ptmlel basis. The fair value
loans held-forsale is determined using quoted prices for sin@ksets, adjusted for specific attributes of thahlor other observable mar
data, such as outstanding commitments from thirty pavestors (Level 2).
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

Impaired Loans: The fair value of impaired loans with specific alidions of the allowance for loan losses is gehetmsed on recent re
estate appraisals. These appraisals may utilizegéesvaluation approach or a combination of apphes including comparable sales anc
income approach. Adjustments are routinely madéénappraisal process by the independent apprasedjust for differences between
comparable sales and income data available fofagifeians and collateral underlying such loans. Ial estate collateral may be valued u
an appraisal, net book value per the borrower'arfaial statements, or aging reports, adjustedsmodinted based on managemeihtistorica
knowledge, changes in market conditions from theetdf the valuation, and management’s expertisekaod/ledge of the client and clieat’
business, resulting in a Level 3 fair value clasatfon. Impaired loans are evaluated on a quartsasbis for additional impairment and adju:
in accordance with the allowance policy.

Other Real Estate OwnedAssets acquired through or instead of loan foregksre initially recorded at fair value less cdstsell whe
acquired, establishing a new cost basis. Thesé¢saam®esubsequently accounted for at lower of cofdir value less estimated costs to sell.
value is commonly based on recent real estate eafsavhich are updated no less frequently tharualhn These appraisals may utiliz
single valuation approach or a combination of apphes including comparable sales and the incomeoagip with data from compara
properties. Adjustments are routinely made in tperaisal process by the independent appraiserdijisstafor differences between
comparable sales and income data available. Réatieeswned properties are evaluated on a quarbadys for additional impairment &
adjusted accordingly.

Mortgage Servicing Right: On a quarterly basis, loan servicing rights aralwated for impairment based upon the fair valfithe rights a
compared to carrying amount. The fair values oftgame servicing rights are based on a valuationeinibt calculates the present valu
estimated net servicing income. The valuation madebrporates assumptions that market participartald use in estimating future |
servicing income. The Company is able to compaesvluation model inputs and results to widely ke published industry data
reasonableness (Level 2).
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table sets forth the Compasyinancial assets that were accounted for awtlire and are classified in their entirety basethe
lowest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurement.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
December 31, 2014
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ — 3 86,04¢ $ — 3 86,04¢
Equity mutual fund 50¢ — — 50¢
Mortgage-backed securities — residential — 24,61: — 24,61
Collateralized mortgage obligations — residential — 9,97¢ — 9,97¢
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates — 28 — 28
$ 50¢ $ 120,66! $ — 3 121,17.
December 31, 2013
Securities:
Certificates of deposit $ — 65,01( $ — 3 65,01(
Municipal securities — 187 — 187
Equity mutual fund 497 — — 497
Mortgage-backed securities - residential — 28,36« — 28,36«
Collateralized mortgage obligations — residential — 16,81 — 16,81
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certificates — 3¢ — 35
$ 497 $ 110,41 $ — 3 110,90°
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table sets forth the Company’s astieds were measured at fair value on a non-requirasis:

December 31, 2014
Impaired loans:
One—to—four family residential real estate
Multi-family mortgage
Nonresidential real estate
Impaired loans
Other real estate owned:
One—to—four family residential real estate
Multi-family mortgage
Nonresidential real estate
Land
Other real estate owned

Mortgage servicing rights

December 31, 2013
Impaired loans:
One—to—four family residential real estate
Multi-family mortgage
Nonresidential real estate
Construction and land
Impaired loans
Other real estate owned:
One-to—four family residential real estate
Nonresidential real estate
Land
Other real estate owned

Mortgage servicing rights

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

Fair Value Measurement Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Observable

Significant
Unobservable

(Level 3)

Fair
Value

70
1,90¢
2,36¢

70
1,90¢
2,36¢

4,344

4,344

55
1,26t
12¢
758

55
1,26t
12¢
758

2,19¢

2,19¢

16C

16C

46C
2,28¢
971
107

46C
2,28¢
971
107

3,824

3,824

297
46C
1,01¢

297
46C
1,01¢

1,77¢

1,77¢

19¢

19¢
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairmeairtgithe fair value of the collateral for collateidependent loans, had a carrying amou
$4.8 million , with a valuation allowance of $47000at December 31, 2014 , compared to a carryinguatnof $4.2 millionand a valuatic
allowance of $375,000 at December 31, 2013 , riegulin a increase in the provision for loan loss#s$95,000for the year ende
December 31, 2014 .

OREQO is carried at the lower of cost or fair valegs costs to sell, had a carrying value of $3llianiless a valuation allowance of $896,000
or $2.2 million , at December 31, 2014 , compae&2.7 million less a valuation allowance of $9@®,Q or $1.8 million aDecember 3:
2013 . There were $438,000 of valuation adjustmehtgher real estate owned recorded for the yede@ December 31, 2014 .

Mortgage servicing rights, which are carried at éowef cost or fair value, had a carrying amoun$©60,000 at December 31, 2014nc
$198,000 at December 31, 2013 . A pre—tax impaitrae$8,0000n our mortgage servicing rights portfolio was ud#d in noninterest incor
for the year ended December 31, 2014 , comparadh&b,000 recovery for the same period in 2013 .

The following table presents quantitative inforroati based on certain empirical data with respedteteel 3 fair value measurements
financial instruments measured at fair value ol ecurring basis at December 31, 2014 :

Range
Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Fair Value Technique Input Average)
Impaired loans
Discount
) . ) applied to
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 70 sales comparison valuation 4.8%
Comparison
between sales
_ _ and income -2.1%-43.7%
Multi-family mortgage 1,90 sales comparison  approaches (41%)
9.6% to 13.8%
Income approach Cap Rate (10%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income -2.19%-33.9%
Nonresidential real estate 2,36¢ Sales comparison ~ approaches (24%)
10%-11%
Income approach Cap Rate (10%)
$ 4,34¢
Other real estate owned
Discount
. . . applied to 6.3%-7.7%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 55  sales comparisor valuation (7%)
Comparison
between sales
_ . and income -6.6%-13.5%
Multi-family mortgage 1,26%  Sales comparison  approaches (0.4%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income
Nonresidential real estate 12€ Sales comparisor  approaches 32.3%
Discount
. applied to -21.9%-4.2%
Land 755  sales comparison  valuation (-10%)
$ 2,19¢
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The following table presents quantitative inforroati based on certain empirical data with respedteteel 3 fair value measurements
financial instruments measured at fair value ol recurring basis at December 31, 2013 :

Range
Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Fair Value Technique Input Average)
Impaired loans
Discount
, o applied to 7.5%-12.8%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 46(C sales comparison valuation (10%)
Comparison
between sales
) ) and income 12.3%-19.4%
Multi-family mortgage 2,28€ Sales comparison approaches (17%)
7.25% to 13.8%
Income approach Cap Rate (9%)
Comparison
between sales
_ _ and income -3.0%-45.1%
Nonresidential real estate 971 Sales comparison approaches (11%)
10%-10.7%
Income approach Cap Rate (10%)
Discount
) applied to
Construction and land 107 sales comparison valuation 21.2%
$ 3,82¢
Other real estate owned
Discount
_ _ . ) applied to 5.0%-9.4%
One-to-four family residential real estate $ 297  Sales comparison valuation (8%)
Comparison
between sales
. . and income 0%-10.1%
Nonresidential real estate 46C  Ssales comparisor  approaches (7%)
Discount
applied to 0%-10.2%
Land 1,01¢  sales comparison valuation (2%)
$ 1,77¢
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The carrying amount and estimated fair value dadririal instruments is as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2014 Using:

Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 59,58. $ 9,69: $ 49,88t $ — 59,58:
Securities 121,17- 50¢ 120,66! — 121,17:
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses 1,172,35 — 1,166,18. 4,34¢ 1,170,52!
FHLBC stock 6,257 — — — N/A
Accrued interest receivable 3,92¢ — 3,92¢ — 3,92¢
Financial liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 130,71. $ — 130,71 $ — 130,71:
Savings deposits 154,53: — 154,53. — 154,53.
NOW and money market accounts 693,61 — 693,61: — 693,61:
Certificates of deposit 232,85¢ — 232,58t — 232,58t
Borrowings 12,92: — 12,90¢ — 12,90¢
Accrued interest payable 8¢ — 89 — 89
Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2013 Using:
Carrying
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 160,95 $ 1578 $ 14517t $ — $ 160,95
Securities 110,90 497 110,41( — 110,90°
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan
losses 1,098,07 — 1,049,11 3,82¢ 1,052,93!
FHLBC stock 6,06¢ — — — N/A
Accrued interest receivable 3,93: — 3,93: — 3,93¢
Financial liabilities
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $ 126,68( $ — $ 126,68( $ — $ 126,68l
Savings deposits 149,60: — 149,60: — 149,60:
NOW and money market accounts 700,80 — 700,80: — 700,80«
Certificates of deposit 275,62: — 276,02: — 276,02:
Borrowings 3,05¢ — 3,057 — 3,051
Accrued interest payable 112 — 11z — 11z

For purposes of the above, the following assumptisere used:

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe estimated fair values for cash and cash atpnts are based on their carrying value due tctioetterr
nature of these assets.
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

Loans: The estimated fair value for loans has been deted by calculating the present value of futurehcdows based on the current rate
Company would charge for similar loans with simifaaturities, applied for an estimated time periatilihe loan is assumed to be reprice
repaid. The estimated fair values of loans heldstde are based on outstanding commitments from gairty investors.

FHLBC Stock: It is not practicable to determine the fair vabid=HLBC stock due to the restrictions placed tsrtiansferability.

Deposit Liabilities: The estimated fair value for certificates of dgipbas been determined by calculating the pressoe of future cash flov
based on estimates of rates the Company would pauch deposits, applied for the time period umgiturity. The estimated fair values
noninterestearing demand, NOW, money market, and savingsditspare assumed to approximate their carryingegslas managemt
establishes rates on these deposits at a levedplpabximates the local market area. Additionaltgse deposits can be withdrawn on demand.
Borrowings: The estimated fair values of advances from th&€BEl and notes payable are based on current maatedt for similar financin
The estimated fair value of securities sold undgeements to repurchase is assumed to equal iisrepvalue due to the shaierm nature ¢
the liability.

Accrued Interest: The estimated fair values of accrued interestiveble and payable are assumed to equal theyicgvalue.

Off - Balance-Sheet Instruments Off-balancesheet items consist principally of unfunded loamoutments, standby letters of credit,
unused lines of credit. The estimated fair valuesirdunded loan commitments, standby letters oflitr@nd unused lines of credit are
material.

While the above estimates are based on managemedgment of the most appropriate factors, ashefhalance sheet date, there i
assurance that the estimated fair values would baea realized if the assets were disposed ofeolidhilities settled at that date, since me
values may differ depending on the various circamsts. The estimated fair values would also ndyappsubsequent dates.

In addition, other assets and liabilities that ao¢ financial instruments, such as premises andpewnt, are not included in the ab
disclosures.

NOTE 16 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION

Condensed financial information of BankFinanciak@wation as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 anthtothree years endé&kcember 3:
2014 follows:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,

2014 2013
Assets
Cash in subsidiary $ 9,72¢ % 11,44:
Loan receivable from ESOP 12,79: 13,74
Investment in subsidiary 192,18. 150,21!
Deferred tax asset 1,08: —
Other assets 342 252
$ 216,12: % 175,65(
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Accrued expenses and other liabilities $ — 3 23
Total stockholders’ equity 216,12: 175,62
$ 216,12: % 175,65(
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NOTE 16 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION (continued)

Condensed Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Interest income $ 584 $ 62 $ 662
Other income — — 57
Other expense 1,451 1,47: 1,42:
Loss before income tax and undistributed subsidizagme (867) (850 (709
Income tax benefit (1,087 — —
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed sutasidincome 21¢ (850) (709
Equity in undistributed subsidiary excess distrids 40,39¢ 4,14¢ (26,40¢)
Net income (|oss) $ 40,61: $ 3,29¢ % (27,105)

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 40,61¢ $ 3,29¢ % (27,109
Adjustments:

Equity in undistributed subsidiary excess distritis (40,399 (4,149 26,40¢

Change in other assets (1,172) 373 1,14z

Change in accrued expenses and other liabilities (23 2 (780)
Net cash used in operating activities (980) (475) (340
Cash flows from investing activities

Principal payments received on ESOP loan 951 91z 873
Net cash from investing activities 951 91z 873
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash dividends paid on common stock (1,68¢) (844) (639
Net cash used in financing activities (1,68¢) (8449 (63%)

Net change in cash in subsidiary (1,717 (407) (200
Beginning cash in subsidiary 11,44: 11,84¢ 11,94¢
Ending cash in subsidiary $ 9,72¢ % 11,44: % 11,84¢
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NOTE 17 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudi ted)

For the year ended December 31, 2014

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $ 12,08t $ 12,48. $ 12,36¢ $ 12,41
Interest expense 81z 774 74¢€ 714
Net interest income 11,27+ 11,70¢ 11,62: 11,69¢
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses 47€ 957 (1,419 (75€)
Net interest income 10,79¢ 10,75: 13,03t 12,45¢
Noninterest income 1,532 1,66( 1,74¢ 1,76¢
Noninterest expense 11,37: 10,98: 11,157 10,94:
Income before income taxes 95¢ 1,42¢ 3,62¢ 3,28t
Income tax expense (benefit) 17 25 36 (31,399
Net income $ 94z % 1,40 $ 3,59C $ 34,67¢
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.0t $ 0.07 $ 017 $ 1.72
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.0t $ 0.07 $ 017 $ 1.7z

The Company recorded net income of $34.7 million $1.72 per common share, for the fourth quart®044 . The Compang’fourth quarte
2014 operating results include a full recovery ftd tleferred tax valuation allowance of $35.1 millioThe Companyg net interest incon
before provision for loan losses increased to $iiillfon due to stronger loan originations and ioyed asset quality. The Compasiyburtt
quarter 2014 operating results included a $7561@00very of loan losse3he primary reasons for this decrease was the grawour loal
portfolio focused on loan types with lower lossaatbased on our historical loss experience, amidaements in the historical loan loss fac
that occurred as the losses incurred in earlieiogeraged and thus were either eliminated fromctileulation or assigned a lower wei
Noninterest expense includ$467,000 of nonperforming asset management and Of{@énse.

For the year ended December 31, 2013

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest income $ 12,71 $ 12,27¢ $ 12,100 $ 12,29¢
Interest expense 994 93t 882 84z
Net interest income 11,71¢ 11,34: 11,22t 11,45+
Provision for (recovery of) loan losses 722 20¢€ (437) (1,17¢)
Net interest income 10,99° 11,13¢ 11,66: 12,63:
Noninterest income 3,02¢ 1,70: 1,73 1,66¢
Noninterest expense 13,34¢ 12,76: 12,36( 12,79:
Income before income taxes 67¢ 76 1,03¢ 1,50¢
Income tax expense (benefit) — — — —
Net income $ 67¢ $ 76 $ 1,03¢ $ 1,50¢
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.0: $ — $ 0.05 $ 0.0¢
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.0: $ — $ 0.0t $ 0.0¢

The Company recorded net income of $1.5 milliontFer fourth quarter of 2013. The Compamnyet interest income before provision for |
losses increased to $11.5 million due to strongan loriginations and improved asset quality. Then@any’s fourth quarter 2013 operat
results included a $1.2 milliorecovery of loan losses. The recovery is primadie to the growth in our loan portfolio focusedloan type
with lower loss ratios based on our historical lesperience and the historical loan
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NOTE 17 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudi ted)

loss factors improved as the losses incurred itieegreriods aged, therefore are weighted lesiéncalculation. Noninterest expense inclt
$811,000 of nonperforming asset management and C&génse.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our Principal Execudféicer and Principal Financial Offict
we evaluated the effectiveness of the design aedatipn of our disclosure controls and proceduassiéfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 1Bsle’
under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the figeal ( “Evaluation Date")Based upon that evaluation, the Principal Execui¥fécer anc
Principal Financial Officer concluded that, asiud Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls andgaares were effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal ConBuér Financial Reporting.

The annual report of management on the effectiveeokeur internal control over financial reportiagd the attestation report thereon issue
our independent registered public accounting firmmset forth under “Report of Management on Inte@entrol Over Financial Reportinginc
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accountiivgn on Internal Control Over Financial Reportingider Iltem 8 - Financial Statemer
and Supplementary Data.”

(c) Changes in internal controls.

There were no changes made in our internal contitoii®ig the fourth quarter of 204, to our knowledge, in other factors that haveemially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf these controls.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 30hef3arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not Applicable.
PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Directors and Executive Officers

The information concerning our directors and exeeufficers required by this item will be filed tithe Securities and Exchange Commis
by amendment to this Form 10-K, not later than d&s after the end of our fiscal year.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

The information concerning compliance with the mpg requirements of Section 16(a) of the SeaesitExchange Act of 1934 by «
directors, officers and 10 percent stockholdersiireq by this item will be filed with the Securgi@and Exchange Commission by amend:
to this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days aftereéhd of our fiscal year.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Firr@fficers that applies to our principal executivfficer, principal financial office
principal accounting officer, and persons perforgnéimilar functions. A copy of our Code of Ethicasvattached as Exhibit 14 to our Ant

Report on Form 1@ filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissionMarch 27, 2006. We have also adopted a CodBusines
Conduct, pursuant to NASDAQ requirements, thatiapmlenerally to our directors, officers, and erypks.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information concerning compensation requiredhiisyitem will be filed with the Securities anddiange Commission by amendment to
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning security ownership ata@i@ beneficial owners and management requiretthisyitem will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission by amendmehisté-orm 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

The following table sets forth information regamlithe securities that were authorized for issuamzker our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan a
December 31, 2014 :

Column (A) Column (B) Column (B)

Number of Securities
Remaining Available fo
Future Issuance under
Number of Securities to  Weighted-Average 2006 Equity Incentive

be Issued Upon Exerci Exercise Price of Plan (Excluding

of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders 16,827 — 2,550,42!
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldreld — — —
Total 16,82 — 2,550,42!

Column (A) represents stock options and restristedk outstanding under the Compang006 Equity Incentive Plan. Future equity awandder the 2006 Equity Incentive P
may take the form of stock options, stock appremiatights, performance unit awards, restrictectlstoestricted performance stock, restricted stawits, stock awards or ca
Column (B) represents the weightaderage exercise price of the outstanding stodkmpbnly; the outstanding restricted stock awarésnot included in this calculation. Colu
(C) represents the maximum aggregate number ofefitguity awards that can be made under the 200&yHqcentive Plan as of December 31, 2014 .

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information concerning certain relationshipd eglated transactions required by this will bedilwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission by amendment to this Form 10-K, not ldtan 120 days after the end of our fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information concerning principal accountansfaad services will be filed with the Securitiesl @xchange Commission by amendment tc
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDUL ES

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statement o registrant and its subsidiaries are filed as @fathis document under Item 8 Fihancia
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(A) Report of Independent Registered Accounting

(B) Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditiat December 31, 2014 ag@1:

© Consolidated Statements of Operations foydas ended December 31, 2014 , 2013281d

(D) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive lecfimthe years ended December 31, 2014 , 2012614

(E) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stodeng| Equity for the years ended December 31, 2@DA3 and201z

(F) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows foydas ended December 31, 2014 , 2013201d



(G) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

(a)(2) Einancial Statement Schedules
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None.

(a)(3) Exhibits

The documents set forth below are filed herewitmoorporated herein by reference to the locatialicated.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Exhibit

Location

Articles of Incorporation of BankFinancial Corpacat

Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation

Articles of Amendment to Charter of BankFinancialr@@oration

Restated Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation

Form of Common Stock Certificate of BankFinanciak@bration

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with F. Morgsasior

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Jam&ydnnan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with PauChautier

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Terms

2006 BankFinancial Corporation Equity IncentiverPla

Form of Performance Based Incentive Stock Optiora/nTerms

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Terms

Form of Performance Based NQualified Stock Option Award Tern

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock AwancAment
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Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Forh @& the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Forh & the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.3 to the Registration Statement on Forh & the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 3.1 to the Report on Form KB-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on November 4, 2014

Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement on Forr &Ff the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhib it 10.1 tothe Registration Statement on F&m
1 of the Company, originally filed with the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission on September 23, 2004

Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on May 5, 2008.

Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on FormK8ef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on May 5, 2008

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Appendix C to the Definitive Form 14A, originallitefd with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 286
(File No. 000-51331)

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.4 to the Report on Formk8- of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.5 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compa
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.6 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006
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Location

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement withMorgar
Gasior

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement wRaul A.
Cloutier

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement wlaimes .
Brennan

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement vitizabeth A
Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Elizab&. Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Greggdams

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with JohiM@nos

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial FSB Empient
Agreement

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial FSB Empient
Agreement

Form of Amendment No. 1 to BankFinancial Corpomatitmploymen
Agreement

Amended and Restated BankFinancial FSB Employmegredémen
with William J. Deutsch, Jr.

Form of Extension of Term of Employment Period, flamec
Executive Officers of BankFinancial Corporation iguant to terms ¢
existing agreements)

Form of Extension of Term of Employment Period, flamec
Executive Officers of BankFinancial FSB (pursuawet terms o
existing agreements)

Consulting Agreement with former Executive Chridla Calabrese
effective March 31, 2014, lasts 12 months

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Subsidiaries of Registrant

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP
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Exhibit 10.7 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.8 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on September 5, 2006

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on October 20, 2008.

Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on February 23, 2009.

Exhibit 10.29 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on February 23, 2009.

Exhibit 10.30 to the Annual Report on Form KA of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on April 30, 2010.

Exhibit 10.31 to the Annual Report on Form KA of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on April 30, 2010.

Exhibit 10.33 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on March 11, 2013

Exhibit 10.34 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on March 11, 2013

Exhibit 10.35 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on March 11, 2013

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on May 20, 2013

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on June 25, 2014

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on November 4, 2014

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Formk3-of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on April 2, 2014

Exhibit 14 to the Annual Report on Form KO-of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBhange
Commission on March 27, 2006

Exhibit 21 to the Registration Statement on Forrh &-the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2004

Filed herewith
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311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuait $ection 302 of tr
’ Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamt Section 302 of tt
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chi€inancial Officel
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002*

The following financial statements from the Banldfinial
Corporation Quarterly Report on Form KO-for the year ende
December 31, 2014, formatted in Extensive BusinB&porting
Language (XBRL): (i) consolidated statement of dbods,
(ii) consolidated statements of operations, (iihsolidated statemer
of cash flows and (iv) the notes to consolidatedrficial statements.

Filed herewith
31.2 Filed herewith

Furnished herewith

101 Filed herewith

* A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynél be retained by the Compe
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiidthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduty authorized.

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
Date: February 20, 2015 By: /s/F. Morgan Gasior

F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officad@resident
(Duly Authorized Representative)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg of 1934, this report has been signed belothdyjollowing persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsated.

Signatures Title Date
/sl F. Morgan Gasior Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer drdsident February 20, 2015
F. Morgan Gasior (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Paul A. Cloutier Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office February 20, 2015
Paul A. Cloutier (Principal Financial Officer)
/sl Elizabeth A. Doolan Senior Vice President and Controller Februdry2D15
Elizabeth A. Doolan (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Cassandra J. Francis Director February 20, 2015

Cassandra J. Francis

/s/ John M. Hausmann Director February 20, 2015
John M. Hausmann

/sl Thomas F. O'Neill Director February 20, 2015
Thomas F. O'Neill

/sl John W. Palmer Director February 20, 2015
John W. Palmer

/sl Terry R. Wells Director February 20, 2015
Terry R. Wells
/s/ Glen R. Wherfel Director February 20, 2015

Glen R. Wherfel
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements No. 333-127737 and No.133®82 on Form 8- of
BankFinancial Corporation, of our report dated keby 20, 2015 with respect to the consolidated financial staets of BankFinanci
Corporation and the effectiveness of the Compamyternal control over financial reporting, whiodport appears in this Annual Repor
Form 10-K of BankFinancial Corporation for the yeaded December 31, 2014 .

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
February 20, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, F. Morgan Gasior, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparaj
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /

Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtisis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the segnts internal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdih on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinencia
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 20, 2015 /sl F. Morgan Gasior

F. Morgan Gasior

Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Paul A. Cloutier, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKLOf BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparaj

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ader financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimnd the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtisis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the segnts internal control over financial reporting thatcoored during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdih on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinencia
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 20, 2015 /sl Paul A. Cloutier
Paul A. Cloutier

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Aof 2002

F. Morgan Gasior, Chairman of the Board, Chief Exiwe Officer and President of BankFinancial Cogimm, a Maryland corporation (1
“Company”) and Paul A. Cloutier, Executive Vice President &fdef Financial Officer of the Company, each cgriif his capacity as

officer of the Company that he has reviewed theuahreport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decerie014 (the “Report"and that t
the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefctions 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchakgeof 1934; an

2. the information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of

Company.
Date: February 20, 2015 /sl F. Morgan Gasior
F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and President
Date:February 20, 2015 /sl Paul A. Cloutier

Paul A. Cloutier

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadyall be retained by the Company
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commigsidts staff upon request.



